
 

 

Performance and Finance Scrutiny 

Sub-Committee  AGENDA 
 
 

DATE: 

 

Tuesday 21 January 2014 

 

TIME: 

 

7.30 pm 

 

VENUE: 

 

Committee Rooms 1 & 2,  

Harrow Civic Centre 

 
 

 

 MEMBERSHIP      (Quorum 3) 

   

  Chair: 

 

Councillor Sue Anderson  

 

  Councillors: 

 
Chris Mote 
Anthony Seymour (VC) 
 

Graham Henson 
 

Mano Dharmarajah 
 

 
 

 

Reserve Members: 

 
1. Amir Moshenson 
2. Marilyn Ashton 
 

1. Jerry Miles 
2. Phillip O'Dell 
 

1. Zarina Khalid 
 
  

 

Contact:  Manize Talukdar, Democratic & Electoral Services Officer 

Tel:  020 8424 1323    E-mail:  manize.talukdar@harrow.gov.uk 
 



 

Performance and Finance Scrutiny Sub-Committee - 21 January 2014 

 AGENDA - PART I   
 

1. ATTENDANCE BY RESERVE MEMBERS    
 
 To note the attendance at this meeting of any duly appointed Reserve Members. 

 
Reserve Members may attend meetings:- 
 
(i) to take the place of an ordinary Member for whom they are a reserve; 
(ii) where the ordinary Member will be absent for the whole of the meeting; and  
(iii) the meeting notes at the start of the meeting at the item ‘Reserves’ that the 

Reserve Member is or will be attending as a reserve; 
(iv) if a Reserve Member whose intention to attend has been noted arrives after 

the commencement of the meeting, then that Reserve Member can only act 
as a Member from the start of the next item of business on the agenda after 
his/her arrival. 

 
2. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST    
 
 To receive declarations of disclosable pecuniary or non pecuniary interests, arising 

from business to be transacted at this meeting, from: 
 
(a) all Members of the Sub-Committee; 
(b) all other Members present. 
 

3. MINUTES   (Pages 1 - 8) 
 
 That the minutes of the meeting held on 6 November 2013 be taken as read and 

signed as a correct record. 
 

4. PUBLIC QUESTIONS *    
 
 To receive any public questions received in accordance with Committee Procedure 

Rule 17 (Part 4B of the Constitution). 
 
Questions will be asked in the order notice of them was received and there be a 
time limit of 15 minutes. 
 
[The deadline for receipt of public questions is 3.00 pm, <DATE>.  Questions 
should be sent to publicquestions@harrow.gov.uk    

No person may submit more than one question]. 
 

5. PETITIONS    
 
 To receive petitions (if any) submitted by members of the public/Councillors under 

the provisions of Committee Procedure Rule 15 (Part 4B of the Constitution). 
 

6. REFERENCES FROM COUNCIL AND OTHER COMMITTEES/PANELS    
 
 To receive any references from Council and/or other Committees or Panels. 

 
7. CHAIR'S REPORT   (Pages 9 - 18) 
 
 Report of the Divisional Director of Strategic Commissioning.   



 

Performance and Finance Scrutiny Sub-Committee - 21 January 2014 

 
8. REVENUE AND CAPITAL MONITORING Q2   (Pages 19 - 52) 
 
 Report of the Director of Finance and Assurance. 

 
9. PROGRESS AGAINST THE RECOMMENDATIONS OF THE REPORT ON THE 

STANDING SCRUTINY REVIEW OF THE HOUSING REVENUE ACCOUNT 
BUDGET   (Pages 53 - 66) 

 
 Report of the Divisional Director of Housing. 

 
10. UPDATE ON PRIVATE RENTED SECTOR   (Pages 67 - 72) 
 
 Report of the Divisional Director of Housing. 

 
11. TOWARDS EXCELLENCE UPDATE   (Pages 73 - 78) 
 
 Report of the Divisional Director, Business and Service Development. 

 
12. ANY OTHER BUSINESS    
 
 Which the Chairman has decided is urgent and cannot otherwise be dealt with. 

 
 AGENDA - PART II - NIL   

 
 * DATA PROTECTION ACT NOTICE   
 The Council will audio record item 4 (Public Questions) and will place the audio recording on the 

Council’s website, which will be accessible to all. 
 
[Note:  The questions and answers will not be reproduced in the minutes.] 
 

 



This page is intentionally left blank



�

� ��������	
���	���
	�	
���
���
	����������
����������������������� ��������

�
�
�

���������	�
���
�����	�



	������

���	��������




������
�

�

�
��������
����

�
�
������� �� ���	

����������	��� �	�
� � �
��	
������
��
�

�� !��"���#�	 �	�
�� $��
	��%"��
��&�'��
�

�� �"�
 �(����
�� �	�"�	����������
�

�� )�	��� �(������*�� �	��
&�'����)�	��� �
���+�������,� �����(����� �
�
�

����� ����
��
��������
�����������
���
�
����� �!�� � -�� 	���� �"�� ����	��	
�� ��� �"
 �����
	+� ��� �"�� �����.
	+� �����
�**�
	����,� �����(�����/��
�
0��
	����(�������
�

,� �����(������
�

���	

�����(�	��)"������1�"� ���	

�����$��
	��%"��
��
�

����� !���������

��"�#
����
����
�
����� �!���-��	�����"����"�������.
	+�
	���� � �.������
�����/�
�
�+�	���2�������3����*������45���
�
� �0�1�
�
�� �
�
���	

����������	��� �	���
��������	�	�*�
�	
����
	���� ��
	��"���"��� �	�
.� ����44-�&	���
	�4�*�����	�����4��
��
�	����-��
	
	+'��	��.� �
	���
�
*��
�����������

�������������#����.��	�����
���������(�	����#����"�����

� ����
�"����	������	������"�6� ��7�	��	��#�����	���
�	�-�� �8���"��.�����
����
	�
	��"�������."
� ���"���������.� �
�	 
�������	���������*�	8�
�

Agenda Item 3
Pages 1 to 8

1



�

��������	
���	���
	�	
���
���
	����������
����������������������� ����9���

�+�	���2����:������
�����	��������+��;*����<��+�	���2����=���>� 
	�  �
��	�
	�
���;*����<��+�	���2�������3�2�-�����

����������
�
���	

�����!��"���#�	 �	���
��������	�	�*�
�	
����
	���� ��
	��"���"��"���
���	��"��������	���������
��#������."�	��"��������*��1�
� �"������	�
	
�
�����
�	���+����8�#��.���������
	�
	��"�������."
� ���"�������� �.����
�	 
������
�	���������*�	8�
�

��$�� �%%��
���
���"� ���&�������
���
�
����� �!�� -"��� ���	

����� �	�"�	�� �������� ��� �**�
	���� �"�� ?

��
�"�
���	�����"����������
����������"������@���(�	


*���A���8�
�

��'�� ��
	��
���
�
����� �!��-"����"���
	��� �����"������
	+�"�����	������*���������������
��B�	�� �������	�� 
+	���� ���
����
����
���8�
�

��(�� )	�����*	�
���

�+�)������

���
�
����� �!���-��	�����"���	��*���

�5�� �
�	 �.����*��C����*��
�
�	 ���
�
���8�
�

����� ��"���
��
�"������	
�����
�����������������
,)�
��
���
�
����� �!��-��	�����"���	��,�����	
� �.������
�
���8�
�

����� �!�#-������
�

��.�� )���	����
��
�����/��	%�������
�
-"����������
�������
�
��������*��������"�����*������)
��
�������,� ���
� C�
."

"�  ��� ���� �� *� 
�
�	�  ������	�� �����.
	+� �"�� �
� �� �� .��B � ���

�*����	���
�	� ��� �"�� ���
 ��� ������

��C� ��	���
� � �	�� ���
�����	��
)
�
 
�	�  ���
����� �	�� �"�� *��+������ ��� .��B� ��� �"�� �	�� ��� �"�� 
����	��
�
	�	

�������8�
�
-"��)
�
 
�	���)
��
���C�������

��C���	���
� �D����
�����	�����
 ����"��/�
�

•� �"������

��"������	��*����
	+�.
�"���	���������
	���
�������� ����
 �����������	������������� ��	���"��������
 ��� ���
������	��*��+������
���.��B�"������	�
�*����	�����	��.��B�.� ��	���.�������
�������*� � �
.
�"�*����	�	��������
��� ������ �5�

B���� �*�  
���8��2��.� �
	��	����
�"����"��	�.� ���
�����.��������
	�*��
�����E�	���������<�

�

•� ��F9��B�*��
�����	�� ��
	+ ����+��C��������
"
��������(��
"������
"������	�
��	�
�
��<�

�

•� ��	��������� ��
	+ C����


�	

� ��	��
	
����+�	����
�	���� ��� �
.������
	+�
	�� �
+������	��
�*����	����� ��**��*�
�����	��
	
������
�"�������.
	+/��

�

2



�

�������� � ��������	
���	���
	�	
���
���
	����������
�����������������������

�� ����
 "
	+�������
	+���+�	
 ��
�	������"�����	

�<��

�+��������G*��
���
�	�����  �� <��

�
�*������	�� �	�� ���
�	��
 ��
�	� ���  � ��� C� ���� � �	�� *��
�  � �
������������"��*��
�����	����	
�
�	<��

����.�
�
	+�����"����	���
�����
�����	��,��� <�

���
���+������	�+���	���**���
"���������"
���*����� *�	�<�

�������*��	�������
�����

��� �����+�<�

�
�*����	���
�	������-���+���� � �����������+��������
�	���
� C�."

"��
.�����"������*����	��� 
 �*��
�  ��	���	 ����+����+����	�	
���	���
�������	+�+���	��.
�"�)
��
������ <�

�
�*������� ������"���G
 �
	+�
�	���
� ���+
 ����� ��	�����
�
���*��		
	+�
����<�

��������
�	���
����	�+���	�� ����	 ���� �"���
�	 
 ��	�� ��	���� ��	��

��	�
�
�����	��
� �.��������
 ��8�

�
��(������  ������ �"��� �"�����
�����	��������+��>����� "��� ���	�  ��� �*� ���
�	 ����
�	���
� �.����������������	����	��� B���"�.��"�����	

�H ��+�	���
������"

���*��
�����	���	�� 
� ��5���
�����1�
�
�� �.����� ����� 
	��� �"
 8� �-"��
)
�
 
�	���)
��
���� ���
 ��� �"���#����.� "��� �� +���� ��
���� 
	� �"
 � ����� �	��
���

�� �"�����+�����.���	�  ���� 
  �� � �������� ��� � ��
	��
�
��C� �5���
�
� C�
� 
	+� ��
��� �� 
	�  � � �	�� *���
��� � �	�� �"
 � 
������� .� � .���� ���������
�
��  ��"�����	

�8��#���������"���
�	���
� � "���������.����������(4 �
	�
�	��*�	��	�����	 *���	����		����	��
�	���
���
��� � "��������B������	��
� �
	�
�"�� ���	�8� � -"����.� �  ���� ���G
�
�
��� 
	� �"�����	

�H � 
����	�� *��
�����	��
���� �� ��
 *�	 ��
�	 �.����*���
����8�� 2��.� �
�*����	�� �"������

�� �.��B���

�� ���� .
�"� �
	�	
�� ���

�� � ��� ��������� �"�� �������� ��	��
�� ��� �� 
�	���
�� ���
���"��"�����	

���	���"�������	
��8�
�
��(������� B���."����"��
����	��*� 
�
�	��	��"��F9��B�*��
�����	�� ��
	+ �
���+���.� 8� �-"��)
�
 
�	���)
��
�������
 ��� �"���"��.� �	�������� ���
�	�
���
�"
 � ��� �"�� ����	�8� � #�� .� �  ��B
	+� 
���
��� ��+���
	+� 
� "����� �	�� 	�	�

� "�����  ��
	+ � �	�� .� � .��B
	+� 
�� ���� .
�"� �"�� �
	�	
�� >� 
	�  �
����	�� ����
��	�
���."��� ��
	+ �"������	��
"
������������8��#���	������B����
*���
����� ����"��� ��*���� ��� �"����������
����� ��+���
	+� �"��*� 
�
�	��	� �"��
 ��
	+ ����+��8�
�
�� (������ � B��� ��� B	�.� �"�� *��
�  � ���� ��	�.
	+� �	�@��� �����	���
	+�

�	���
� 8� �-"��)
�
 
�	���)
��
�������
 ��� �"��� �"��
�	�����
�	���
� � ��+
 ����
.����� �	����� *���*��		
	+� �	�� .����� ���+� �*� 
�	���
� � �"��� .���� ���� ���
�G*
��8� � 2��.� � 
�*����	�� �"������

�� ���+�	����
�.
	+���
�	���
����� ��� ���:�
��	�" ���������G*
��8��-"
 �.���������.��"����������������"��
����	��
�	���
�C�
�"�����B��C���"���*�  
���� �**�
�� C��	�� ���B����."�����"������"��
�
� �.����
��
	+��	���� 
�
����

�
�� ��	
� 8���
�
-"��(������ � B��� ������ �"�� ������� ��� �"�� 
�	���
� � ��+
 ���� �	�� ."��"���
)
��
������ � "��� ���	� ����� �.���� ��� �"�� *���*��		
	+� ��� ��� � ����
����
�����8� � -"�� )
�
 
�	��� )
��
����  ������ �"��� �"�� 
�	���
� � ��+
 ���� .� �
��
	��
	���� ��	��G
��� *���� "���8� �#�������� �"����� ���� �� ���
�����.� �

3



�

��������	
���	���
	�	
���
���
	����������
����������������������� ����I���

��
	+�������*���������+��*��"� ��
�	���
� �."

"�.������������G*
����	���"���
�"
 �*��
�  �.��������
� 
��������)
��
������ 8�
�
��(������� B���."��"����"�� 
"�����G*�	 
�	�*��+������."

"�.� ��������
��� 
��*������ ��� ��*������� ���9� .� � �� ����
 ����� ���+��8� � -"�� )
�
 
�	���
)
��
���� ���
 ��� �"��� �"���� .� � ��  
	+��� 
��*�	�� �����.��B� �+�����	�� 
	�
*��
��.
�"�%��*������*����C� �"�����	

�H ���
��
	+�
�	���
��� C�."

"�.�����
�	�� 
	��*�
����������� �"�������� � ���� �"�� 
"��� �.��B �
��������������������
�"�� �����.��B� �*� ��� �"��� �
��8�-"�����	

�� .� � 
�	 
���
	+� ��"��� *���	�
���
*���
��� � ���� �"�� -��
"�� H� ��	���� *��1�
�� �	�� .����� 
�	�
	��� ��� ��	
����
%��*������*����H � *�������	
�� �"���+"���� �"�� ����� ��� �"�� *��+�����8�#��
�������"��C�
	�"
 ��
�.C��"���
�� 
��� �����
��*���
�	�����"���
"����4G*�	 
�	�
���+������.�����G���������
+"�������
"
������8�
�
����� �!��-"����"����*�������	����8�
�

��0�� 1	
�
�

���
��
	����2%�������
�
����� �!��-"���
�
�+�	���
����=C�J>� 
	�  ���	�
	�
���;*����H��������������	�������
 �����*����
�	�
����� J>� 
	�  ���	�
	�
����	�� 2-�)
 � ����,�
�����HC���� ���
�������� �"��
	�G������
	+�����"����������
������	����E�	���������8��-"
 �.� ���
�� ��
�"�� ��*����  ���
����� �
�� 	��� �	
��*�  � ���� ��� �"�� 
  �� � �"��� "��� ���	�
*���
�� �����5�� �������(����� 8�
�

��3�� ���%�������4	������
���5������
�&��

	���)��/��

���%������
�
-"����������
����� ��
�
������ ��*���� ��� �"��)
�
 
�	���)
��
���� ���������+

�
����
  
�	
	+�."

"�*���
�����	��*������	�*��+��  ��+�
	 �� �"�����	

�H �
45���
��� 0�1�
�
�� � ."

"� "��� ���	� ���*���� ��� ���
	��� 
	� �*�
�� ����� �	��
*��+��  � �+�
	 �� �"�� 4G
����	�� 7����� ��� �"�� 45���
��� �����.��B� ���� 7�
���
!����	��	��&4�7!'8�
�
�	� ���

���  ������ �"��� �"�� 45���
��� �
�� ����� 
	�����
��� �� ��	+�� ��� �
+"� C�
*�.�� � �	�� ���
+��
�	 � �	�� 
�*� ��� �� 	�.� ����

� ��
���� 45���
��� )����
&��4)'��	�*���

����"��
�
� �
	��"���G��

 ������"�
����	
�
�	 8��-"�����	

�H �
*�������	
�� 
	� �"
 � ����� .� � ���������� �"���+"� ��  ��
� � ��� �G
 �
	+�
*�������	
�� 
���
��� ��	���"
 ������.� � �������
	�����
��
	��"���**�	�

� �
����"����*���8��;*��������� 
�	 �����"
 ���*����.�������� ���
������		���������
�"����������
����8�
�
�� (������ � B��� "�.� �5���
�
� � ��1�
�
�� � .���� ��
+	��� .
�"� �"�� ���+���
 ���
	+�*��
�  8� �-"��)
�
 
�	���)
��
�������������+

�����
  
�	
	+����
 ���
�"���*���
������ ���	+���
��	
���� �8��#���������"����"��������������
�
��	�  �
��� 
����
	+� ���� �	� 452�� �	� �"�� ���+��� ���
	+� *��
�  � .����� 	���� ��� ���
���
�.����	��
	
��*��������**��*�
�����8�
�
-"��(������ 5���
��� �"�� ��
�� �"��� �"�� *��
�	��+�� ��� ����� � 
	� 
�	��
�� .
�"�
 �
�	����� ��	���� "����"�  ���

� C� �
�
	+� 
	��*�	��	���� .
�"� ���� .
�"����
 �**����"���
	
��� �������.� �	���.
�"
	����+�� � ����	��"������	�,�!�������
� � ,��8� #�� ������ �"��� �"
 � 
  ��� "��� ���	� ���++��� �*� � � �� *�
��
��� ��� �"��

4



�

����:��� � ��������	
���	���
	�	
���
���
	����������
�����������������������

��������� ���+��� ���
	+� ����
	+8� �	� ���

��� ���
 ��� �"��� ���"��+"� �"
 �
��1�
�
���.� �������,��C�#����.�
��*�����.����.
�"�	�
+"����
	+����"��
�
� �
�	�� ��"��� ���"��
�
� � 
	� 7�	��	8� � (�	���� "����"�  ���

� � 
	� #����.� .����
*���
���������	������	������"�6� ��7�	��	��#�����	���
�	�-�� �8�������� ��
��	
���
	+�*��
�  �.� � 
	�*��
���	�� �"�����	

��.����� 
�	�
	��� �����	
����
�	��
�*�����*�������	
��
	��"
 �����8���"���������"����"����.����	��
  �� �
�������� ��� (�	���� #����"� 
����	���� 
��	�
�
��� 
	� �"�� (��
��� -���� �
	�	

���
������+��&(-��'��	��	������ ����+��.�"�"������	�
��	�
�
��8���"���	������B�
���

�
���������������
���� 
	������
�	���+���
	+� �"
 � ���(����� ���� �"������
����
����8�
�
-"��(������� B���."�������������"������ � ����"������	�� ������
��*
���
�������+���
	+� �"�� 
	
��� �� 
	� �"��*��*���
�	�����
 ��������*����� �.��B
	+�
��� �"�����	

�8� �#�������� �"��� ��
�	�� �����  ����� �"��� ���++����*���"
+"���
*��*���
�	�����
 ������ ������"�	�
��	�
�
�������"������ � ���8��-"��)
�
 
�	���
)
��
���� ���
 ��� �"��� �"��  �����  ������ �
�� 	��� "���� �� "�	����� *��
�	��

��*���
�	�����C�."���� ��"������ � �����

�������������
�������� ����8��2	�"
 �
�
�.C� 
�� .� � 
�*����	��  �����  "����� ����� 
����������� ������ ������
	+� �"�
��
�
 ��
�
��� ���� C�."

"�.� ��"����� �	������ 
	+���������8�
�
,�����
	+� ��� �"��K���6��B��G*��
�	
���	�� 1��� ����
	�  �*��+�����C�."

"�
.� ��
�����������9����������
�
�	� �."��.����	���
	���*�����	��������
��
�	�
��� ���
	
	+� &�44- 'C� �	�� 
	� ��
�
*�� ���  ���

� � ����� #����.� �"
����	� �	��
���
�
� �����

�C��"���"�
��� B���."���"� ���+���������:����� �����+��.�����
��� 
	� ��
�
*����� ���

� � ����� �"���"
����	��	�����
�
� �����

�8� ��	����

���
���
 ��� �"��� ���	+�*��*��� 
��	�
�
���� �"��
	+��� ����	
	+��
 ��
�
������ �"� ��
����
	+� �"��
���� � ����.�����	�
����� ��� ��
�
��� ���

� � ������"
����	��	��
���
�
� � �*� ��� �"�� �+�� ��� �98� �#�������� �"��� �"����.���� �� �� �� 	������ ���
��"����+�	

� �  �**���
	+� �"� �����	+�*��*��� ����	 ���� �"�
�� ����
	�  � ����
.��B��	�����������
�
�	��� �**�����	��+�
��	
�8�
�
-"�� �"�
�� � B��� ."��"��� �"�� 
	
��� �� 
	� �"�� *��
�	��+�� ��� *��*��� .
�"�
J����	
	+� �
��

���
� H� �
�
	+� 
	� �"�
�� �.	� "��� � ��� .
�"� ���
�
� C�  "����� �����
*��*���.
�"�J����	
	+��
 ��
�
�
� H8���	����

������
 ����"����"�� �	��	
�� "�����
�����J����	
	+��
 ��
�
�
� H��	���������������"� ��
	�
�
���� �."��.������
�
�
	+�
�� ���

��������"�����	

�8�
�
-"�� �"�
�� 5���
��� �"�� ���+��� �"��� ����� 
"
����	� �	�� ���	+� *��*��� .
�"�
�
 ��
�
�
� �.��������*���


*��
	+�
	� *�����"���+"��"��*���
 
�	�������
	
	+��	��
 �**���� ��� ���L� ��� �4� ���
"�� 8� � �	� ���

��� ���
 ��� �"��� �"���� .� � ��
���

�����*� ��
	��"���
"������**��������

��
	������
�	�����4C�."

"�*���
����
 �**������� 
"��� 8��#���������"�������*����
��*
��������"��)
��
�����������

�
#����"�.� � ���� ��� ���  ���
����� ��� �"��#����"� �	��6�����
	+� ������ �	� �"��
 ��1�
�������� 
���
	����	+�*��*����	���"��*�����
�	����"����"���
�
	+����	+�
�"�����	+8�
�
-"�� �"�
�� � B��� ���� 
���
�

��
�	� ��+���
	+� �"�� 
	
��� �� 
	� �"�� 	������ ���
.��B��  � �� 
��	� �."��.����  �**������ ��� �

�  � ��*�����	�� �	�� ���
	
	+�
*��+����� � +�	������� �"���+"� *��		
	+� +�
	8� � �"�� ������ �"��� �"��

����	����������
	+�����"
 ����+���."

"� �������"����"��	���������
�
�	� �.� �
	����	��

��������� ����������	� ���
�� ���"��
�
�	��+���*�
"�	+���.
�"��"��

5



�

��������	
���	���
	�	
���
���
	����������
����������������������� ����=���

��	�
	+� �����C�.� �	���
����8���	����

����	������B����*���
���
���
�

��
�	����
��������
����������� ���+���
	+��"
 �
����	����8�
�
��(������� B���."��"����"����.����*��	 ����
	�����
�������+���	�+�� �
	�
�"�� �����+"8� � �	� ���

���  ������ �"��� �"� �� .���� *�*����� �	�� .����� ��C�
"�.����C� "�� .� � 	��� �.���� ��� �	�� ���
�
�	��� ��	�
	+� ���
������ ��������� ���
�"� ����������
��8�
�
�� (������ � B��� ."��"��� �"�� ���+��� ��� "��
	+� ����� ��
+"����"����
�"��*
�	 � .� � �
"
������8� � �	� ���

��� ���
 ��� �"��� �"���� "��� ���	�
�
 
�  
�	 � ������ ���
 
	+� �"
 � ���+��� �	�� 
�� .� � 
	��	���� �"��� ��
��� +���* �
 �
"�� �#����.��  �

��
�	����)
 ���������*����	��#����.���	
���,� 
��	� �
�  �

��
�	�.��������
�	��
������+���
	+��"��
	
�
��
��8�
�
��(������� B���."���"�����*������45���
�
� �0�1�
�
�� �"���
"�	+��� 
	
��
����8� � �	� ���

��� ���
 ��� �"��� �"�� ������
"
	+� ��1�
�
�� C� ."

"� "��� ���	�
���
	��� ��� �"�� ��4)� ���� �� *��
��� ��� ����� ���� � "��� ����
	��� �"��  ���C�
"�.����C� �"��%�����������	
�� 2	�

���� � &%�2'� ��������@���.����	�.8� �-"��
(������ ������ �"��� �"�������*���
���� 
	� �"���**�	�

� � ��� �"�� ��*����.�����
����� 
�����������.�
���"���.����
���
	���
	����� 
	+���������."

"� ��������"��
���+�� C�%�2 ��	���� ��� 8��-"�����

����	������B�����	 �����"������������*��� �
�����.����"
 �������8��
�
-"�� �"�
�� ��5�� ���� ����� 
	������
�	� ������ �"�� �����	
��� 4	+�+���	��
����8���	����

������
 ����"����"����
��
���	���	�� ���
�
�	�*��
�  �����*� � �
.
�"
	��"�������.� ��	+�
	+��	��"���G*�
�����"�������������
	�*��
������
��
)�
����������8��-"���"�
��� B����������"�����	

�H ������	
�����"� 
�	�
������+�8���	����

��� �������"�������������

��������"
 ������"������	�
��	�
�
���
�	���	������B����

�
�������"��������+�����(����� �����"����������
����8�
�
����� �!��-"����"����*�������	����8�
�

��6�� �7��	
��
��"�����)��

��
��)	�������
�
����� �!�� � -"��C� 
	� �

����	
��.
�"������ 2� ����
"���������� ��� �"�� 7�
���
!����	��	���
���=I�C��"��*��  ��	��*���

�����G
������������"������
	+�����
�"�������.
	+�
���������"����� �	� �����������./�
�
2���� -
����

�
,�� �	�

��8� 2�-�����

�� 2	������
�	��	����*���+��*"������
�����2� ��� �
"������ ���� ��� �"��
7�
��� !����	��	���
�� �=I�C�
�����
	+� ��� �"�� �
	�	

��� ���
�� 
	�  �����
� ���� �	��*���

�����
*�� �	�&
	
���
	+� �"�� ���"��
���
"���
	+��"���
	������
�	'8�

�
�
�
�
�

6



�

�������� � ��������	
���	���
	�	
���
���
	����������
�����������������������

�.��� #�-�����������
�
-"����������
����� ��
�
���� �� ��*���� ��� �"��)
��
���� ����� ����������

� �
�	��>� 
	�  �-��	 ������
�	�."

"� ��������"��
����	��*� 
�
�	�.
�"���+�������
�"��2-� ���

�C�."

"�"������	���� ���
��������*
���
	��������������8�
�
�� (������ � B��� ������ �"�� 2-0� -��	 ������
�	� ���+�����8� � �	� ���

���
���
 ��� �"��� �"�� *��+������ 
	
������ �"
	+ �  �
"� � � ����
	+� ���� �"�� �
��
G�
*��������."

"�.������	����� �"��� ����� �"
	�
�
�	�����

� C� �� ���� ��++
	+� 
	C�

	
��� �������� �
��
����	���"������������"������"��(��
����	�����G
����6��B
	+�
*��+�����8�
�
����� �!��-"����"����*�������	����8�
�
&����/��-"������
	+C�"��
	+�
����	
������I8���*�C�
�� ������:89��*�'8�
�
�
�
�
�
&�
+	��'��0;��2770,��;4���)4,�0��
�"�
��
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�

7



8

This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

REPORT FOR: 

 

PERFORMANCE AND 

FINANCE SCRUTINY 

SUB-COMMITTEE 

 

Date of Meeting: 

 

21st January 2014 

Subject: 

 

Report of P&F Chair’s briefing for 
Quarter 2 2013-14  

Responsible Officer: 

 

Alex Dewsnap – Divisional Director 
Strategic Commissioning   
 

Scrutiny Lead 

Member area: 

 

Cllr Sue Anderson, Chairman 
Performance and Finance sub 
committee 
Cllr Anthony Seymour, Vice-chair 
Performance and Finance sub 
committee 

Exempt: 

 

No 
 

 

Enclosures: 

 

Appendix A: Notes P&F Chair’s 
briefing held on 27th November 
Appendix B: Watch list of items 
selected for further monitoring at Q3 

 
 

Section 1 – Summary and Recommendations 
 

 
This report sets out issues considered by the Chairman and Vice-chair since 
the last meeting of the Performance and Finance scrutiny sub-committee. 

 
Recommendations:  
To note the report.  

 

Agenda Item 7
Pages 9 to 18

9



 

 

Section 2 – Report 
 

Introductory paragraph 
This report outlines the items considered by the Chair & Vice-Chairman at 
their briefing on performance and finance information for Quarter 2 2013-14.  
 
A number of items were considered at the briefing:  
o Revenue and capital monitoring report Quarter 2 2013-14 
o Watch list of items identified for further monitoring at the previous briefing 
o Corporate scorecard Quarter 2 2013-14 

 
Notes of the briefing are available in Appendix A and the watch list is available 
in appendix B.  
 

Financial Implications 
This report deals with matters of financial throughout.  
 

Performance Issues 
This report deals with matters of service performance throughout. 
 

Environmental Impact 
There is no environmental impact associated with this report. 
 

Risk Management Implications 
There are no risk management implications associated with this report.  
 

Equalities implications 
An Equality Impact Assessment was not carried out as the report includes no 
proposals for service change.   
 

Corporate Priorities 
The work of the sub-committee addresses all of the council’s corporate 
priorities.  
 

Section 3 - Statutory Officer Clearance 
Not required for this report. 
 

Section 4 - Contact Details and Background 

Papers 
 

Contact:  Lynne Margetts, Service Manager Scrutiny, 020 8420 9387 
 

Background Papers:  No 

 

10



Appendix A 

P&F CHAIR’S BRIEFING – Version 1 
WEDNESDAY 27TH NOVEMBER 2013 

 
Attending: 
Councillor Sue Anderson (Chair P&F), 
 
Simon George, Director of Finance and Assurance 
Martin Randall, Senior Professional Corporate Performance and Planning 
Lynne Margetts, Service Manager Scrutiny 
 
 
NOTES 
 
Revenue and Capital Monitoring report Quarter 1 2013-14  
The Director and Finance and Assurance briefed Cllr Anderson on the revenue and capital 
monitoring report. At Quarter 2 the council is forecasting an outturn position overspending 
by roughly £1.88m by the end of the financial year – a Directorate overspend of £2.6 m 
reduced to £1.88 m after accounting for corporate items. 
 
He highlighted the following: 
The HRA surplus is improving to £660k after the external decorations programme has 
been rolled up into other projects 
 
Public Health budget is forecasting an underspend.  As this is a new responsibility for the 
council, officers are being cautious not to over-commit resources .  There is also concern 
regarding the potential impact of legacy debt from the PCT.  A public health reserve fund 
will be set up at the end of the year from this underspend. 
 
The capital budget of £80.42m has a projected spend of £61m.  It is expected that this 
spend will reduce. 
 
Cllr Anderson clarified that the Director of Finance and Assurance is anticipating a healthy 
underspend at the end of the financial year.  He commented that whilst this is expected to 
be the case, it will not be as good as the previous financial year which saw the council set 
aside significant sums to deal with anticipated redundancy funding.  The financial risks 
associated with redundancies are not expected to be as significant as they had been. 
 
Cllr Anderson was advised that with regard to central contingency, the significant issues 
are  

• Staff overspend in Children and Families Services – the result of increasing case load 
pressure on social workers – and  

• Placement costs in Adults Services 
 

11



Watch list of items selected for further monitoring/Corporate Scorecard Quarter 2 
The following performance indicators should be deleted from the watch list: 

• ‘Average time taken to re-let LA housing ‘ 

• ‘Percentage of household waste sent for re-use, recycling and composting’ 

• ‘Proportion of web forms and web visits as a percentage of overall contact’ 

• ‘% forecast variation from budget: capital expenditure’ 

• ‘Accident incident rate; and reportable injury frequency rate’ 
 
Following consideration of the Corporate Scorecard, Quarter 2, it was agreed that the 
following indicators will be added to the watch list: 

• ‘Timeliness of assessments, percentage completed in 45 working days’ – the indicator 
which this replaces ‘Assessments completed in 35 days’ is already on the watch list 

• ‘Number of smoking quitters’ 

• ‘% of new starters who completed the mandatory Equality and Diversity e-learning 
module within 6 months of commencing employment’ 

 
 
In addition the Chairman requested the following: 

• Comparative information to be included in the watch list with respect to young people 
leaving care not in education employment or training 

 

• An item on the provision of private rented accommodation in the light of increasing 
homelessness to be added to the agenda for the committee meeting on 21st January 
2014 

 

• A separate briefing on the increasing incidence of domestic violence be arranged to 
include the scrutiny leads for Children and Families and Community Health and Well 
Being 

 

• An officer to attend the next briefing with regard to the percentage of food 
establishments compliant with food hygiene law 

 

• Rate of proven re-offending to be covered at the 18th February meeting of the 
committee as part of the Corporate Director of Children and Families Services 
presentation of performance information from the Children and Families Directorate  

 

• The report to the Communications, Performance and Resources Portfolio Holder with 
regard to staff sickness to be shared with chair and vice chairman of the committee. 

 

12



A
p

p
e

n
d

ix
 B

 -
 I

n
d

ic
a
to

rs
 b

ro
u

g
h

t 
fo

rw
a
rd

 f
o

r 
fu

rt
h

e
r 

m
o

n
it

o
ri

n
g

 a
t 

P
&

F
 C

h
a

ir
's

 b
ri

e
fi

n
g

 (
W

a
tc

h
 L

is
t)

 -
 U

p
d

a
te

d
 f

o
ll
o

w
in

g
 m

e
e

ti
n

g
 

o
n

 2
7

 N
o

v
e
m

b
e

r 
2

0
1

3

In
d

ic
a

to
r 

 
S

e
le

c
te

d
 f

o
r 

m
o

n
it

o
ri

n
g

Q
2

 

s
ta

tu
s

U
p

d
a

te
 a

t 
Q

2
C

o
m

m
e

n
ts

 a
n

d
 a

c
ti

o
n

s
 f

ro
m

 Q
2

 

m
e

e
ti

n
g

K
e

e
p

 o
n

 

W
a

tc
h

 

L
is

t?

S
u

p
p

o
rt

in
g

 a
n

d
 p

ro
te

c
ti

n
g

 p
e

o
p

le
 w

h
o

 a
re

 m
o

s
t 

in
 n

e
e

d

C
a

re
 l
e

a
v
e

rs
 n

o
t 

in
 

e
d

u
c
a

ti
o

n
, 

e
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n

t 
o

r 

tr
a

in
in

g
 a

t 
a

g
e

 1
9

Q
2

, 
2

0
1

3
/1

4
-

N
o

 R
A

G
 s

ta
tu

s
 a

s
 t

a
rg

e
t 

to
 b

e
 d

e
te

rm
in

e
d

 o
n

 

th
e

 b
a

s
is

 o
f 

2
0

1
3

/1
4

 b
e

in
g

 t
h

e
 b

a
s
e

lin
e

 y
e

a
r.

 

4
9

 o
u

t 
o

f 
5

7
 f

o
rm

e
r 

c
a

re
 l
e

a
v
e

rs
 a

re
 i
n

 s
u

it
a

b
le

 

a
c
c
o

m
m

o
d

a
ti
o

n
 (

5
 d

e
p

o
rt

e
d

, 
6

 n
o

t 
in

 s
u

it
a

b
le

 

a
c
c
o

m
m

o
d

a
ti
o

n
) 

Y
T

D
. 

1
8

 o
u

t 
o

f 
5

7
 f

o
rm

e
r 

c
a

re
 

le
a

v
e

rs
 a

re
 N

E
E

T
 (

o
f 

w
h

o
m

 1
 a

re
 d

e
p

o
rt

e
d

, 
2

 

m
is

s
in

g
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 r

e
m

a
in

in
g

 3
6

 a
re

 E
E

T
) 

Y
T

D
. 

S
e

e
 a

ls
o

 u
p

d
a

te
 i
s
s
u

e
d

 o
n

 2
0

/0
9

/2
0

1
3

.

C
o

m
p

a
ra

ti
v
e

 d
a

ta
 f

o
r 

L
o

n
d

o
n

 a
u

th
o

ri
ti
e

s
 

re
q

u
e

s
te

d
.

Y
e

s

A
s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n

ts
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d

 

w
it
h

in
 3

5
 d

a
y
s

Q
1

, 
2

0
1

3
/1

4
L

R
N

e
w

 i
n

d
ic

a
to

r 
fr

o
m

 D
fE

: 
T

im
e

li
n

e
s

s
 o

f 

a
s

s
e

s
s

m
e

n
ts

, 
p

e
rc

e
n

ta
g

e
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d

 i
n

 4
5

 

w
o

rk
in

g
 d

a
y

s
 (

y
e

a
r 

to
 d

a
te

).
 T

h
is

 m
e

a
s
u

re
 

c
o

m
b

in
e

s
 I

n
it
ia

l 
a

n
d

 C
o

re
 A

s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n

ts
 i
n

to
 a

 

s
in

g
le

 m
e

a
s
u

re
. 

F
ir
s
t 

re
p

o
rt

e
d

 a
t 

Q
2

 2
0

1
3

/1
4

, 

b
u

t,
 Q

1
 R

A
G

 s
ta

tu
s
 h

a
s
 b

e
e

n
 d

e
te

rm
in

e
d

 

re
tr

o
s
p

e
c
ti
v
e

ly
 a

s
 A

m
b

e
r.

Y
e

s

H
o

m
e

le
s
s
n

e
s
s

- 
n

u
m

b
e

r 
o

f 
h

o
u

s
e

h
o

ld
s
 w

e
 

a
s
s
is

t 
w

it
h

 h
o

u
s
in

g
 i
n

 t
h

e
 

p
ri
v
a

te
 r

e
n

te
d

 s
e

c
to

r 

(H
o

u
s
in

g
 s

c
o

re
c
a

rd
)

Q
2

, 
2

0
1

1
/1

2
 

(a
s
 a

 s
u

it
e

)

H
R

Q
2

 2
0

1
3

/1
4

 r
e

tu
rn

 i
s
 1

1
7

 a
g

a
in

s
t 

a
 t

a
rg

e
t 

o
f 

1
6

0
 (

y
e

a
r 

to
 d

a
te

).
 P

ro
c
u

re
m

e
n

t 
in

c
re

a
s
in

g
 d

u
e

 

to
 i
n

c
e

n
ti
v
e

s
. 

 D
e

la
y
 i
n

 s
ig

n
in

g
 l
e

a
s
e

s
 m

e
a

n
s
 

th
e

 i
m

p
ro

v
e

m
e

n
t 

w
ill

 s
h

o
w

 i
n

 Q
3

. 
F

ro
m

 

D
ir
e

c
to

ra
te

 s
c
o

re
c
a

rd
 a

s
 n

o
t 

re
p

o
rt

e
d

 i
n

 

C
o

rp
o

ra
te

 s
c
o

re
c
a

rd
.

U
p

d
a

te
 i
n

 r
e

la
ti
o

n
 t

o
 p

ri
v
a

te
 r

e
n

te
d

 

s
e

c
to

r 
to

 b
e

 p
ro

v
id

e
d

 a
t 

J
a

n
u

a
ry

 2
0

1
4

 

m
e

e
ti
n

g
 o

f 
P

&
F

 S
u

b
-C

o
m

m
it
te

e
.

Y
e

s

- 
N

o
. 

o
f 

h
o

u
s
e

h
o

ld
s
 i
n

 B
&

B
 a

t 

e
n

d
 o

f 
q

u
a

rt
e

r 
- 

s
n

a
p

s
h

o
t 

(H
o

u
s
in

g
 s

c
o

re
c
a

rd
)

L
R

Q
2

 2
0

1
3

/1
4

 r
e

tu
rn

 i
s
 1

0
7

 a
g

a
in

s
t 

a
 t

a
rg

e
t 

o
f 

1
0

0
. 

 I
n

c
re

a
s
e

 i
n

 B
&

B
 m

a
in

ly
 c

a
u

s
e

d
 b

y
 

d
if
fi
c
u

lt
ie

s
 i
n

 p
ro

c
u

ri
n

g
 P

ri
v
a

te
 R

e
n

te
d

 S
e

c
to

r 

p
ro

p
e

rt
ie

s
. 

F
ro

m
 D

ir
e

c
to

ra
te

 s
c
o

re
c
a

rd
 a

s
 n

o
t 

re
p

o
rt

e
d

 i
n

 C
o

rp
o

ra
te

 s
c
o

re
c
a

rd
.

Y
e

s

$
sw

q
5

u
km

k.
xl

s
P

a
g

e
 1

 o
f 

6

13



In
d

ic
a

to
r 

 
S

e
le

c
te

d
 f

o
r 

m
o

n
it

o
ri

n
g

Q
2

 

s
ta

tu
s

U
p

d
a

te
 a

t 
Q

2
C

o
m

m
e

n
ts

 a
n

d
 a

c
ti

o
n

s
 f

ro
m

 Q
2

 

m
e

e
ti

n
g

K
e

e
p

 o
n

 

W
a

tc
h

 

L
is

t?

e
x
-B

V
 2

1
2

 A
v
e

ra
g

e
 t

im
e

 

ta
k
e

n
 t

o
 r

e
-l
e

t 
L

A
 h

o
u

s
in

g
 

(d
a

y
s
) 

(H
o

u
s
in

g
 s

c
o

re
c
a

rd
)

Q
2

 2
0

1
2

/1
3

H
G

Q
2

 2
0

1
3

/1
4

 r
e

tu
rn

 i
s
 1

5
.2

3
 d

a
y
s
 a

g
a

in
s
t 

th
e

 

ta
rg

e
t 

o
f 

1
8

 d
a

y
s
. 

S
ig

n
if
ic

a
n

t 
im

p
ro

v
e

m
e

n
t 

in
 

p
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e

. 
F

ro
m

 D
ir
e

c
to

ra
te

 s
c
o

re
c
a

rd
 a

s
 

n
o

t 
re

p
o

rt
e

d
 i
n

 C
o

rp
o

ra
te

 s
c
o

re
c
a

rd
.

P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e

 i
m

p
ro

v
e

d
, 

re
m

o
v
e

 f
ro

m
 

w
a

tc
h

 l
is

t.

N
o

N
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

s
m

o
k
in

g
 q

u
it
te

rs
Q

2
, 

2
0

1
3

/1
4

H
R

 (
Q

1
)

N
e

w
ly

 a
d

d
e

d
A

d
d

 t
o

 w
a

tc
h

 l
is

t
Y

e
s

K
e

e
p

in
g

 n
e

ig
h

b
o

u
rh

o
o

d
s

 c
le

a
n

, 
g

re
e

n
 a

n
d

 s
a

fe

R
e

p
e

a
t 

in
c
id

e
n

ts
 o

f 
d

o
m

e
s
ti
c
 

v
io

le
n

c
e

 (
a

ls
o

 V
io

le
n

t 
C

ri
m

e
)

-
R

F
o

r 
V

io
le

n
t 

C
ri
m

e
, 

s
e

e
 i
n

te
ri
m

 u
p

d
a

te
 i
s
s
u

e
d

 o
n

 

1
6

/1
0

/2
0

1
3

. 
R

e
p

e
a

t 
in

c
id

e
n

ts
 o

f 
D

o
m

e
s
ti
c
 

V
io

le
n

c
e

 r
e

tu
rn

 i
n

 Q
2

 2
0

1
3

/1
4

 i
s
 1

5
%

, 
s
a

m
e

 a
s
 

Q
2

. 
F

a
lls

 o
u

ts
id

e
 t

a
rg

e
t 

ra
n

g
e

 h
e

n
c
e

 R
A

G
 

s
ta

tu
s
. 

S
e

v
e

n
ty

-f
iv

e
 c

a
s
e

s
 w

e
re

 d
is

c
u

s
s
e

d
 a

t 

M
A

R
A

C
  

in
 Q

2
, 

th
e

 h
ig

h
e

s
t 

n
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

c
a

s
e

s
 

d
is

c
u

s
s
e

d
 i
n

 a
n

y
 q

u
a

rt
e

r 
in

 H
a

rr
o

w
. 

T
h

e
 

n
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

re
p

e
a

t 
re

fe
rr

a
ls

, 
1

1
, 

w
a

s
 o

n
ly

 

m
a

rg
in

a
lly

 a
b

o
v
e

 t
h

e
 a

v
e

ra
g

e
 f

o
r 

th
e

 l
a

s
t 

tw
o

 

y
e

a
rs

. 
T

h
e

 c
o

m
b

in
a

ti
o

n
 o

f 
a

 v
e

ry
 h

ig
h

 n
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

c
a

s
e

s
 d

is
c
u

s
s
e

d
, 

w
it
h

 a
 r

e
la

ti
v
e

 a
v
e

ra
g

e
 

n
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

re
p

e
a

t 
re

fe
rr

a
ls

, 
c
re

a
te

d
 a

 l
o

w
 r

e
p

e
a

t 

v
ic

ti
m

is
a

ti
o

n
 r

a
te

. 
A

 l
o

w
 r

e
p

e
a

t 
v
ic

ti
m

is
a

ti
o

n
 

ra
te

 s
h

o
u

ld
 u

s
u

a
lly

 b
e

 s
e

e
n

 a
s
 a

 p
o

s
it
iv

e
 

d
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t.

B
ri
e

fi
n

g
 t

o
 b

e
 a

rr
a

n
g

e
d

 f
o

r 
C

h
a

ir
 a

n
d

 

V
ic

e
-C

h
a

ir
m

a
n

 w
it
h

 S
e

rv
ic

e
 M

a
n

a
g

e
r 

(P
o

lic
y
 a

n
d

 P
a

rt
n

e
rs

h
ip

s
) 

a
n

d
 V

io
le

n
c
e

 

A
g

a
in

s
t 

W
o

m
e

n
 a

n
d

 G
ir
ls

 C
o

-o
rd

in
a

to
r.

 

S
c
ru

ti
n

y
 L

e
a

d
s
 f

o
r 

C
h

ild
re

n
 &

 F
a

m
ili

e
s
 

a
n

d
 A

d
u

lt
s
 a

ls
o

 t
o

 b
e

 i
n

v
it
e

d
. 

D
e

c
is

io
n

 t
o

 

b
e

 m
a

d
e

 f
o

llo
w

in
g

 t
h

a
t 

m
e

e
ti
n

g
 o

n
 

re
fe

rr
in

g
 t

o
 P

&
F

 S
u

b
-C

o
m

m
it
te

e
.

Y
e

s

$
sw

q
5

u
km

k.
xl

s
P

a
g

e
 2

 o
f 

6

14



In
d

ic
a

to
r 

 
S

e
le

c
te

d
 f

o
r 

m
o

n
it

o
ri

n
g

Q
2

 

s
ta

tu
s

U
p

d
a

te
 a

t 
Q

2
C

o
m

m
e

n
ts

 a
n

d
 a

c
ti

o
n

s
 f

ro
m

 Q
2

 

m
e

e
ti

n
g

K
e

e
p

 o
n

 

W
a

tc
h

 

L
is

t?

N
I 

1
8

4
 F

o
o

d
 e

s
ta

b
lis

h
m

e
n

ts
 

in
 t

h
e

 a
re

a
 w

h
ic

h
 a

re
 

c
o

m
p

lia
n

t 
w

it
h

 f
o

o
d

 h
y
g

ie
n

e
 

la
w

Q
2

 2
0

1
2

/1
3

L
R

Q
2

 2
0

1
3

/1
4

 r
e

tu
rn

 i
s
 7

0
%

 a
g

a
in

s
t 

a
 t

a
rg

e
t 

o
f 

7
6

%
. 

Q
u

a
rt

e
rl
y
 f

ig
u

re
s
 c

o
n

ti
n

u
e

 t
o

 h
o

v
e

r 

a
ro

u
n

d
 t

h
e

 7
0

%
 c

o
m

p
lia

n
c
e

 m
a

rk
. 

A
s
 

m
e

n
ti
o

n
e

d
 i
n

 p
re

v
io

u
s
 r

e
p

o
rt

s
, 

n
e

w
 p

re
m

is
e

s
 

a
d

d
e

d
 t

o
 t

h
e

 d
a

ta
b

a
s
e

 a
n

d
 n

o
t 

in
s
p

e
c
te

d
 t

h
is

 

y
e

a
r 

a
re

 c
o

n
s
id

e
re

d
 "

n
o

n
 c

o
m

p
lia

n
t"

. 
 T

h
e

 

s
e

rv
ic

e
 p

ro
p

o
s
e

s
 t

o
 r

e
c
o

rd
 t

w
o

 m
e

a
s
u

re
s
 i
n

 

fu
tu

re
: 

th
e

 c
u

rr
e

n
t 

fi
g

u
re

 (
a

ll 
p

re
m

is
e

s
, 

in
s
p

e
c
te

d
 o

r 
n

o
t)

, 
a

n
d

 t
h

e
 p

e
rc

e
n

ta
g

e
 c

o
m

p
lia

n
t 

o
u

t 
o

f 
th

o
s
e

 i
n

s
p

e
c
te

d
, 

w
h

ic
h

 w
ill

 g
iv

e
 a

n
 

in
d

ic
a

ti
o

n
 o

f 
th

e
 a

c
tu

a
l 
s
it
u

a
ti
o

n
 e

x
p

e
ri
e

n
c
e

d
 b

y
 

in
s
p

e
c
to

rs
 a

n
d

 a
n

 o
v
e

ra
ll 

v
ie

w
 o

f 
fo

o
d

 h
y
g

ie
n

e
 

c
o

m
p

lia
n

c
e

 i
n

 H
a

rr
o

w
.

A
n

 o
ff

ic
e

r 
fr

o
m

 t
h

e
 s

e
rv

ic
e

 t
o

 b
e

 a
s
k
e

d
 t

o
 

a
tt

e
n

d
 t

h
e

 J
a

n
u

a
ry

 2
0

1
4

 C
h

a
ir
's

 b
ri
e

fi
n

g
 

to
 g

iv
e

 f
u

rt
h

e
r 

e
x
p

la
n

a
ti
o

n
.

Y
e

s

N
I 

1
9

2
 P

e
rc

e
n

ta
g

e
 o

f 

h
o

u
s
e

h
o

ld
 w

a
s
te

 s
e

t 
fo

r 
re

-

u
s
e

, 
re

c
y
c
lin

g
 a

n
d

 

c
o

m
p

o
s
ti
n

g

Q
4

 2
0

1
2

/1
3

L
G

 (
Q

1
)

Q
2

 2
0

1
3

/1
4

 r
e

tu
rn

 i
s
 5

2
%

 a
g

a
in

s
t 

a
 t

a
rg

e
t 

o
f 

5
0

%
.

P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e

 i
m

p
ro

v
e

d
, 

re
m

o
v
e

 f
ro

m
 

w
a

tc
h

 l
is

t.

N
o

Im
p

ro
v
e

d
 s

tr
e

e
t 

a
n

d
 

e
n

v
ir
o

n
m

e
n

ta
l 
c
le

a
n

lin
e

s
s
: 

- 
N

I 
1

9
5

a
 –

 l
it
te

r 

- 
N

I 
1

9
5

b
 –

 d
e

tr
it
u

s
 

- 
N

I 
1

9
5

c
 –

 g
ra

ff
it
i 

Q
2

, 
2

0
1

1
/1

2
 

(l
it
te

r/
 

d
e

tr
it
u

s
);

 

Q
4

, 
2

0
1

0
/1

1
 

(g
ra

ff
it
i)

H
R

L
G

H
R

Q
2

 2
0

1
3

/1
4

 r
e

tu
rn

s
 a

re
 1

4
%

 a
g

a
in

s
t 

a
 t

a
rg

e
t 

o
f 

6
%

 f
o

r 
lit

te
r 

(N
I1

9
5

a
),

 9
%

 a
g

a
in

s
t 

a
 t

a
rg

e
t 

o
f 

9
%

 f
o

r 
d

e
tr

it
u

s
 (

N
I1

9
5

b
) 

a
n

d
 8

%
 a

g
a

in
s
t 

a
 

ta
rg

e
t 

o
f 

3
%

 f
o

r 
g

ra
ff

it
i 
(N

I1
9

5
c
).

 L
it
te

r 
a

n
d

 

g
ra

ff
it
i 
a

re
 r

e
p

o
rt

e
d

 i
n

 t
h

e
 C

o
rp

o
ra

te
 s

c
o

re
c
a

rd
, 

b
u

t 
d

e
tr

it
u

s
 i
s
 f

ro
m

 t
h

e
 D

ir
e

c
to

ra
te

 s
c
o

re
c
a

rd
. 

T
h

e
 N

I 
1

9
5

 s
c
o

re
s
 s

h
o

w
 a

 d
e

te
ri
o

ra
ti
o

n
 i
n

 

p
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e

 t
h

is
 q

u
a

rt
e

r.
 L

it
te

r 
(N

I 
1

9
5

a
) 

in
 

p
a

rt
ic

u
la

r 
h

a
s
 g

o
n

e
 u

p
 f

ro
m

 7
%

 i
n

 t
ra

n
c
h

e
 1

 t
o

 

1
4

%
 i
n

 t
ra

n
c
h

e
 2

 (
th

e
 s

u
rv

e
y
 i
s
 c

o
n

d
u

c
te

d
 i
n

 3
 

tr
a

n
c
h

e
s
 d

u
ri
n

g
 t

h
e

 y
e

a
r)

 a
g

a
in

s
t 

a
 t

a
rg

e
t 

o
f 

6
%

. 

Y
e

s

$
sw

q
5

u
km

k.
xl

s
P

a
g

e
 3

 o
f 

6

15



In
d

ic
a

to
r 

 
S

e
le

c
te

d
 f

o
r 

m
o

n
it

o
ri

n
g

Q
2

 

s
ta

tu
s

U
p

d
a

te
 a

t 
Q

2
C

o
m

m
e

n
ts

 a
n

d
 a

c
ti

o
n

s
 f

ro
m

 Q
2

 

m
e

e
ti

n
g

K
e

e
p

 o
n

 

W
a

tc
h

 

L
is

t?

T
h

e
s
e

 s
c
o

re
s
 r

e
fl
e

c
t 

th
e

 i
m

p
a

c
t 

o
f 

th
e

 M
T

F
S

  

s
a

v
in

g
s
. 

T
h

is
 i
s
 t

h
e

 f
ir
s
t 

tr
a

n
c
h

e
 o

f 
in

s
p

e
c
ti
o

n
s
 

th
a

t 
h

a
s
 i
n

c
o

rp
o

ra
te

d
 t

h
e

 f
u

ll 
e

ff
e

c
t 

o
f 

a
 s

ix
 

w
e

e
k
ly

 c
le

a
n

s
in

g
 c

y
c
le

, 
th

e
 r

e
d

u
c
e

d
 c

o
v
e

ra
g

e
 

to
 s

h
o

p
p

in
g

 a
re

a
s
, 

in
d

u
s
tr

ia
l 
a

re
a

s
 a

n
d

 

re
c
re

a
ti
o

n
a

l 
a

re
a

s
, 

a
n

d
 t

h
e

 r
e

s
u

lt
s
 r

e
fl
e

c
t 

th
e

 

e
x
te

n
d

e
d

 c
le

a
n

s
in

g
 c

y
c
le

 t
h

a
t 

w
a

s
 b

e
in

g
 

u
n

d
e

rt
a

k
e

n
 a

t 
th

e
 t

im
e

 o
f 

th
e

 i
n

s
p

e
c
ti
o

n
 -

 t
h

is
 

tr
e

n
d

 s
h

o
u

ld
 b

e
 r

e
v
e

rs
e

d
 w

it
h

 t
h

e
 r

e
c
e

n
t 

in
v
e

s
tm

e
n

t 
in

to
 t

h
e

 s
e

rv
ic

e
. 

In
 t

e
rm

s
 o

f 
g

ra
ff

it
i,
 

w
e

 a
re

 a
d

v
e

rs
e

ly
 a

ff
e

c
te

d
 b

y
 t

h
e

 a
m

o
u

n
t 

o
f 

g
ra

ff
it
i 
o

n
 p

ri
v
a

te
 p

ro
p

e
rt

y
 w

h
ic

h
, 

a
lt
h

o
u

g
h

 w
e

 

a
re

 n
o

t 
re

s
p

o
n

s
ib

le
 f

o
r 

re
m

o
v
in

g
 i
t,

 d
o

e
s
 

n
e

g
a

ti
v
e

ly
 i
m

p
a

c
t 

o
n

 o
u

r 
s
c
o

re
 –

 t
h

e
 m

e
a

s
u

re
 i
s
 

d
e

fi
n

e
d

 t
o

 i
n

c
lu

d
e

 a
n

y
 g

ra
ff

it
i 
o

r 
fl
y
-p

o
s
ti
n

g
 

v
is

ib
le

 f
ro

m
 t

h
e

 t
ra

n
s
e

c
t 

a
re

a
.

U
n

it
e

d
 a

n
d

 i
n

v
o

lv
e

d
 c

o
m

m
u

n
it

ie
s

: 
a

 C
o

u
n

c
il

 t
h

a
t 

li
s

te
n

s
 a

n
d

 l
e

a
d

s

V
is

it
s
 t

o
 l
ib

ra
ri
e

s
 -

 n
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

p
h

y
s
ic

a
l 
v
is

it
s

Q
4

 2
0

1
2

/1
3

L
R

N
o

te
: 

a
s
 o

f 
Q

1
 2

0
1

3
/1

4
 t

h
e

 c
o

m
p

o
s
it
e

 m
e

a
s
u

re
 

"P
a

rt
ic

ip
a

ti
o

n
 i
n

 c
u

lt
u

ra
l 
s
e

rv
ic

e
s
" 

is
 r

e
p

o
rt

e
d

 

a
g

a
in

s
t 

th
e

 C
o

rp
o

ra
te

 P
ri
o

ri
ty

 "
U

n
it
e

d
 a

n
d

 

In
v
o

lv
e

d
 C

o
m

m
u

n
it
ie

s
".

 Q
2

 2
0

1
3

/1
4

 r
e

tu
rn

 f
o

r 

p
h

y
s
ic

a
l 
v
is

it
s
 t

o
 l
ib

ra
ri
e

s
 i
s
 2

9
4

,9
4

5
 a

g
a

in
s
t 

a
 

ta
rg

e
t 

o
f 

3
1

2
,5

0
0

. 
T

h
e

re
 h

a
s
 b

e
e

n
 a

 s
lig

h
t 

d
e

c
re

a
s
e

 i
n

 t
h

e
 n

u
m

b
e

r 
o

f 
v
is

it
s
 i
n

 Q
2

 

c
o

m
p

a
re

d
 t

o
 Q

1
. 

Q
1

 i
s
 t

ra
d

it
io

n
a

lly
 t

h
e

 p
e

ri
o

d
 

o
f 

h
ig

h
e

s
t 

u
s
e

 d
u

e
 t

o
 t

h
e

 u
s
e

 o
f 

th
e

 l
ib

ra
ri
e

s
 f

o
r 

s
tu

d
y
in

g
 b

y
 s

tu
d

e
n

ts
. 

C
iv

ic
 C

e
n

tr
e

 L
ib

ra
ry

 a
ls

o
 

m
e

rg
e

d
 w

it
h

 G
a

y
to

n
 L

ib
ra

ry
 i
n

 A
u

g
u

s
t 

2
0

1
3

. 

F
ro

m
 D

ir
e

c
to

ra
te

 s
c
o

re
c
a

rd
, 

a
s
 n

o
t 

re
p

o
rt

e
d

 i
n

 

C
o

rp
o

ra
te

 s
c
o

re
c
a

rd
.

T
o

 b
e

 r
a

is
e

d
 v

ia
 C

H
W

 S
c
ru

ti
n

y
 L

e
a

d
s
' 

m
e

e
ti
n

g
.

Y
e

s

$
sw

q
5

u
km

k.
xl

s
P

a
g

e
 4

 o
f 

6

16



In
d

ic
a

to
r 

 
S

e
le

c
te

d
 f

o
r 

m
o

n
it

o
ri

n
g

Q
2

 

s
ta

tu
s

U
p

d
a

te
 a

t 
Q

2
C

o
m

m
e

n
ts

 a
n

d
 a

c
ti

o
n

s
 f

ro
m

 Q
2

 

m
e

e
ti

n
g

K
e

e
p

 o
n

 

W
a

tc
h

 

L
is

t?

P
e

rc
e

n
ta

g
e

 o
f 

n
e

w
 s

ta
rt

e
rs

 

w
h

o
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d

 t
h

e
 

m
a

n
d

a
to

ry
 E

q
u

a
lit

y
 &

 

D
iv

e
rs

it
y
 e

-l
e

a
rn

in
g

 m
o

d
u

le
 

w
it
h

in
g

 6
 m

o
n

th
s
 o

f 

c
o

m
m

e
n

c
in

g
 e

m
p

lo
y
m

e
n

t

Q
2

, 
2

0
1

3
/1

4
H

R
N

e
w

ly
 s

e
le

c
te

d
.

A
d

d
 t

o
 w

a
tc

h
 l
is

t
Y

e
s

S
u

p
p

o
rt

in
g

 o
u

r 
to

w
n

 c
e

n
tr

e
, 

o
u

r 
lo

c
a

l 
s

h
o

p
p

in
g

 c
e

n
tr

e
s

 a
n

d
 b

u
s

in
e

s
s

e
s

N
o

n
e

 t
h

is
 q

u
a

rt
e

r.

E
ff

e
c

ti
v

e
 &

 E
ff

ic
ie

n
t 

O
rg

a
n

is
a

ti
o

n
 (

fo
rm

e
rl

y
 C

u
s

to
m

e
r 

&
 c

o
rp

o
ra

te
 h

e
a

lt
h

; 
a

n
d

 R
e

s
o

u
rc

e
s

)

%
 h

o
u

s
e

h
o

ld
e

r 
p

la
n

n
in

g
 

a
p

p
lic

a
ti
o

n
s
 a

p
p

ro
v
e

d

Q
1

, 
2

0
1

2
/1

3
 

(f
o

rm
e

r 

m
e

a
s
u

re
 

s
e

le
c
te

d
 Q

2
 

2
0

1
1

/1
2

)

H
R

Q
2

 2
0

1
3

/1
4

 r
e

tu
rn

 i
s
 7

3
%

 a
g

a
in

s
t 

a
 t

a
rg

e
t 

o
f 

9
0

%
. 

W
h

ils
t 

b
e

lo
w

 t
a

rg
e

t 
le

v
e

ls
 t

h
e

 C
o

u
n

c
il’

s
 

1
0

0
%

 a
p

p
e

a
l 
s
u

c
c
e

s
s
 r

a
te

 o
n

 h
o

u
s
e

h
o

ld
e

r 

a
p

p
lic

a
ti
o

n
s
 o

v
e

r 
th

is
 q

u
a

rt
e

r 
w

o
u

ld
 s

u
g

g
e

s
t 

th
a

t 
th

e
 r

e
fu

s
a

ls
 a

re
 r

o
b

u
s
t.

 I
n

fo
rm

a
ti
o

n
 o

n
 t

h
e

 

im
p

a
c
t 

o
f 

p
re

-a
p

p
lic

a
ti
o

n
 a

d
v
ic

e
 i
s
 t

h
a

t 
w

h
e

re
 

a
d

v
ic

e
 i
s
 f

o
llo

w
e

d
 s

u
b

s
e

q
u

e
n

t 
a

p
p

lic
a

ti
o

n
s
 a

re
 

g
e

n
e

ra
lly

 a
p

p
ro

v
e

d
. 

O
ff

ic
e

rs
 a

re
 c

o
n

s
id

e
ri
n

g
 

h
o

w
 t

o
 f

u
rt

h
e

r 
p

ro
m

o
te

 t
h

is
 s

e
rv

ic
e

 t
o

 i
m

p
ro

v
e

 

a
p

p
ro

v
a

l 
ra

te
.

Y
e

s

P
ro

p
o

rt
io

n
 o

f 
w

e
b

 f
o

rm
s
 a

n
d

 

w
e

b
 v

is
it
s
 a

s
 a

 p
e

rc
e

n
ta

g
e

 o
f 

o
v
e

ra
ll 

c
o

n
ta

c
t 

Q
1

 2
0

1
3

/1
4

A
Q

2
 2

0
1

3
/1

4
 r

e
tu

rn
 i
s
 6

9
%

 a
g

a
in

s
t 

a
 t

a
rg

e
t 

o
f 

7
0

%

N
o

S
ta

ff
 s

ic
k
n

e
s
s
 -

 a
v
e

ra
g

e
 d

a
y
s
 

p
e

r 
F

T
E

 e
x
c
lu

d
in

g
 s

c
h

o
o

ls

Q
1

 2
0

1
3

/1
4

H
R

Q
2

 2
0

1
3

/1
4

 r
e

tu
rn

 i
s
 9

.3
9

 d
a

y
s
 a

g
a

in
s
t 

a
 t

a
rg

e
t 

o
f 

8
.1

8
 d

a
y
s
. 

O
v
e

ra
ll 

p
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e

 (
in

c
lu

d
in

g
 

s
c
h

o
o

ls
) 

is
 u

n
c
h

a
n

g
e

d
 s

in
c
e

 Q
1

. 
 H

o
w

e
v
e

r 
th

e
 

p
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e

 e
x
c
lu

d
in

g
 S

c
h

o
o

ls
 h

a
s
 f

u
rt

h
e

r 

d
e

c
lin

e
d

. 
 A

 p
la

n
 f

o
r 

im
p

ro
v
in

g
 t

h
is

 w
a

s
 a

g
re

e
d

 

a
t 

C
S

B
 i
n

 O
c
to

b
e

r.

R
e

q
u

e
s
t 

fo
r 

s
ig

h
t 

o
f 

re
p

o
rt

 a
n

a
ly

s
in

g
  

c
a

u
s
e

s
 o

f 
a

b
s
e

n
c
e

.

Y
e

s

$
sw

q
5

u
km

k.
xl

s
P

a
g

e
 5

 o
f 

6

17



In
d

ic
a

to
r 

 
S

e
le

c
te

d
 f

o
r 

m
o

n
it

o
ri

n
g

Q
2

 

s
ta

tu
s

U
p

d
a

te
 a

t 
Q

2
C

o
m

m
e

n
ts

 a
n

d
 a

c
ti

o
n

s
 f

ro
m

 Q
2

 

m
e

e
ti

n
g

K
e

e
p

 o
n

 

W
a

tc
h

 

L
is

t?

W
o

rk
fo

rc
e

 w
it
h

 I
P

A
D

 i
n

 l
a

s
t 

1
2

 m
o

n
th

s

Q
1

 2
0

1
3

/1
4

L
R

Q
2

 2
0

1
3

/1
4

 r
e

tu
rn

 i
s
 8

6
%

 a
g

a
in

s
t 

a
 t

a
rg

e
t 

o
f 

9
5

%
. 

P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e

 h
a

s
 r

is
e

n
 s

ig
n

if
ic

a
n

tl
y
 s

in
c
e

 

Q
1

. 
 H

R
D

 B
u

s
in

e
s
s
 P

a
rt

n
e

rs
 a

re
 c

o
n

ti
n

u
in

g
 t

o
 

w
o

rk
 w

it
h

 D
ir
e

c
to

ra
te

s
 t

o
 i
m

p
ro

v
e

 p
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e

.

Y
e

s

%
 f

o
re

c
a

s
t 

v
a

ri
a

ti
o

n
 f

ro
m

 

b
u

d
g

e
t:

 c
a

p
it
a

l 
e

x
p

e
n

d
it
u

re

Q
4

 2
0

1
2

/1
3

-
N

o
 l
o

n
g

e
r 

re
p

o
rt

e
d

 i
n

 D
ir
e

c
to

ra
te

 o
r 

C
o

rp
o

ra
te

 

s
c
o

re
c
a

rd
. 

R
e

fe
r 

to
 B

u
d

g
e

t 
M

o
n

it
o

ri
n

g
 r

e
p

o
rt

.

N
/A

O
v
e

ra
ll 

c
u

rr
e

n
t 

te
n

a
n

ts
' 
re

n
t 

a
rr

e
a

rs
 (

£
k
)

Q
4

 2
0

1
2

/1
3

H
R

Q
2

 2
0

1
3

/1
4

 r
e

tu
rn

 i
s
 £

4
9

6
k
 a

g
a

in
s
t 

a
 t

a
rg

e
t 

o
f 

£
4

4
0

k
. 

F
ig

u
re

 c
a

lc
u

la
te

d
 i
m

m
e

d
ia

te
ly

 p
ri
o

r 
to

 

d
ir
e

c
t 

d
e

b
it
 r

u
n

 w
h

ic
h

 w
o

u
ld

 r
e

s
u

lt
 i
n

 a
 c

re
d

it
 o

f 

a
p

p
ro

x
im

a
te

ly
 £

2
4

k
 (

w
h

ic
h

 w
o

u
ld

 r
e

d
u

c
e

 

a
rr

e
a

rs
 t

o
 £

4
7

2
k
).

  
D

e
ta

ile
d

 a
n

a
ly

s
is

 o
f 

th
e

 

im
p

a
c
t 

o
f 

s
p

a
re

 r
o

o
m

 s
u

b
s
id

y
 i
s
 o

n
g

o
in

g
 a

n
d

 

re
s
o

u
rc

e
s
 t

a
rg

e
te

d
 a

t 
th

o
s
e

 c
a

s
e

s
 r

e
q

u
ir
in

g
 

in
te

n
s
iv

e
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
. 

F
ro

m
 D

ir
e

c
to

ra
te

 s
c
o

re
c
a

rd
 

a
s
 n

o
t 

re
p

o
rt

e
d

 i
n

 C
o

rp
o

ra
te

 s
c
o

re
c
a

rd
.

Y
e

s

A
c
c
id

e
n

t 
in

c
id

e
n

t 
ra

te
; 

a
n

d

R
e

p
o

rt
a

b
le

 i
n

ju
ry

 f
re

q
u

e
n

c
y
 

ra
te

Q
1

 2
0

1
3

/1
4

H
G

  
  

  
  

H
G

Q
2

 2
0

1
3

/1
4

 r
e

tu
rn

s
 a

re
 1

6
 a

g
a

in
s
t 

a
 t

a
rg

e
t 

o
f 

1
,3

5
5

 a
n

d
 0

 a
g

a
in

s
t 

a
 t

a
rg

e
t 

o
f 

0
.5

 r
e

s
p

e
c
ti
v
e

ly
. 

S
e

e
 a

ls
o

 u
p

d
a

te
 i
s
s
u

e
d

 o
n

 2
0

/0
9

/2
0

1
3

.

N
o

$
sw

q
5

u
km

k.
xl

s
P

a
g

e
 6

 o
f 

6

18



 
 

 

REPORT FOR: 

 

CABINET 

Date of Meeting: 

 

12 December 2013 

Subject: 

 

Revenue and Capital Monitoring for Quarter 2 as 
at 30 September 2013  

Key Decision:   Yes 
 

Responsible Officer: 

 

Simon George, Director of Finance and 
Assurance 

Portfolio Holder: 

 

Councillor Tony Ferrari, Portfolio Holder for  
Finance 
 

Exempt: 

 

No  

Decision subject to 

Call-in: 

No, as the decision is for noting only 

Enclosures: 

 

Appendix 1 - Revenue Directorates Summary 
Appendix 2 - MTFS Tracker 
Appendix 3 - Debt Management 

 

Section 1 – Summary and Recommendations 
 

This report sets out the Council’s revenue and capital monitoring position as at 30 
September 2013: 
 
Recommendations:  

1. To note the revenue and capital forecast outturn position at the end of 
Quarter 2 (September 2013);  

 
2. To note the Capital virement detailed in paragraphs 49 to 50. 

 
Reason (for recommendation) 
To ensure that Cabinet is updated on the forecast revenue and capital financial 
position for 2013/14 and budget virements are agreed in line with Financial 
Regulations. 

 

Agenda Item 8
Pages 19 to 52

19



 

2 

Section 2 – Report 
 
Introduction 
 

1. The 2013-14 quarter 2 revenue financial monitoring is reporting a pressure to the revenue 
outturn position of £1.88m overspend.  This represents an adverse variance of 1.0% against 
the approved budget of £181.06m as summarised in the table below.  This is an improvement 
of £0.32m since quarter 1. 

 

Directorate 

Quarter 2 
Revenue 
Variance  

£m 

Quarter 1 
Revenue 
Variance  

£m 
Change    

£m 

Resources (0.18) 0.25 (0.43) 

Environment and Enterprise 0.80 0.72 0.08 

Community, Health & Wellbeing  1.18 0.66 0.52 

Children and Families  0.81 0.57 0.24 

Directorate Subtotal 2.61 2.20 0.41 

Corporate/Below the Line  (0.73) 0.00 (0.73) 

General Fund Total 1.88 2.20 (0.32) 

 
 

 
2. The main areas of the £1.88m variance are summarised below :- 

 

• Resources directorate – Customer services & legal savings behind schedule offset by 
savings on the Harrow Help scheme and pension augmentation costs 

• Environment and Enterprise directorate – Public realm services savings delayed due to the 
pause of the PRISM restructure, partially offset by additional parking income 

• Community, Health & Wellbeing – Vacancy, agency & procurement savings plans still 
being developed and the delayed decision on the outsourcing of library services 

• Children and Families – The Teachers’ Centre is facing pressure on achieving income 
targets and Targeted Services is experiencing  additional demand for placements & 
referrals 

 
3. Due to the challenging financial environment and the risks around service demands & delivery, 

directorates face a challenging time to manage and contain existing and  emerging issues.  
Management teams continue to take actions to mitigate these pressures which are monitored 
and reported in a timely way. 

 
Directorates’ Position 
 

4. The Quarter 2 forecast shows a potential net budget overspend of £2.61m on directorate 
budgets, and £1.88m overall after accounting for corporate items.  

 
RESOURCES–UNDER SPEND OF £0.18M 

5. At quarter 2, a forecast under spend of £181k is anticipated, a reduction of £431k from the 
quarter 1 forecast.  The key reasons for this are; 

 

20



 

 3 

• Under spend on Customer Services due to lower than anticipated take up on the Harrow 
Help Scheme (£231k). 

• Finance and Assurance under spend as a result of monthly pension augmentation 
payments being less than budgeted for (£100k). 

• HRD & Shared Services under spend as a result of delay in developing a corporate 
financial management learning and development programme. Approval for carry forward to 
2014-15 will be sought (£50k). 

• Legal & Governance overspend of £50k due to a delay in establishing an expanded 
practice resulting in the budgeted income not being realised in the current year (£100k), 
Mayoralty (£50k) offset by over recovery of Land charges income by £100k. £50k start-up 
costs to expand the practice to another borough were funded from MTFS implementation  

 
ENVIRONMENT AND ENTERPRISE – OVERSPEND £0.80M  

6. At Quarter 2, Environment & Enterprise are reporting a projected overspend of £800k, over the 
total net controllable budget of £23.6m.  This is an increase of £80k from the quarter 1 
forecast.   

7. The key reasons for this increase are; 

• £139k increase in the shortfall of planning and building fee income. 

• £100k increase in property services costs in relation to MTFS savings associated with 
minimum standard cleaning due to contract being re-tendered and no savings 
materialising. 

• £47k increase in Community safety costs associated with the additional staffing costs to 
achieve parking income. 
 

8. These increases are offset by; 

• £100k Directorate management overspend reported at Quarter 1 will be funded by one-off 
carry forwards from 2012-13 year end. 

• £105k Transformation monies in relation to opening & locking gates (£70k) and dog waste 
collection (£35k) have been agreed.  At Q1, these were reported as overspends.  

9. Unachieved MTFS savings [red rated] of £3,480k have been partly offset by additional forecast 
parking revenue £1,297k, vacancies held circa £500k and overachieved income including 
rents £99k, capital recharges £506k, recoverable expenses £85k and licences £90k. 

10. The budgets are being robustly monitored by the service and other opportunities are being 
explored in order to reduce the forecast further by the end of the financial year. 

 
COMMUNITY, HEALTH AND WELLBEING – OVERSPEND £1.18M 
 
Adult Services 

11. Adults Services are reporting a projected overspend of £154k against a net controllable budget 
of £56.235m.  This is an increase on quarter 1 of £14k.    Pressures of £0.5m have been 
identified around the achievement of the MTFS savings for Day Care and Residential Strategic 
Reviews, although the savings will be achieved in full over the two year period.   

 
12. There are still concerns about the values of the NHS transfer grant to be negotiated with the 

CCG. 
 
13. A significant part of the pressures in year are being alleviated by the early achievement of the 

14-15 Supporting People savings, together with a review of income on the Placement budget.  
The service is achieving a virtually balanced budget except for the late savings allocation. 
Those in relation to vacancy management and agency are proving difficult to achieve. 

 

21



 

 4 

14. The majority of Adults budgets are demand led and Harrow Council has a statutory duty to 
meet vulnerable adults’ needs.  It is therefore challenging to strike a balance between 
safeguarding adults against harm and abuse and balancing the budgets at the same time 
however. 

Community And Culture 

15. Community and Culture are reporting a projected overspend of £780k against a total net 
controllable budget of £4.437m. A significant part of the forecast overspend is due to the 
delayed decision making for outsourcing Library and Leisure services. The estimated impact of 
this is £545k in 2013/14. 

 
16. A request for an allocation from the Council’s general contingency will be made later in the 

year when the figure can be finalised following confirmation of the start date of the new 
contract. Other material pressures relate to; unachievable MTFS income targets at Harrow 
Arts Centre (£110k), unachievable MTFS savings against employee budgets across the 
Directorate (£113k), of which £52k relates to late corporate savings.  

 
Housing General Fund 

17. The Housing General fund is reporting a projected overspend of £9k against a total net 
controllable budget of £3,898k.  

18. B&B net expenditure is expected to be lower than budget despite a number of families 
reaching 101 as at 24 Sep 2013. The additional resources required for the procurement of 
Private Sector Lease agreements has been addressed following the realignment of £340k 
from B&B budgets agreed at period 04. 

 
19. Additional risks have been identified but not included in forecast outturn.   There remains 

uncertainty around the impact of the Welfare Reforms and the situation continues to be 
monitored  

 
20. Due to welfare reform, landlords are now very nervous about housing benefit dependant 

households, and there is increasing competition between councils who are offering large 
incentive payments.  We have now reached the point where we must now also offer more 
generous financial packages as the only way for us to effectively procure sufficient properties 
to stabilise and then reduce B&B use.   

 
Housing Revenue Account 
 

21. The forecast surplus for the year at quarter 2 is £633k which is £177k more than the budget.  
This is due mainly to lower than expected spend on the external decorations programme 
which will be delivered as part of the wider enveloping capital scheme. 

 

 
Revised 
Budget 

Forecast 
Outturn 

Quarter 
2 

Variance 

Quarter 
2 

Variance 

Quarter 
1 

Variance 

  £000 £000 £000 % £000 

Balance b/f -3,469 -3,175 294 -8 294 

(Surplus)/ 
Deficit -456 -633 -177 39 189 

Balance c/f -3,925 -3,808 117 -3 483 

  
Public Health 

22. It is likely that there will be larger than anticipated balances at the end of the financial year.  
Expenditure to date is lower than anticipated, largely due to delays in providers submitting 

22



 

 5 

invoices for payment as a result of contract finalisation but also staff vacancies, delays in 
commencing some of the investment projects, together with prudent assumptions made 
around contingencies and liabilities to avoid over committing the grant.   

 
23. These balances will be carried forward within specific Public Health reserves and will enable 

the funding of expenditure committed in 2013/14 and provide capacity for additional one-off 
projects to be delivered (subject to the relevant approvals).  

 
24. NHS England have recently announced the extension of the ring-fenced grant for a further 

year to 31st March 2016. A risk of approx. £115k remains around the payment of the legacy 
invoices – it is assumed that these will be funded nationally or by the CCG, although further 
guidance is awaited. 

Transformation 
25. (£229k) overspend - principally reflecting the additional procurement savings across the 

division notionally held in this area.  A number of projects are underway which it is hoped will 
enable this saving to be achieved but this will be monitored and reduced when the programme 
has been quantified with more certainty. 

 
CHILDREN & FAMILIES - OVERSPEND £0.81M 

26. As at period 6 the Children and Families Directorate is forecasting to be overspent by £815k 
on Council funded areas. The main areas of pressure are Childrens’ Placements £217k, Social 
Worker Staffing £111k, Teachers Centre shortfall of income £250k, Special Needs Transport 
£66k and Children with Disabilities clients and staffing £173k. The main movements from the 
previous period are increases in  pressures in Special Needs Transport of £66k, Children with 
Disabilities of £63k and Childrens’ Placements of £66k. 

 
CORPORATE BUDGETS  

Interest and Finance Charges  
27. We are currently estimating a £0.730m under spend largely attributable to savings on 

minimum revenue provision.  This is a result of the slippage that occurred on the 2012-13 
capital programme. 

 
Central Contingency  

28. The 2013/14 Central Contingency is £3.17m and is set aside to fund unforeseen pressures 
arising in-year.  To date directorates have identified potential draw downs of £960k from the 
contingency.   

 
Levies.   

29. These are forecast to be on budget.    
 
MTFS Implementation Tracker 
 

30. The 2013-14 budget includes approved MTFS net savings of £22.8m.  
 
31. Appendix 2 attached lists the position on implementation against all of the savings and 

growth included in 2013-14. Red rated savings items (those unlikely to be delivered in-year) 
in 2013-14 total £5.574m. The table below summarises the position across directorates for 
the savings items included. 

23



 

 6 

 

SAVINGS TRACKER SUMMARY 

  Resources 
Environment 
& Enterprise 

Community, 
Health and 
Wellbeing 

Children 
& 

Families Total 

  £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 

Red 81 3,480 1,711 302 5,574 

Amber 1,821 925 1,285 478 4,509 

Green 2,602 3,085 3,711 2,381 11,779 

Total 4,504 7,490 6,707 3,161 21,862 

 
 

32. A number of the savings rated red, but not all, have an ongoing impact in 2014-15.  The 
MTFS refresh process will have addressed a number of these issues.  

 
33. Officers continue to work to deliver the MTFS savings.   

 
Inflation and Corporate Items 
 

34. The April 2013 pay award of 1% has been implemented and an inflation allocation of £925k 
has been made to service directorates.  

 
Carry Forwards and Earmarked Reserves 
 

35. The cabinet approved 2012-13 carry-forwards of £3.268m have been included within 
individual directorate budgets. 

36. Earmarked reserve balances including the Local Authority Area (LAA) Grant £339k and the 
Housing Benefit PFI grant £41k have been included within the directorate’s budgets. 

 
37. The balance on the Transformation and Priority Initiatives Fund (TPIF) brought forward from 

2012-13 was £1.117m.  The following draw downs against the fund have been approved: 
 

• £100k Welfare Reform 

• £100k Reversal of wilderness parks saving 

• £80k Rapid response cleansing and volunteer support service 

• £50k Neighbourhood champions scheme 

• £60k Rapid response parks maintenance service 

• £90k Community engagement recycling support team 

• £75k Beat sweeper support to secondary shopping areas 

• £70k Opening and locking gates in parks and cemeteries 

• £35k Dog waste collection 
 
In addition the following commitments had previously been made: 

• £300k Circles of Support 

• £154k Filling potholes 

 This leaves a balance of £3k on the fund. 

 Reserves and Provisions 

38. The Council must hold adequate provisions and reserves balances against known and 
anticipated events and in respect of its statutory duties as appropriate. General non earmarked 
balances stand at £8.646m.  All the provisions are reviewed on a quarterly basis.  As at 

24



 

 7 

quarter 2 the Council has adequate provisions in respect of Insurance, Litigation and 
Employment cases. 

Grants 

39. The balance on unringfenced grant has been increased by £168k due to additional Education 
grant to be received in 2013-14 and this has been included within the directorate’s budgets. 

Debt Management 

40. The latest position on Council Tax, NNDR and Housing Benefits bad debts provisions is 
included within Appendix 3. 

 
 

Capital Programme  

41. The 2013/14 capital programme agreed by Council in February 2013, adjusted for slippage 
from 2012/13 outturn and other budget movements totals £80.2m at Quarter 2. The revised 
budget as at Quarter 2 period includes £30.4m slippage from 2012/13 and additional grant 
funded expenditure of £0.6m. 

 
 

 £m % 
Total capital budget for the year       80.2  

Total spend forecast in the year             61.2 76 

Variance against the budget                    (19.0) (24) 

 

The main reasons for variances are as follows: 
 
Children and Families (6.77m) 

42. The programme is being reprofiled in line with the additional grant funding made available by 
DfE for the School expansion programme. 

 
Community, Health and Wellbeing (£2.05m) 

43. The largest element of this is slippage at Headstone Manor while the Heritage Lottery funding 
is confirmed (£850k).  MOSAIC implementation has been delayed due to delays in the release 
of software by the supplier (£350k).  Slippage is occurring on a number of other projects within 
the directorate. 

 
Resources (£1.64m) 

44. Spend is slipping to 2014-15 on a number of IT and BTP projects.  Some projects, e.g. Mobile 
and Flexible working had delayed starts, pending approval, SAP improvements has been 
delayed due to a change freezes while SAP is upgraded. The Waste hardware refresh has 
been deferred as the equipment does not need to be replaced yet.  

Environment and Enterprise (£1.30m) 

45. Harrow Card is no longer progressing (£460k). Pinner Park Farm has slippage of (£460k) and 
the Carbon Reduction Programme (175k). High Priority Plan Maintenance Corporate Property 
has a saving of  (£72k) as a result of escalating costs at the Harrow Arts Centre leading to the 
work being stopped. 

 
Housing revenue Account (0.611m) 

46. The variance reflects a number of minor unders and overs within the housing programme. 

25



 

 8 

 
Below the Line Items (£6.6m) 

47. The underspend of (£6.6m) represents budget not being required in respect of land 
acquisitions (£4.5m), potential BTP projects not being developed (£1.6m) and funding for the 
school expansion programme not being required from Harrow resources (£0.5m) as grant 
funding has been obtained from the DfE.  

 
The table on the next page shows the totals by directorate. 
 
 
 
 
 
Capital Programme 

Directorate 
Original 

Programme CFWD's 
Adjust 
ments 

TOTAL 
BUDGET Forecast 

Forecast 
Variance CFWD's 

                

Community, Health & Wellbeing 3,545 2,543 1,961 8,048 5,998 -2,050 2,050 

Children & Families 6,404 11,997 4,811 23,212 16,440 -6,772 6,772 

Environment & Enterprise 13,798 7,007 -348 20,456 19,154 -1,303 681 

Resources 5,390 8,059 0 13,449 11,814 -1,635 1,635 

                

TOTAL GENERAL FUND 29,137 29,605 6,424 65,166 53,406 -11,760 11,138 

                

HRA 7,634 757 0 8,390 7,779 -611 0 

                

TOTAL GENERAL FUND & 
HRA 

36,770 30,362 6,424 73,556 61,185 -12,371 11,138 

                

BELOW THE LINE ITEMS 12,411 0 -5,818 6,593 0 -6,593 0 

                

TOTAL CAPITAL 
PROGRAMME 

49,181 30,362 607 80,149 61,185 -18,964 11,138 

                

NOTE:               

General Fund Funding:               

Grant -8,747 -14,076 -4,961 -27,784 -21,356 6,428 -6,400 

Section 106   -427 -12 -439 -432 7 -8 

RCCO   -63 -47 -110 -47 63 -65 

Capital Receipt -12,000 0   -12,000 -2,575 0 0 

Borrowing -8,390 -15,039 -1,404 -24,833 -28,996 5,262 -4,666 

TOTAL GENERAL FUND -29,137 -29,605 -6,424 -65,166 -53,406 11,760 -11,138 

                

HRA Funding:               

Grant   -42   -42 -42 0 0 

DRF -7,633 -715   -8,348 -7,737 611 0 

TOTAL HRA -7,633 -757 0 -8,390 -7,779 611 0 

 
 

 
48. At this stage it is anticipated there will be no need to call on below the line items. 

26



 

 9 

Virement 

49. The following virement has been approved under delegated authority within the HRA capital 
programme: 

 
Transfer from             External decorations         -£133,510 
Transfer to                 Cyclical maintenance        +£133,510 

 
50. The reason for the virement is to ensure adequate funding for cyclical programme in 2013-14.  

External decorations are being delivered as part of the wider enveloping programme within 
HRA Capital schemes. 

 
 

 
Legal Implications 
 

51. There are none directly related to this report. 
 
Financial Implications 
 

52. Financial matters are integral to the report. 
 
Performance Issues 
 

53. Good financial performance is essential to achieving a balanced budget.  The financial 
performance is integrated with the strategic performance of the Council through quarterly 
Improvement Boards for each Directorate where the financial position is considered at the 
same time as performance against key projects, service KPIs (including customer data and 
complaints) and workforce. Monitoring of finance and performance is reported regularly to the 
Corporate Strategic Board and Cabinet and is also considered by the Council's Performance 
and Finance Scrutiny Sub- Committee. 

54. The overall projected percentage variance from the general fund revenue budget is 1.0% 
overspent, £1.876m.  Further detail at service level is shown in appendix 1.  

55. MTFS Implementation. Appendix 2 details progress on the investment and savings items 
approved as part of the 2013-14 budget. The overall position on savings is that 54% of the 
savings are RAG rated as green, 21% RAG rated amber and 25% RAG rated red. 

56. There is a performance target of 90% of the approved capital programme for 2013-14 being 
spent in year. The current projection is for spend excluding below the line items to be 83% of 
budget.  Actual to date is 19%, with a further 15% of purchase orders raised. 

57. Council Tax Collection. The collection rate is slightly below the target profile at 56.76% against 
a profile of 57%. This is a worse position by 0.8% than the same time last year when 57.56% 
was achieved. This reflects non or under payments by the 12,000 working age recipients of 
council tax support, who previously did not pay Council Tax.  The position is being monitored 
and recovery action taken as appropriate.  

58. Business Rates Collection. The collection rate is -2.62% below profile at 58.38%.  Payments 
have been delayed in relation to the properties included within the leisure and libraries 
contract.  This is pending finalisation of the charitable status of the new taxpayer and 
mandatory relief granted. 

 
Environmental Impact 
 

59. There are none directly related to this report. 

27



 

 10 

 
Risk Management Implications 
 

60. The risks to the council and how they are being managed are set out in the report:  
 
Risks included on Directorate risk registers? Yes 

 
Equalities Implications 
 

61. There are no direct equalities impacts arising from the decisions within this report.  
 
Corporate Priorities 
 

62. This report deals with Revenue and Capital monitoring which is key to delivering the Council’s 
corporate priorities. 

 

Section 3 - Statutory Officer Clearance 

    
Name:  Simon George x  Chief Financial Officer 

  
Date: 2 December 2013 

   

   on behalf of the 

Name:  Jessica Farmer x  Monitoring Officer 

 
Date: 18 November 2013 
 

   
 

 

28



 

 11 

Section 4 – Performance Officer Clearance 
    

on behalf of the 

Name:  Alex Dewsnap x  Divisional Director Strategic 
Commissioning 

  
Date: 30 November 2013 

   

 

Section 5 – Environmental Impact Officer Clearance 
   on behalf of the 

Name:  Andrew Baker x  Corporate Director 

  
Date: 13 November 2013 

  (Environment & Enterprise) 

 

Section 6 - Contact Details and Background Papers 
 

Contact:  Dawn Calvert: dawn.calvert@harrow.gov.uk 

Background Papers: Agenda for Cabinet on Thursday 14 February 2013, 7.30 pm 

Agenda for Cabinet on Thursday 12 September 2012, 6.30pm 
 

Call-In Waived by the 

Chairman of Overview and 

Scrutiny Committee 

 

  
NOT APPLICABLE 
 
 
 
[Call –in does not apply to decisions 
that are for noting only] 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

29



Appendix 1: Revenue Directorates Summary 

 12

  Revised 
Budget 

Forecast 
Outturn 

Quarter  
2 

Variance 

Variance Quarter 
1 

variance 

  £000 £000 £000 % £000 

Resources           

Controllable Budget           

Director of Resources 944 1,051 106 11.3% (13) 

Customer Services 5,607 5,405 (202) (3.6%) 71 

Finance & Assurance 5,051 5,019 (32) (0.6%) (15) 

HRD & Shared Services (1,780) (1,813) (33) 1.9% 9 

Legal & Governance 1,360 1,410 50 3.7% 151 

Procurement (77) (64) 13 (16.3%) 90 

Strategic Commissioning 1,567 1,483 (84) (5.3%) (43) 

Total Controllable Budget 12,672 12,491 (181) (1.4%) 250 

Uncontrollable Budget 17,439 17,439 0 0.0% 0 
Total Directorate Budget 30,111 29,930 (181) (0.6%) 250 

            

Environment and Enterprise           
Controllable Budget           

Directorate Management 594 594 0 0.0% 100 

Community Safety (4,084) (4,956) (872) (21.4%) (919) 

Property & Infrastructure 8,722 8,716 (6) (0.1%) (162) 

Public Realm Services 17,896 19,303 1,407 7.9% 1,562 

Enterprise 451 722 271 60.1% 139 
Total Controllable Budget 23,579 24,379 800 3.4% 720 

Uncontrollable Budget 14,944 14,944 0 0.0% 0 
Total Directorate Budget 38,523 39,323 800 2.1% 720 

            

Community, Health and 
Wellbeing 

          

Controllable Budget           

Adult Services 56,235 56,389 154 0.3% 140 

Community and Culture 4,347 5,127 780 17.9% 380 

Housing General Fund 3,898 3,907 9 0.2% -93 

Public Health 626 626 0 0.0% 0 

Transformation 192 421 229 119.3% 228 

Total Controllable Budget 65,298 66,470 1,172 1.8% 655 

Uncontrollable Budget 13,137 13,137 0 0.0% 0 

Total Directorate Budget 78,435 79,607 1,172 1.5% 655 

            
Children and Families           

Controllable Budget           

Management & Business Support 

3,526 3,526 0 0.0% 0 

Early Intervention Services 5,160 5,132 (28) (0.5%) 0 

Targeted Services 16,503 16,831 328 2.0% 262 

Commissioning & Schools 2,857 3,133 276 9.7% 250 

Special Needs 7,925 8,164 239 3.0% 60 

Schools 37 37 0 0.0% 0 
Total Controllable Budget 36,008 36,823 815 2.3% 572 

Uncontrollable Budget 10,047 10,047 0 0.0% 0 

Total Directorate Budget 46,055 46,870 815 1.8% 572 

            

Total Directorate Budgets 193,124 195,730 2,606 1.3% 2,197 

            

Corporate Items -11511 -12241 -730 0% 0 

            

Total Budget Requirement 181,613 183,489 1,876 1.0% 2,197 

 
 

30



M
E

D
IU

M
 T

E
R

M
 F

IN
A

N
C

IA
L

 S
T

R
A

T
E

G
Y

 2
0

1
3

-1
4

 I
M

P
L

E
M

E
N

T
A

T
IO

N
A

p
p

e
n

d
ix

 2

2
0

1
3

-1
4

2
0

1
3

-1
4

 

R
A

G
C

o
m

m
e

n
ts

O
ff

ic
e

r 
L

e
a

d

£
0

0
0

S
ta

tu
s

R
E

S
O

U
R

C
E

S

In
v
e

s
tm

e
n

t 
in

 S
e

rv
ic

e
s

C
u

s
to

m
e

r 
S

e
rv

ic
e

s

W
e

b
 d

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 
&

 l
ic

e
n

c
e

s
1

0
G

O
n

 T
ra

c
k

J
o

n
a

th
a

n
 M

ilb
o

u
rn

IT
 &

 t
e

x
t 
a

le
rt

s
5

0
G

O
n

 T
ra

c
k

J
o

n
a

th
a

n
 M

ilb
o

u
rn

H
e

lp
lin

e
 I
n

c
o

m
e

 s
h

o
rt

fa
ll

8
0

G

O
n

 T
ra

c
k

J
o

n
a

th
a

n
 M

ilb
o

u
rn

C
a

rd
 P

a
y
m

e
n

t 
S

y
s
te

m
 

9
2

G
J
o

n
 T

u
rn

e
r

IT
 /
 P

M
O

B
T

P
 C

o
n

tr
a

c
t 
In

d
e

x
a

ti
o

n
6

0
G

R
a

h
im

T
ra

n
s
fe

r 
fr

o
m

 c
a

p
it
a

l 
- 

 M
ic

ro
s
o

ft
 a

n
n

u
a

l 
lic

e
n

c
e

 

c
o

s
ts

 m
o

re
 e

c
o

n
o

m
ic

 t
h

a
n

 b
u

y
in

g

8
8

A
A

c
tu

a
l 
c
o

s
ts

 u
n

k
n

o
w

n
 -

 C
a

p
it
a

 s
ti
ll 

in
 d

is
c
u

s
s
io

n
s
 w

it
h

 

M
ic

ro
s
o

ft

R
a

h
im

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 C
o

m
m

is
s

io
n

in
g

L
o

c
a

l 
In

fo
rm

a
ti
o

n
 S

y
s
te

m
 L

ic
e

n
c
e

s
 a

n
d

 R
u

n
n

in
g

 

C
o

s
ts

1
8

G
A

le
x
 D

e
w

s
n

a
p

R
e

d
u

c
ti
o

n
 i
n

 D
A

T
 c

o
n

tr
ib

u
ti
o

n
 d

u
e

 t
o

 P
C

T
 b

u
d

g
e

t 

re
d

u
c
ti
o

n
s
 (

re
v
e

rs
a

l 
o

f 
o

n
e

 o
ff

 g
ro

w
th

 i
n

 2
0

1
2

-1
3

)

-2
5

G
A

le
x
 D

e
w

s
n

a
p

E
x
p

e
ri

a
n

 &
 L

IS
3

G
A

le
x
 D

e
w

s
n

a
p

R
e

fr
e

s
h

 o
f 

R
e

s
id

e
n

ts
 P

a
n

e
l

1
0

G
A

le
x
 D

e
w

s
n

a
p

H
R

D

C
a

s
h

ie
rs

 S
e

rv
ic

e
 R

e
s
ili

e
n

c
e

5
0

G
n

e
e

d
e

d
 a

n
d

 b
e

in
g

 u
s
e

d
F

e
rn

C
o

rp
o

ra
te

 s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 s

a
v
in

g
s
 s

h
o

rt
fa

ll
2

0
G

J
o

n
 T

u
rn

e
r

In
c
re

a
s
e

d
 R

e
s
o

u
rc

e
s
 i
n

 P
a

y
ro

ll
3

5
G

J
o

n
 T

u
rn

e
r

R
e

d
u

c
e

d
 W

L
W

A
 S

L
A

 I
n

c
o

m
e

 t
o

 P
a

y
ro

ll
2

0
A

P
o

s
it
io

n
 s

u
b

je
c
t 
to

 u
s
e

 o
f 

s
e

rv
ic

e
 w

h
ic

h
 i
s
 b

e
in

g
 n

e
g

o
ti
a

te
d

J
o

n
 T

u
rn

e
r

L
e

g
a

l 
a

n
d

 G
o

v
e

rn
a

n
c

e

L
e

g
a

l 
E

x
p

a
n

s
io

n
 o

f 
C

h
ild

 p
ro

te
c
ti
o

n
1

2
0

G
H

u
g

h

In
d

iv
id

u
a

l 
E

le
c
to

ra
l 
R

e
g

is
tr

a
ti
o

n
1

0
0

G
H

u
g

h

F
in

a
n

c
e

31



M
E

D
IU

M
 T

E
R

M
 F

IN
A

N
C

IA
L

 S
T

R
A

T
E

G
Y

 2
0

1
3

-1
4

 I
M

P
L

E
M

E
N

T
A

T
IO

N
A

p
p

e
n

d
ix

 2

2
0

1
3

-1
4

2
0

1
3

-1
4

 

R
A

G
C

o
m

m
e

n
ts

O
ff

ic
e

r 
L

e
a

d

£
0

0
0

S
ta

tu
s

F
in

a
n

c
e

 T
ra

n
s
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n
 P

ro
je

c
t

2
0

0
A

T
ra

n
s
it
io

n
 p

la
n

 s
ti
ll 

b
e

in
g

 d
e

v
e

lo
p

e
d

. 
 W

ill
 b

e
 d

e
p

e
n

d
e

n
t 
o

n
 

a
g

re
e

m
e

n
t 
to

 c
a

rr
y
 f

o
rw

a
rd

s
 f

ro
m

 2
0

1
2

-1
3

, 
o

th
e

rw
is

e
 s

c
o

p
e

 

w
ill

 n
e

e
d

 t
o

 b
e

 r
e

d
u

c
e

d
.

S
im

o
n

 G
e

o
rg

e

F
in

a
n

c
e

 -
 E

n
d

in
g

 S
e

rv
ic

e
 t
o

 W
L

W
A

2
3

A
P

o
s
it
io

n
 s

u
b

je
c
t 
to

 u
s
e

 o
f 

s
e

rv
ic

e
 w

h
ic

h
 i
s
 b

e
in

g
 n

e
g

o
ti
a

te
d

, 

ti
m

in
g

 a
s
 t
o

 e
n

d
 p

o
in

t 
c
u

rr
e

n
tl
y
 u

n
c
le

a
r

S
im

o
n

 G
e

o
rg

e

R
e

d
u

c
e

d
 S

c
h

o
o

ls
 S

L
A

 I
n

c
o

m
e

2
0

G
S

im
o

n
 G

e
o

rg
e

R
is

k
 A

u
d

it
 a

n
d

 F
ra

u
d

In
te

rn
a

l 
A

u
d

it
 -

 l
o

s
s
 o

f 
in

c
o

m
e

 f
ro

m
 e

n
d

in
g

 

s
e

rv
ic

e
 t
o

 W
L

W
A

1
7

G

N
o

 l
o

s
s
 o

f 
in

c
o

m
e

 a
n

ti
c
ip

a
te

d
 a

s
 W

L
W

A
 i
n

te
n

d
 t
o

 c
o

n
ti
n

u
e

 

to
 u

s
e

 H
a

rr
o

w
 I
n

te
rn

a
l 
A

u
d

it
 S

e
rv

ic
e

s
 f

o
r 

2
0

1
3

/1
4

 -
 c

u
rr

e
n

tl
y
 

in
 p

ro
c
e

s
s
 o

f 
a

g
re

e
in

g
 p

la
n

 i
n

c
lu

d
in

g
 a

u
d

it
 d

a
y
s
.

S
u

s
a

n
 D

ix
s
o

n

C
o

ll
e

c
ti

o
n

s
 a

n
d

 B
e

n
e

fi
ts

A
d

d
it
io

n
a

l 
S

ta
ff

-R
e

v
e

n
u

e
s
 C

T
S

 c
o

lle
c
ti
o

n
1

5
0

G
n

e
e

d
e

d
 a

n
d

 b
e

in
g

 u
s
e

d
 

F
e

rn

H
a

rr
o

w
 H

E
L

P
 s

c
h

e
m

e
1

0
0

G
n

e
e

d
e

d
 a

n
d

 b
e

in
g

 u
s
e

d
F

e
rn

P
F

I 
G

ra
n

t 
R

e
d

u
c
ti
o

n
3

8
G

o
c
c
u

rr
e

d
 s

o
 n

e
e

d
e

d
 a

n
d

 b
e

in
g

 u
s
e

d
F

e
rn

D
W

P
 H

B
 R

e
d

u
c
ti
o

n
 i
n

 A
d

m
in

 G
ra

n
t

2
9

8
G

D
W

P
 b

u
d

g
e

t 
a

n
n

o
u

n
c
e

m
e

n
t 
fo

r 
1

3
-1

4
 r

e
d

u
c
e

d
 s

u
b

s
id

y
 s

o
 

n
e

e
d

e
d

F
e

rn

F
u

n
d

in
g

 f
o

r 
L

o
c
a

lis
e

d
 C

T
B

 c
o

n
s
u

lt
a

ti
o

n
 &

 

Im
p

le
m

e
n

ta
ti
o

n
 (

re
v
e

rs
a

l 
o

f 
o

n
e

 o
ff

 g
ro

w
th

 i
n

 

2
0

1
2

-1
3

)

-1
0

0
G

O
n

e
 o

ff
 i
n

 1
2

/1
3

 o
n

ly
 s

o
 b

u
d

g
e

t 
re

m
o

v
e

d
 i
n

 1
3

/1
4

F
e

rn

P
ro

c
u

re
m

e
n

t

In
v
e

s
tm

e
n

t 
in

 P
ro

c
u

re
m

e
n

t 
T

e
a

m
 t
o

 r
e

s
to

re
 s

iz
e

 

o
f 

te
a

m
 t
o

 t
h

a
t 
fo

r 
2

0
1

1
/1

2

1
4

0
A

N
e

w
 s

tr
u

c
tu

re
 c

o
n

s
u

lt
e

d
 o

n
 h

a
s
 £

1
3

0
k
 b

u
d

g
e

t 
g

a
p

, 
p

lu
s
 

re
c
ru

it
m

e
n

t 
c
o

s
ts

 d
e

p
e

n
d

e
n

t 
o

n
 c

a
rr

y
 f

o
rw

a
rd

.

T
e

rr
y
 B

re
w

e
r

T
o

ta
l 
In

v
e

s
tm

e
n

t 
in

 S
e

rv
ic

e
s

1
,6

1
7

S
a

v
in

g
s

C
u

s
to

m
e

r 
S

e
rv

ic
e

s

M
o

v
e

 l
a

n
d

lo
rd

s
 o

n
lin

e
 w

it
h

 F
2

F
 b

y
 a

p
p

o
in

tm
e

n
t 

o
n

ly
 o

n
 f

ix
e

d
 d

a
y
s

-9
0

G

O
n

 t
ra

c
k
 -

 A
p

p
o

in
tm

e
n

t 
s
y
s
te

m
 l
iv

e
 c

h
a

n
g

e
s
 i
n

 p
la

c
e

J
o

n
a

th
a

n
 M

ilb
o

u
rn

R
e

d
u

c
ti
o

n
 i
n

 s
ta

ff
 h

o
u

rs
 t
o

 m
e

e
t 
d

e
m

a
n

d
 t
h

ro
u

g
h

 

fe
w

e
r 

fu
ll 

ti
m

e
 p

o
s
ts

-6
0

G

O
n

 t
ra

c
k
 t
o

 m
a

k
e

 s
a

v
in

g
s

J
o

n
a

th
a

n
 M

ilb
o

u
rn

U
s
e

 o
f 

A
rt

if
ic

ia
l 
In

te
lli

g
e

n
c
e

 t
o

 d
iv

e
rt

 s
w

it
c
h

b
o

a
rd

 

c
a

lls

-6
0

G

O
n

 t
ra

c
k
 -

 P
ro

je
c
t 
liv

e

J
o

n
a

th
a

n
 M

ilb
o

u
rn

R
e

s
tr

u
c
tu

re
 o

f 
R

e
c
e

p
ti
o

n
 t
o

 e
n

s
u

re
 a

ll 
d

a
y
 c

o
v
e

r
-1

0
G

O
n

 t
ra

c
k
 -

 c
o

m
p

le
te

J
o

n
a

th
a

n
 M

ilb
o

u
rn

32



M
E

D
IU

M
 T

E
R

M
 F

IN
A

N
C

IA
L

 S
T

R
A

T
E

G
Y

 2
0

1
3

-1
4

 I
M

P
L

E
M

E
N

T
A

T
IO

N
A

p
p

e
n

d
ix

 2

2
0

1
3

-1
4

2
0

1
3

-1
4

 

R
A

G
C

o
m

m
e

n
ts

O
ff

ic
e

r 
L

e
a

d

£
0

0
0

S
ta

tu
s

R
e

c
o

n
fi
g

u
re

 O
n

e
 S

to
p

 S
h

o
p

-5
0

G

O
n

 t
ra

c
k
 -

 A
p

p
o

in
tm

e
n

t 
s
y
s
te

m
 l
iv

e
 c

h
a

n
g

e
s
 i
n

 p
la

c
e

J
o

n
a

th
a

n
 M

ilb
o

u
rn

IT
 /
 P

M
O

D
e

le
ti
o

n
 o

f 
P

ro
je

c
t 
M

a
n

a
g

e
r 

-4
8

G
R

a
h

im

D
a

ta
c
e

n
tr

e
 t
o

 r
e

m
a

in
 a

t 
th

e
 C

iv
ic

 C
e

n
tr

e
-2

5
0

G
R

a
h

im

R
e

c
h

a
rg

e
 u

ti
lit

y
 c

o
s
ts

 f
o

r 
c
o

m
p

u
te

r 
ro

o
m

 t
o

 

C
a

p
it
a

 -
 a

llo
c
a

te
d

 t
o

 R
e

s
o

u
rc

e
s

-9
5

A
S

a
v
in

g
 w

a
s
 o

v
e

rs
ta

te
d

 a
n

d
 a

lt
e

rn
a

ti
v
e

 s
a

v
in

g
s
 h

a
v
e

 b
e

e
n

 

id
e

n
ti
fi
e

d
 t
o

 r
e

p
la

c
e

 t
h

is
 i
te

m

R
a

h
im

R
e

d
u

c
ti
o

n
 i
n

 T
e

le
p

h
o

n
y
 C

o
s
ts

 u
ti
lis

in
g

 S
IP

 
-2

0
0

A
O

v
e

rs
ta

te
d

 b
y
 £

5
0

k
. 
N

o
 s

ig
n

if
ic

a
n

t 
p

ro
g

re
s
s
 f

ro
m

 C
a

p
it
a

 o
n

 

p
ro

c
u

re
m

e
n

t

R
a

h
im

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 C
o

m
m

is
s

io
n

in
g

D
e

le
te

 p
o

s
t 
o

f 
S

e
n

io
r 

P
ro

fe
s
s
io

n
a

l 
S

IM
S

-6
0

G
d

e
liv

e
re

d
 

A
le

x
 D

e
w

s
n

a
p

P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e

, 
R

e
s
e

a
rc

h
 &

 A
n

a
ly

s
is

 B
u

s
in

e
s
s
 

C
a

s
e

 a
n

d
 N

e
w

 O
p

e
ra

ti
n

g
 M

o
d

e
l 
S

tr
a

te
g

ic
 

C
o

m
m

is
s
io

n
in

g

-1
3

2
A

C
S

B
 c

o
n

s
id

e
re

d
 t
h

e
 a

g
g

re
g

a
ti
o

n
 b

u
s
in

e
s
s
 c

a
s
e

 a
t 
it
s
 

m
e

e
ti
n

g
 o

n
 2

7
th

 M
a

rc
h

. 
A

s
p

e
c
ts

 o
f 

th
is

 a
ff

e
c
ti
n

g
 p

o
lic

y
 

d
e

liv
e

ry
 w

ill
 n

o
w

 b
e

 d
e

liv
e

re
d

 t
o

 c
o

in
c
id

e
 w

it
h

 a
 n

e
w

 

A
d

m
in

is
tr

a
ti
o

n
 i
n

 M
a

y
 2

0
1

4
. 
T

h
e

re
fo

re
, 
th

e
 s

a
v
in

g
 f

o
r 

2
0

1
3

/1
4

 w
ill

 n
e

e
d

 t
o

 b
e

 d
e

liv
e

re
d

 v
ia

 c
h

a
n

g
e

s
 i
n

 s
ta

ff
in

g
 

p
lu

s
 u

n
d

e
rs

p
e

n
d

 w
it
h

in
 t
h

e
 D

iv
is

io
n

, 
w

h
ic

h
 s

 c
u

rr
e

n
tl
y
 o

n
 

tr
a

c
k
. 
T

h
e

 £
9

7
k
 i
s
 o

n
 t
ra

c
k
 t
o

 b
e

 d
e

liv
e

re
d

 a
lo

n
g

 w
it
h

 t
h

e
 

£
9

3
k
 i
n

 l
in

e
 6

1
 f

o
r 

2
0

1
4

/1
5

 p
lu

s
 t
h

e
 s

tr
u

c
tu

ra
l 
b

u
d

g
e

t 

c
h

a
n

g
e

s
 n

e
c
e

s
s
a

ry
 t
o

 e
n

a
b

le
 t
h

e
 r

e
m

a
in

d
e

r 
o

f 
th

e
 £

1
3

2
k
 t
o

 

b
e

 t
a

k
e

n
 o

u
t 
o

f 
th

e
 b

a
s
e

 b
u

d
g

e
t 
o

n
 a

 p
e

rm
a

n
e

n
t 
b

a
s
is

 i
n

 

2
0

1
4

/1
5

. 
S

a
v
in

g
 i
s
 t
h

e
re

fo
re

 a
m

b
e

r 
o

n
ly

 o
n

 t
h

e
 b

a
s
is

 o
f 

th
e

 

s
tr

u
c
tu

ra
l 
s
a

v
in

g
s
 n

o
t 
b

e
in

g
 d

e
liv

e
re

d
 i
n

 y
e

a
r 

b
u

t 
th

e
re

 w
ill

 

b
e

 n
o

 a
d

v
e

rs
e

 b
u

d
g

e
t 
p

o
s
it
io

n
 d

u
e

 t
o

 d
e

liv
e

ri
n

g
 a

n
 

u
n

d
e

rs
p

e
n

d
 p

o
s
it
io

n
 a

c
ro

s
s
 t
h

e
 D

iv
is

io
n

.

A
le

x
 D

e
w

s
n

a
p

M
e

rg
e

r 
o

f 
C

o
n

s
u

lt
a

ti
o

n
 O

ff
ic

e
r 

in
to

 

C
o

m
m

u
n

ic
a

ti
o

n
s
 t
e

a
m

-4
0

G

d
e

liv
e

re
d

 

A
le

x
 D

e
w

s
n

a
p

C
o

m
m

u
n

ic
a

ti
o

n
s
 -

 r
e

d
u

c
ti
o

n
 i
n

 n
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

c
a

m
p

a
ig

n
s
 

-4
6

G

d
e

liv
e

re
d

A
le

x
 D

e
w

s
n

a
p

H
R

D

33



M
E

D
IU

M
 T

E
R

M
 F

IN
A

N
C

IA
L

 S
T

R
A

T
E

G
Y

 2
0

1
3

-1
4

 I
M

P
L

E
M

E
N

T
A

T
IO

N
A

p
p

e
n

d
ix

 2

2
0

1
3

-1
4

2
0

1
3

-1
4

 

R
A

G
C

o
m

m
e

n
ts

O
ff

ic
e

r 
L

e
a

d

£
0

0
0

S
ta

tu
s

R
e

-n
e

g
o

ti
a

te
 L

&
D

 m
a

n
a

g
e

d
 s

e
rv

ic
e

 c
o

n
tr

a
c
t 
fe

e
s

-3
8

G

D
e

liv
e

re
d

L
e

s
le

y
 C

la
rk

e

R
e

d
u

c
ti
o

n
 i
n

 T
U

 f
a

c
ili

ty
 b

u
d

g
e

t
-3

0
G

W
ill

 b
e

 d
e

liv
e

re
d

. 
 £

2
2

k
 p

e
r 

a
n

n
u

m
 i
n

c
o

m
e

 f
ro

m
 U

n
is

o
n

.
L

e
s
le

y
 C

la
rk

e

P
ri

n
t 
C

o
n

tr
a

c
t 
S

a
v
in

g
s

-3
5

0
A

S
ti
ll 

w
o

rk
in

g
 t
h

ro
u

g
h

 r
o

llo
u

t 
a

n
d

 m
a

y
 n

e
e

d
 t
o

 r
e

v
is

it
 b

u
d

g
e

ts
 

c
o

n
s
o

lid
a

te
d

.

J
o

n
 T

u
rn

e
r

C
e

s
s
a

ti
o

n
 o

f 
E

x
te

rn
a

l 
re

c
ru

it
m

e
n

t 
A

d
v
e

rt
is

in
g

-2
5

R
IO

B
 c

o
n

s
id

e
re

d
 o

p
ti
o

n
s
 f

o
r 

p
e

rm
a

n
e

n
t 
re

c
ru

it
m

e
n

t 

(i
n

c
lu

d
in

g
 e

x
te

rn
a

l 
re

c
ru

it
m

e
n

t)
 f

o
r 

im
p

le
m

e
n

ta
ti
o

n
 i
n

 

2
0

1
4

/1
5

. 
 D

e
la

y
 p

u
ts

 a
t 
ri

s
k
 t
h

e
 s

a
v
in

g
s
 i
n

 2
0

1
3

/1
4

L
e

s
le

y
 C

la
rk

e

R
is

k
 A

u
d

it
 a

n
d

 F
ra

u
d

C
O

R
P

O
R

A
T

E
 A

N
T

I-
F

R
A

U
D

 T
E

A
M

P
ro

c
e

e
d

s
 o

f 
C

ri
m

e
 A

c
t 
- 

p
u

rs
u

e
 r

e
c
o

v
e

ri
e

s
 o

f 

fr
a

u
d

u
le

n
t 
g

a
in

s
 i
n

 p
a

rt
n

e
rs

h
ip

 w
it
h

 B
re

n
t,
 p

lu
s
 

a
d

d
it
io

n
a

l 
in

c
o

m
e

 r
e

c
o

v
e

ry
 

-2
0

G

1
 F

T
E

 p
o

s
t 
s
a

v
in

g
 f

o
r 

1
3

/1
4

 a
m

o
u

n
ti
n

g
 t
o

 £
5

0
K

 p
lu

s
 

e
x
p

e
c
te

d
 i
n

c
o

m
e

 f
ro

m
 o

th
e

r 
s
o

u
rc

e
s
 i
n

  
1

3
/1

4
 &

 1
4

/1
5

.

J
u

s
ti
n

 P
h

ill
ip

s

IN
T

E
R

N
A

L
 A

U
D

IT

D
e

le
te

 v
a

c
a

n
t 
p

o
s
t 
in

 a
u

d
it

-3
0

G
P

o
s
t 
d

e
le

te
d

.
S

u
s
a

n
 D

ix
s
o

n

C
O

R
P

O
R

A
T

E
 H

E
A

L
T

H
 &

 S
A

F
E

T
Y

 S
E

R
V

IC
E

D
e

le
te

 2
 p

o
s
ts

 i
n

 H
e

a
lt
h

 a
n

d
 S

a
fe

ty
 

-8
2

G
J
o

n
 T

u
rn

e
r

C
IV

IL
 C

O
N

T
IN

G
E

N
C

IE
S

 T
E

A
M

J
o

in
t 
w

o
rk

in
g

 o
p

p
o

rt
u

n
it
y
 w

it
h

 o
th

e
r 

b
o

ro
u

g
h

s
-3

5
G

1
 F

T
E

 p
o

s
t 
k
e

p
t 
v
a

c
a

n
t 
fo

r 
6

 m
o

n
th

s
 a

m
o

u
n

ti
n

g
 t
o

 £
1

7
k
, 

p
lu

s
 e

x
p

e
c
te

d
 i
n

c
o

m
e

 f
ro

m
 S

c
h

o
o

ls
 S

L
A

 i
n

 1
3

/1
4

 o
f 

£
1

8
k
, 

g
iv

in
g

 t
o

ta
l 
o

f 
£

3
5

k
. 
T

h
e

re
 w

ill
 b

e
 a

 c
o

n
ti
n

u
in

g
 p

re
s
s
u

re
 i
n

 

2
0

1
4

/1
5

 a
s
 t
h

e
 S

u
n

G
a

rd
 c

o
n

tr
a

c
t 
c
a

n
 o

n
ly

 b
e

 c
a

n
c
e

lle
d

 i
n

 

A
u

g
u

s
t 
g

iv
in

g
 a

 6
-m

o
n

th
 n

o
ti
c
e

 p
e

ri
o

d
, 
a

n
d

 t
h

e
 W

L
 B

C
 

A
c
c
o

m
m

o
d

a
ti
o

n
 p

ro
p

o
s
a

l 
is

 s
ti
ll 

in
 d

ra
ft

 w
it
h

 t
h

e
 l
e

g
a

l 
te

a
m

s
. 

K
a

n
 G

ro
v
e

r

IN
S

U
R

A
N

C
E

 S
E

R
V

IC
E

R
e

d
u

c
e

d
 b

ro
k
e

r 
fe

e
s
 t
h

ro
u

g
h

 m
o

re
 i
n

-h
o

u
s
e

 

h
a

n
d

lin
g

 a
n

d
 i
n

c
re

a
s
e

d
 i
n

c
o

m
e

 o
n

 t
h

ir
d

 p
a

rt
y
 

in
s
u

ra
n

c
e

 s
c
h

e
m

e
s

-2
G

O
n

 t
a

rg
e

t 
th

ro
u

g
h

 i
n

c
re

a
s
e

d
 i
n

-h
o

u
s
e

 h
a

n
d

lin
g

 o
f 

m
o

to
r 

a
n

d
 

in
ju

ry
 c

la
im

s

K
a

re
n

 V
ic

k
e

ry

34



M
E

D
IU

M
 T

E
R

M
 F

IN
A

N
C

IA
L

 S
T

R
A

T
E

G
Y

 2
0

1
3

-1
4

 I
M

P
L

E
M

E
N

T
A

T
IO

N
A

p
p

e
n

d
ix

 2

2
0

1
3

-1
4

2
0

1
3

-1
4

 

R
A

G
C

o
m

m
e

n
ts

O
ff

ic
e

r 
L

e
a

d

£
0

0
0

S
ta

tu
s

F
u

tu
re

 t
ra

d
in

g
 w

it
h

 A
c
a

d
e

m
ie

s
-2

5
A

A
c
a

d
e

m
ie

s
 c

a
n

n
o

t 
b

e
n

e
fi
t 
fr

o
m

 t
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il'

s
 s

e
lf
-i

n
s
u

ra
n

c
e

 

a
rr

a
n

g
e

m
e

n
ts

 h
e

n
c
e

 t
h

e
 a

p
p

e
ti
te

 f
ro

m
 a

c
a

d
e

m
ie

s
 t
o

 

p
u

rc
h

a
s
e

 t
h

e
ir

 i
n

s
u

ra
n

c
e

 t
h

ro
u

g
h

 t
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

is
 l
o

w
, 

h
o

w
e

v
e

r 
w

e
 a

re
 w

o
rk

in
g

 w
it
h

 t
h

e
 I
n

s
u

ra
n

c
e

 L
o

n
d

o
n

 

C
o

n
s
o

rt
iu

m
 t
o

 d
e

v
e

lo
p

 a
 p

ro
d

u
c
t 
s
p

e
c
if
ic

a
lly

 d
e

s
ig

n
e

d
 f

o
r 

a
c
a

d
e

m
ie

s

K
a

re
n

 V
ic

k
e

ry

P
h

a
s
e

 2
 r

e
s
tr

u
c
tu

re
, 
re

d
u

c
e

d
 a

s
s
is

ta
n

t 
p

o
s
t 
fr

o
m

 

c
la

im
s
 h

a
n

d
lin

g
 t
ra

n
s
fe

r 
to

 A
c
c
e

s
s
 H

a
rr

o
w

 /
 

fu
rt

h
e

r 
L

E
A

N
 e

ff
ic

ie
n

c
ie

s

-2
0

G

P
o

s
ts

 d
e

le
te

d
 i
n

 J
u

ly
 2

0
1

2

K
a

re
n

 V
ic

k
e

ry

R
e

d
u

c
ti
o

n
 o

f 
1

F
T

E
 A

n
ti
 F

ra
u

d
 I
n

v
e

s
ti
g

a
to

r 
P

o
s
t

-5
0

G
J
u

s
ti
n

 P
h

ill
ip

s

R
e

p
ro

c
u

re
m

e
n

t 
O

c
c
u

p
a

ti
o

n
a

l 
H

e
a

lt
h

-7
0

G
d

e
liv

e
re

d
J
o

n
 T

u
rn

e
r

D
e

le
ti
o

n
 o

f 
C

o
rp

o
ra

te
 R

is
k
 M

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
S

u
p

p
o

rt
 

S
e

rv
ic

e

-3
0

G

O
n

 t
ra

c
k
 t
o

 m
a

k
e

 s
a

v
in

g

S
im

o
n

 G
e

o
rg

e

C
ro

s
s
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

In
s
u

ra
n

c
e

 C
la

im
s

-3
0

A
L

E
A

N
 r

e
v
ie

w
 o

f 
m

o
to

r 
c
la

im
s
 c

o
m

m
e

n
c
e

d
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1

3
 a

n
d

 

tr
e

e
 r

o
o

t 
p

ro
to

c
o

l 
is

 u
n

d
e

r 
d

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t,
 h

o
w

e
v
e

r 
n

e
w

 

p
ro

c
e

s
s
e

s
 m

a
y
 t
a

k
e

 t
im

e
 t
o

 e
m

b
e

d
 

K
a

re
n

 V
ic

k
e

ry

D
e

le
ti
o

n
 o

f 
D

iv
is

io
n

a
l 
D

ir
e

c
to

r 
p

o
s
t 
a

s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

R
e

s
o

u
rc

e
s
 D

ir
e

c
to

ra
te

 r
e

s
tr

u
c
tu

re

-1
1

8
G

d
e

liv
e

re
d

T
o

m
 W

h
it
in

g

L
E

G
A

L
 A

N
D

 G
O

V
E

R
N

A
N

C
E

Le
g

a
l 

P
ra

ct
ic

e
 

L
e

g
a

l 
P

ra
c
ti
c
e

 s
ta

ff
in

g
-2

8
G

H
u

g
h

S
h

a
re

d
 S

e
rv

ic
e

 e
ff

ic
ie

n
c
ie

s
-7

5
G

H
u

g
h

E
x
p

a
n

s
io

n
 o

f 
L

e
g

a
l 
P

ra
c
ti
c
e

 S
h

a
re

d
 S

e
rv

ic
e

 
-1

0
0

A
D

e
c
is

io
n

 b
y
 p

o
te

n
ti
a

l 
p

a
rt

n
e

r 
d

e
la

y
e

d
 u

n
ti
l 
N

o
v
e

m
b

e
r,

 w
ill

 

n
o

t 
d

e
liv

e
r 

s
a

v
in

g
 i
n

 1
3

-1
4

H
u

g
h

R
e

g
is

tr
a

rs
 

S
h

a
re

/r
e

d
u

c
e

 m
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 
c
o

s
ts

 
-7

5
G

H
u

g
h

E
le

ct
io

n
s

E
-c

a
n

v
a

s
s
 P

ro
je

c
t

-2
0

G
H

u
g

h

R
e

d
u

c
e

d
 N

u
m

b
e

r 
a

n
d

 F
re

q
u

e
n

c
y
 F

o
rm

a
l 

C
o

m
m

it
te

e
s

-3
0

R
A

g
re

e
m

e
n

t 
h

a
s
 n

o
t 
b

e
e

n
 r

e
a

c
h

e
d

 o
n

 r
e

d
u

c
in

g
 m

e
e

ti
n

g
s
 a

n
d

 

h
e

n
c
e

 i
m

p
le

m
e

n
ta

ti
o

n
 o

f 
th

e
 s

a
v
in

g
s
 r

e
q

u
ir

e
d

. 

H
u

g
h

E
ff

ic
ie

n
c
y
 s

a
v
in

g
s
 i
n

 M
a

y
o

r'
s
 o

ff
ic

e
-2

6
R

A
g

re
e

m
e

n
t 
h

a
s
 n

o
t 
b

e
e

n
 r

e
a

c
h

e
d

 o
n

 i
m

p
le

m
e

n
ta

ti
o

n
 o

f 
th

e
 

s
a

v
in

g
s
 r

e
q

u
ir

e
d

. 

H
u

g
h

S
c
a

le
d

 B
a

c
k
 C

o
u

n
c
ill

o
r 

In
v
e

s
ti
g

a
ti
o

n
 P

ro
c
e

s
s

-5
0

G
H

u
g

h

35



M
E

D
IU

M
 T

E
R

M
 F

IN
A

N
C

IA
L

 S
T

R
A

T
E

G
Y

 2
0

1
3

-1
4

 I
M

P
L

E
M

E
N

T
A

T
IO

N
A

p
p

e
n

d
ix

 2

2
0

1
3

-1
4

2
0

1
3

-1
4

 

R
A

G
C

o
m

m
e

n
ts

O
ff

ic
e

r 
L

e
a

d

£
0

0
0

S
ta

tu
s

In
c
re

a
s
e

 t
o

 R
e

g
is

tr
a

rs
 F

e
e

 I
n

c
o

m
e

 T
a

rg
e

t
5

0
A

G
re

e
n

 2
0

1
3

-1
4

, 
A

m
b

e
r 

2
0

1
4

-1
5

H
u

g
h

C
o

rp
o

ra
te

 F
in

a
n

c
e

A
u

d
it
 f

e
e

s
 r

e
d

u
c
e

d
 

-1
6

0
G

c
o

n
s
is

te
n

t 
w

it
h

 f
e

e
 p

ro
p

o
s
a

l 
fr

o
m

 a
u

d
it
o

rs
H

a
s
in

a
 S

h
a

h

L
o

n
d

o
n

 B
o

ro
u

g
h

s
 g

ra
n

t 
s
c
h

e
m

e
 –

 r
e

d
u

c
e

d
 l
e

v
y

-7
4

G

d
e

liv
e

re
d

S
te

v
e

 T
in

g
le

T
re

a
s
u

ry
 M

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
- 

in
c
re

a
s
e

d
 i
n

v
e

s
tm

e
n

t 

in
c
o

m
e

-9
3

9
A

D
e

p
e

n
d

e
n

t 
o

n
 i
n

te
re

s
t 
ra

te
s
. 
 T

h
e

s
e

 h
a

v
e

 m
o

v
e

d
 a

g
a

in
s
t 
u

s
 

s
in

c
e

 s
a

v
in

g
 p

ro
p

o
s
e

d
.

H
a

s
in

a
 S

h
a

h

P
ro

c
u

re
m

e
n

t

C
o

ll
e

c
ti

o
n

s
 a

n
d

 B
e

n
e

fi
ts

D
e

le
ti
o

n
 o

f 
2

 F
T

E
 p

o
s
ts

 i
n

 R
e

v
e

n
u

e
s
 -

 C
o

u
n

c
il 

T
a

x
 a

n
d

 N
N

D
R

-6
0

G
F

e
rn

D
e

le
ti
o

n
 o

f 
1

 p
o

s
t 
in

 P
a

rk
in

g
 B

a
c
k
 O

ff
ic

e
-2

5
G

F
e

rn

C
o

n
c
e

s
s
io

n
a

ry
 T

ra
v
e

l 
- 

C
h

a
n

g
e

s
 t
o

 T
fL

 g
ra

n
t 

d
is

tr
ib

u
ti
o

n

-1
0

5
G

G
re

e
n

 2
0

1
3

-1
4

. 
 D

e
p

e
n

d
e

n
t 
o

n
 c

o
n

ti
n

u
a

ti
o

n
 o

f 
c
u

rr
e

n
t 
le

v
e

l 

o
f 

fu
n

d
in

g
 f

ro
m

 T
F

L
 a

n
d

 n
o

 f
u

rt
h

e
r 

m
e

th
o

d
o

lo
g

y
 c

h
a

n
g

e
s

F
e

rn

W
it
h

d
ra

w
 D

is
c
re

ti
o

n
a

ry
 R

a
te

 R
e

lie
f 

fr
o

m
 C

h
a

ri
ty

 

S
h

o
p

s
 i
n

 2
0

1
3

-1
4

 a
n

d
 e

n
d

 i
n

 2
0

1
4

-1
5

-2
5

G
N

o
t 
n

o
w

 s
to

p
p

in
g

 D
R

R
 a

lt
o

g
e

th
e

r 
b

u
t 
fu

n
d

in
g

 c
a

n
 s

ti
ll 

b
e

 

s
a

v
e

d
 d

u
e

 t
o

 t
h

e
 w

a
y
 i
t 
is

 a
c
c
o

u
n

te
d

 f
o

r 
u

n
d

e
r 

B
u

s
in

e
s
s
 

R
a

te
s
 r

e
te

n
ti
o

n

F
e

rn

F
u

n
d

in
g

 A
d

m
in

is
tr

a
ti
o

n
 o

f 
E

m
e

rg
e

n
c
y
 R

e
lie

f 

S
c
h

e
m

e
 f

ro
m

 G
ra

n
t

-8
5

G
F

e
rn

R
e

s
tr

ic
t 
th

e
 i
s
s
u

in
g

 o
f 

ta
x
i 
c
a

rd
s
 t
o

 o
n

ly
 t
h

a
t 

w
h

ic
h

 i
s
 a

v
a

ila
b

le
 t
h

ro
u

g
h

 T
F

L
 f

u
n

d
in

g

-2
0

0
G

F
e

rn

C
ro

s
s
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

E
ff

ic
ie

n
c
ie

s
 n

o
t 
d

e
liv

e
re

d
 i
n

 2
0

1
2

-

1
3

2
1

5
G

T
o

m
 W

h
it
in

g

L
a

te
 S

a
v
in

g
s

V
a

c
a

n
c
y
 m

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t
-1

4
8

G
T

o
m

 W
h

it
in

g

A
g

e
n

c
y

-1
5

7
G

T
o

m
 W

h
it
in

g

P
ro

c
u

re
m

e
n

t
-2

0
5

G
T

o
m

 W
h

it
in

g

In
fl
a

ti
o

n
-8

6
G

In
fl
a

ti
o

n
 a

llo
c
a

ti
o

n
 r

e
s
tr

ic
te

d
 t
o

 p
e

n
s
io

n
 a

u
g

m
e

n
ta

ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 

C
a

p
it
a

 c
o

n
tr

a
c
t 
w

it
h

 a
 s

m
a

ll 
b

a
la

n
c
e

 h
e

ld
 o

n
 C

o
rp

o
ra

te
 

d
ir

e
c
to

r'
s
 c

o
d

e
.

T
o

m
 W

h
it
in

g

£
1

6
0

k
 p

ro
 r

a
ta

 a
llo

c
a

ti
o

n
 a

c
ro

s
s
 s

a
la

ri
e

s
 b

u
d

g
e

ts
. 
R

e
s
t 

c
o

n
ta

in
e

d
 w

it
h

in
 R

e
v
e

n
u

e
 a

n
d

 B
e

n
e

fi
ts

 a
s
 o

n
e

 o
ff

 s
a

v
in

g
s
 

o
n

 H
B

 p
a

y
m

e
n

t 
o

v
e

r 
re

c
o

v
e

ry
 a

n
d

 a
d

d
it
io

n
a

l 
g

ra
n

t.

36



M
E

D
IU

M
 T

E
R

M
 F

IN
A

N
C

IA
L

 S
T

R
A

T
E

G
Y

 2
0

1
3

-1
4

 I
M

P
L

E
M

E
N

T
A

T
IO

N
A

p
p

e
n

d
ix

 2

2
0

1
3

-1
4

2
0

1
3

-1
4

 

R
A

G
C

o
m

m
e

n
ts

O
ff

ic
e

r 
L

e
a

d

£
0

0
0

S
ta

tu
s

T
o

ta
l 
R

e
s

o
u

rc
e

s
 S

a
v
in

g
s

-4
,5

0
4

N
e

t 
R

e
s

o
u

rc
e

s
 D

ir
e

c
to

ra
te

-2
,8

8
7

E
N

V
IR

O
N

M
E

N
T

 A
N

D
 E

N
T

E
R

P
R

IS
E

In
v
e

s
tm

e
n

t 
in

 S
e

rv
ic

e
s

P
R

S
 -

 V
e

h
ic

le
 e

a
rl

y
 t
e

rm
in

a
ti
o

n
 p

a
y
m

e
n

ts
2

9
5

G

T
h

e
 t
e

rm
in

a
ti
o

n
 c

o
s
ts

 h
a

v
e

 b
e

e
n

 c
o

n
fi
rm

e
d

 a
t 
£

8
5

k
. 
 T

h
e

 

re
m

a
in

in
g

 b
a

la
n

c
e

 w
ill

 b
e

 u
s
e

 t
o

 o
ff

s
e

t 
re

v
e

n
u

e
 o

v
e

rs
p

e
n

d
s
.

D
a

v
e

 C
o

rb
y
 /
 M

ic
k
 

W
y
n

n
e

T
ra

n
s
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n
 g

ro
w

th
1

6
3

G
P

h
ili

p
 H

a
m

b
e

rg
e

r

P
a

rk
in

g
 r

e
v
ie

w
2

6
1

A

F
u

ll 
c
u

m
u

la
ti
v
e

 i
m

p
a

c
t 
u

p
 t
o

 1
4

/1
5

 c
a

n
 r

a
n

g
e

 b
e

tw
e

e
n

 -

£
5

6
8

k
 i
f 

fr
e

e
 p

a
rk

in
g

 i
s
 n

o
t 
in

tr
o

d
u

c
e

d
 t
o

 +
9

3
8

k
 i
f 

fr
e

e
 

p
a

rk
in

g
 i
s
 i
n

tr
o

d
u

c
e

d
 (

a
d

d
it
io

n
a

l 
g

ro
w

th
 o

f 
+

£
3

7
0

k
),

 

d
e

p
e

n
d

a
n

t 
o

n
 d

e
c
is

io
n

 a
t 
c
a

b
in

e
t 
in

 N
o

v
e

m
b

e
r.

D
a

v
id

 E
a

g
le

s
h

a
m

A
d

d
it
io

n
a

l 
H

a
rr

o
w

 T
o

w
n

 C
e

n
tr

e
 c

le
a

n
in

g
 

fo
llo

w
in

g
 f

ro
m

 O
L

F
2

8
7

G
O

n
g

o
in

g
 f

u
n

d
in

g
.

D
a

v
e

 C
o

rb
y
 /
 M

ic
k
 

W
y
n

n
e

C
R

C
/E

A
  
in

c
re

a
s
e

 i
n

 c
o

s
t 
o

f 
C

R
C

 s
c
h

e
m

e
9

3
G

A
n

d
re

w
 B

a
k
e

r

W
e

lf
a

re
 t
o

 w
o

rk
 X

c
it
e

: 
1

0
8

G
R

e
c
ru

it
m

e
n

t 
im

p
le

m
e

n
te

d
.

M
a

rk
 B

ill
in

g
to

n

W
L

W
A

 L
e

v
y
 

1
,2

1
8

A

R
is

k
 o

f 
a

d
d

it
io

n
a

l 
le

v
y
, 
p

o
s
s
ib

ly
 m

it
ig

a
te

d
 b

y
 l
o

w
e

r 
P

A
Y

T
 

to
n

n
a

g
e

s
 

A
la

n
 W

h
it
in

g

P
ro

c
u

re
m

e
n

t 
re

la
te

d
 p

re
s
s
u

re
s
 d

u
e

 t
o

 c
h

a
n

g
e

 i
n

 

m
a

rk
e

t 
p

ri
c
e

 a
n

d
 p

ro
fi
t 
s
h

a
re

 f
o

r 
D

ry
 r

e
c
y
c
la

b
le

s
2

5
6

G

R
is

k
 w

h
e

th
e

r 
th

e
 g

ro
w

th
 i
s
 s

u
ff

ic
ie

n
t 
d

e
p

e
n

d
a

n
t 
o

n
 r

e
c
y
c
lin

g
 

p
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e

A
la

n
 W

h
it
in

g

M
a

in
te

n
a

n
c
e

 o
f 

C
C

T
V

 c
a

m
e

ra
s
 

7
1

G
Im

p
le

m
e

n
te

d
A

n
d

y
 A

p
p

le
b

y

T
o

ta
l 
In

v
e

s
tm

e
n

t 
in

 S
e

rv
ic

e
s

2
,5

5
2

S
a

v
in

g
s

A
d

d
it

io
n

a
l 
in

c
o

m
e

In
tr

o
d

u
c
e

 d
if
fe

re
n

ti
a

l 
c
h

a
rg

in
g

 p
o

lic
y
 f

o
r 

p
la

n
n

in
g

 

a
p

p
lic

a
ti
o

n
s
 t
o

 p
ro

v
id

e
 f

o
r 

fa
s
t 
tr

a
c
k
 i
n

c
o

m
e

 

g
e

n
e

ra
ti
o

n
-1

5
G

A
d

d
it
io

n
a

l 
in

c
o

m
e

 i
s
 b

e
in

g
 a

c
h

ie
v
e

d
 b

y
 i
n

c
re

a
s
in

g
 t
h

e
 

p
ro

v
is

io
n

 o
f 

p
re

-a
p

p
lic

a
ti
o

n
 a

d
v
ic

e
.

S
te

p
h

e
n

 K
e

lly

In
c
re

a
s
e

 I
n

c
o

m
e

 a
n

d
 r

e
n

ta
l 
fr

o
m

 C
o

rp
o

ra
te

 

E
s
ta

te
-8

0
G

In
c
o

m
e

 l
e

a
s
e

 s
ig

n
e

d
.

P
h

ili
p

 L
o

v
e

la
n

d
-

C
o

o
p

e
r

37



M
E

D
IU

M
 T

E
R

M
 F

IN
A

N
C

IA
L

 S
T

R
A

T
E

G
Y

 2
0

1
3

-1
4

 I
M

P
L

E
M

E
N

T
A

T
IO

N
A

p
p

e
n

d
ix

 2

2
0

1
3

-1
4

2
0

1
3

-1
4

 

R
A

G
C

o
m

m
e

n
ts

O
ff

ic
e

r 
L

e
a

d

£
0

0
0

S
ta

tu
s

In
c
re

a
s
in

g
 t
h

e
 l
e

v
e

l 
o

f 
fe

e
s
 r

e
c
h

a
rg

e
d

 f
o

r 

a
d

a
p

ta
ti
o

n
s
 u

n
d

e
rt

a
k
e

n
 u

s
in

g
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

o
r 

D
F

G
 

fu
n

d
in

g
. 
B

u
s
in

e
s
s
 a

s
 u

s
u

a
l

-7
5

A

P
ro

p
o

s
a

l 
s
u

b
m

it
te

d
 t
o

 H
o

u
s
in

g
 t
o

 b
ri

n
g

 t
h

e
 f

e
e

s
 u

p
 t
o

 t
h

e
 

le
v
e

l 
o

f 
p

ri
v
a

te
 s

e
c
to

r 
p

ro
v
id

e
rs

, 
h

o
w

e
v
e

r 
th

is
 i
s
 n

o
t 
y
e

t 

a
g

re
e

d
 b

y
 H

o
u

s
in

g
. 
T

h
e

re
 i
s
 a

n
 i
n

c
re

a
s
e

 i
n

 i
n

c
o

m
e

 f
o

r 

a
d

a
p

ta
ti
o

n
s
 i
n

 g
e

n
e

ra
l,
 w

h
ic

h
 h

e
lp

s
 m

e
e

t 
th

e
 i
n

c
o

m
e

 

b
u

d
g

e
t.

A
n

d
y
 P

a
rs

o
n

s

In
tr

o
d

u
c
ti
o

n
 o

f 
C

iv
ic

 C
e

n
tr

e
 s

ta
ff

 c
a

r 
p

a
rk

in
g

 

c
h

a
rg

e
s
 a

n
d

 o
th

e
r 

fr
e

e
 c

a
r 

p
a

rk
s

-1
3

5
R

C
o

n
s
u

lt
a

ti
o

n
 d

o
c
u

m
e

n
ts

 p
re

p
a

re
d

 a
n

d
 E

Q
IA

 c
o

m
p

le
te

d
, 

a
w

a
it
in

g
 a

p
p

ro
v
a

l 
to

 p
ro

g
re

s
s
. 

A
n

d
y
 P

a
rs

o
n

s

L
ic

e
n

s
in

g
 -

 s
c
o

p
e

 f
o

r 
a

d
d

it
io

n
a

l 
in

c
o

m
e

-4
0

G
O

n
 t
a

rg
e

t,
 t
o

 b
e

 a
c
h

ie
v
e

d
. 

F
in

la
y
 F

le
tt

S
L

A
 I
n

c
o

m
e

 -
 H

R
A

, 
S

c
h

o
o

ls
 &

 O
th

e
r 

B
o

d
ie

s
. 
 

In
c
re

a
s
e

d
 i
n

c
o

m
e

 f
ro

m
 r

e
v
is

e
d

 S
L

A
 w

it
h

 s
c
h

o
o

ls
-1

9
G

S
L

A
 s

ig
n

e
d

.

A
n

d
re

w
 B

a
k
e

r

T
e

x
ti
le

 r
e

c
y
c
lin

g
-1

0
G

N
e

w
 c

o
n

tr
a

c
t 
n

o
w

 s
ig

n
e

d
 w

it
h

 a
 b

e
tt
e

r 
p

ri
c
e

 p
e

r 
to

n
n

e
 a

s
 a

 

re
s
u

lt
 o

f 
fa

v
o

u
ra

b
le

 m
a

rk
e

t 
p

ri
c
e

s
 f

o
r 

te
x
ti
le

. 
O

n
 t
ra

c
k
 o

f 

a
c
h

ie
v
in

g
 a

d
d

it
io

n
a

l 
in

c
o

m
e

 s
u

b
je

c
t 
to

 a
c
tu

a
l 
to

n
n

a
g

e
.

A
n

d
re

w
 B

a
k
e

r

A
D

D
IT

IO
N

A
L

 I
N

C
O

M
E

 T
O

T
A

L
-3

7
4

0
0

E
n

v
ir

o
n

m
e

n
t 

S
a

v
in

g
s

P
R

IS
M

 g
ro

w
th

 a
n

d
 e

ff
ic

ie
n

c
ie

s
 (

2
0

1
2

-1
3

 

re
v
e

rs
a

l)
-2

0
0

G

1
2

/1
3

 g
ro

w
th

 b
u

d
g

e
t 
c
a

rr
ie

d
 f

o
rw

a
rd

 t
o

 m
a

tc
h

 r
e

p
h

a
s
in

g
 o

f 

p
ro

je
c
t 
s
p

e
n

d

P
h

ili
p

 H
a

m
b

e
rg

e
r

P
ro

p
e

rt
y
 C

o
/F

M
 g

ro
w

th
 a

n
d

 e
ff

ic
ie

n
c
ie

s
 (

2
0

1
2

-1
3

 

re
v
e

rs
a

l)
-1

0
0

G

T
h

e
 b

u
d

g
e

t 
h

a
s
 b

e
e

n
 c

a
rr

ie
d

 f
o

rw
a

rd
 t
o

 1
3

/1
4

 t
o

 m
a

tc
h

 t
h

e
 

re
p

h
a

s
in

g
 o

f 
p

ro
je

c
t 
s
p

e
n

d
 (

th
e

 p
ro

c
u

re
m

e
n

t 
o

f 
IT

 b
u

ild
in

g
 

m
a

in
te

n
a

n
c
e

 s
y
s
te

m
).

A
n

d
y
 P

a
rs

o
n

s

T
o

w
a

rd
s
 E

x
c
e

lle
n

c
e

-1
,5

0
0

R

P
ro

je
c
t 
p

a
u

s
e

 a
n

d
 r

e
s
ta

rt
 m

e
a

n
s
 t
h

a
t 
s
a

v
in

g
s
 w

ill
 b

e
 

re
a

lis
e

d
 f

ro
m

 A
p

ri
l 
2

0
1

4
. 
  

P
h

ili
p

 H
a

m
b

e
rg

e
r

P
ro

p
e

rt
y
 C

o
/F

M
 g

ro
w

th
 a

n
d

 e
ff

ic
ie

n
c
ie

s
-2

5
1

G

F
Y

E
 o

f 
P

h
a

s
e

 1
 P

ro
p

e
rt

y
 S

e
rv

ic
e

s
 r

e
s
tr

u
c
tu

re
 -

 f
u

lly
 

d
e

liv
e

re
d

.

A
n

d
y
 P

a
rs

o
n

s

R
e

v
ie

w
 o

f 
lo

s
s
 m

a
k
in

g
 c

a
r 

p
a

rk
s

-1
5

0
R

A
lt
e

rn
a

ti
v
e

 p
ro

je
c
t 
u

n
d

e
rw

a
y
 (

P
&

D
) 

to
 s

e
c
u

re
 i
n

c
o

m
e

 f
ro

m
 

a
lt
e

rn
a

ti
v
e

 c
a

r 
p

a
rk

s
.

A
n

d
y
 A

p
p

le
b

y

M
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 
E

ff
ic

ie
n

c
ie

s
-7

5
G

D
e

liv
e

re
d

.
C

a
ro

lin
e

 B
ru

c
e

P
a

rk
in

g
 p

e
rm

it
 c

h
a

rg
e

 i
n

c
re

a
s
e

-4
0

G
O

n
 t
a

rg
e

t,
 t
o

 b
e

 a
c
h

ie
v
e

d
. 

F
in

la
y
 F

le
tt

38



M
E

D
IU

M
 T

E
R

M
 F

IN
A

N
C

IA
L

 S
T

R
A

T
E

G
Y

 2
0

1
3

-1
4

 I
M

P
L

E
M

E
N

T
A

T
IO

N
A

p
p

e
n

d
ix

 2

2
0

1
3

-1
4

2
0

1
3

-1
4

 

R
A

G
C

o
m

m
e

n
ts

O
ff

ic
e

r 
L

e
a

d

£
0

0
0

S
ta

tu
s

R
e

tu
rn

in
g

 P
a

rk
s
 t
o

 O
p

e
n

 S
p

a
c
e

-3
5

0
R

C
h

a
n

g
e

 i
n

 p
ri

o
ri

ti
e

s
 f

o
llo

w
in

g
 t
h

e
 r

e
c
e

n
t 
c
h

a
n

g
e

 i
n

 

a
d

m
in

is
tr

a
ti
o

n
 -

 m
o

re
 f

o
rm

a
l 
m

a
in

te
n

a
n

c
e

 r
e

g
im

e
s
 

re
in

s
ta

te
d

 i
n

 m
o

s
t 
p

a
rk

s
 o

ri
g

in
a

lly
 i
d

e
n

ti
fi
e

d
 t
o

 b
e

c
o

m
in

g
 

n
a

tu
ra

lis
e

d
 a

re
a

s
. 

1
4

/1
5

 g
ro

w
th

 b
id

 p
re

p
a

re
d

. 
1

3
/1

4
 o

n
e

-o
ff

 £
1

0
0

K
 c

o
rp

o
ra

te
 

fu
n

d
in

g
 c

o
n

fi
rm

e
d

 t
o

 r
e

in
s
ta

te
 s

e
rv

ic
e

.

D
a

v
e

 C
o

rb
y
 /
 M

ic
k
 

W
y
n

n
e

T
ra

d
in

g
 S

ta
n

d
a

rd
s
 a

n
d

 P
ro

c
e

e
d

s
 o

f 
C

ri
m

e
 A

c
t 

s
a

v
in

g
s
 (

lin
k
e

d
 t
o

 r
e

v
ie

w
 o

f 
S

L
A

 w
it
h

 B
re

n
t 

tr
a

d
in

g
 S

ta
n

d
a

rd
s
)

-5
0

A

S
u

b
je

c
t 
to

 s
u

c
c
e

s
s
fu

l 
p

ro
s
e

c
u

ti
o

n
 o

f 
c
ri

m
in

a
l 
a

c
ti
v
it
ie

s
, 
b

u
t 

lik
e

ly
 t
o

 a
c
h

ie
v
e

 t
h

is
 y

e
a

r'
s
 s

a
v
in

g
 b

a
s
e

d
 o

n
 e

x
is

ti
n

g
 c

a
s
e

s
. 

F
in

la
y
 F

le
tt

C
lim

a
te

 C
h

a
n

g
e

 -
 F

le
x
ib

le
 r

e
ti
re

m
e

n
t 
a

n
d

 

c
o

n
s
u

m
a

b
le

s
 b

u
d

g
e

t
-3

1
G

L
ik

e
ly

 t
o

 b
e

 a
c
h

ie
v
e

d
 a

n
d

 i
s
 s

u
b

je
c
t 
to

 c
o

m
m

e
n

c
e

m
e

n
t 
o

f 

p
h

a
s
e

d
 r

e
ti
re

m
e

n
t

A
n

d
re

w
 B

a
k
e

r

E
n

v
ir

o
n

m
e

n
t 
C

o
n

s
u

m
a

b
le

s
  

-1
0

0
G

D
e

liv
e

re
d

.
A

L
L

F
u

rt
h

e
r 

m
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 
re

d
u

c
ti
o

n
s
 i
n

 E
n

v
ir

o
n

m
e

n
t

-1
0

0
G

1
3

/1
4

 s
a

v
in

g
 d

e
liv

e
re

d
. 
A

lt
e

rn
a

ti
v
e

s
 t
o

 b
e

 i
d

e
n

ti
fi
e

d
 t
o

 

re
a

lis
e

 1
4

/1
5

 s
a

v
in

g
 a

s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

M
T

F
S

 r
e

fr
e

s
h

.

P
h

ili
p

 H
a

m
b

e
rg

e
r

R
e

d
u

c
e

 h
ig

h
w

a
y
s
 m

a
in

te
n

a
n

c
e

 b
u

d
g

e
t 
 

-2
7

3
G

D
e

liv
e

re
d

, 
b

y
 c

h
a

n
g

in
g

 r
e

s
p

o
n

s
e

 t
im

e
s
.

D
a

v
e

 M
a

s
te

rs

P
u

b
lic

 R
e

a
lm

 s
e

rv
ic

e
 r

e
d

u
c
ti
o

n
  

-6
4

4
R

P
ro

p
o

s
a

ls
 l
in

k
e

d
 t
o

 P
R

IS
M

 a
n

d
 t
h

e
 d

e
liv

e
ra

b
ili

ty
 o

f 
s
o

m
e

 o
f 

th
e

s
e

 i
s
 u

n
lik

e
ly

 i
n

 1
3

/1
4

. 
A

ls
o

 c
h

a
n

g
e

 i
n

 p
ri

o
ri

ti
e

s
 f

o
llo

w
in

g
 

th
e

 r
e

c
e

n
t 
c
h

a
n

g
e

 i
n

 a
d

m
in

is
tr

a
ti
o

n
 -

 R
e

in
s
ta

te
m

e
n

t 
o

f 

s
w

e
e

p
in

g
 i
n

 s
o

m
e

 n
o

n
 t
o

w
n

 c
e

n
tr

e
s
, 
p

a
rk

s
 m

a
in

te
n

a
n

c
e

, 

g
a

te
s
 l
o

c
k
in

g
 i
n

 p
a

rk
s
 &

 c
e

m
e

te
ri

e
s
 a

n
d

 d
o

g
 w

a
s
te

 

c
o

lle
c
ti
o

n
. 
1

4
/1

5
 g

ro
w

th
 b

id
s
 p

re
p

a
re

d
. 
1

3
/1

4
 o

n
e

-o
ff

 

c
o

rp
o

ra
te

 f
u

n
d

in
g

 c
o

n
fi
rm

e
d

 t
o

 r
e

in
s
ta

te
 s

e
rv

ic
e

s
. 

D
a

v
e

 C
o

rb
y
 /
 M

ic
k
 

W
y
n

n
e

T
ra

ff
ic

 &
 H

ig
h

w
a

y
s
 p

o
s
t 
re

d
u

c
ti
o

n
s

-2
5

1
G

D
e

liv
e

re
d

, 
b

y
 c

h
a

n
g

in
g

 r
e

s
p

o
n

s
e

 t
im

e
s

D
a

v
id

 E
a

g
le

s
h

a
m

C
o

n
s
o

lid
a

ti
o

n
 o

f 
p

ro
p

e
rt

y
 s

e
rv

ic
e

s
 w

it
h

in
 o

ld
 

E
n

v
ir

o
n

m
e

n
t 
a

n
d

 E
n

te
rp

ri
s
e

 D
ir

e
c
to

ra
te

s
. 

T
ra

n
s
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n
 P

ro
je

c
t

-1
8

0
G

S
ta

ff
 c

o
n

s
u

lt
a

ti
o

n
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d

 a
n

d
 n

e
w

 s
tr

u
c
tu

re
 n

o
w

 

c
o

n
fi
rm

e
d

. 
A

lt
h

o
u

g
h

 t
h

e
 r

e
s
tr

u
c
tu

re
 w

a
s
 d

e
la

y
e

d
, 
th

e
 s

ta
ff

 

c
o

s
ts

 w
o

u
ld

 b
e

 c
o

n
ta

in
e

d
 w

it
h

in
 e

x
is

ti
n

g
 b

u
d

g
e

ts
 o

f 
P

ro
p

e
rt

y
 

S
e

rv
ic

e
s
.

A
n

d
y
 P

a
rs

o
n

s

C
o

s
t 
re

d
u

c
ti
o

n
 o

f 
m

a
in

ta
in

in
g

 p
a

rk
in

g
 e

q
u

ip
m

e
n

t
-3

0
G

A
c
h

ie
v
e

d
.

A
n

d
y
 A

p
p

le
b

y

E
s
ta

b
lis

h
in

g
 t
h

e
 H

a
rr

o
w

 H
o

m
e

 I
m

p
ro

v
e

m
e

n
t 

A
g

e
n

c
y
 a

s
 a

 s
ta

n
d

 a
lo

n
e

 o
rg

a
n

is
a

ti
o

n
. 

T
ra

n
s
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n
 P

ro
je

c
t

-7
5

R

N
o

t 
p

ro
c
e

e
d

in
g

 w
it
h

 t
h

e
 p

ro
p

o
s
a

l.
 A

lt
e

rn
a

ti
v
e

 s
a

v
in

g
s
 t
o

 b
e

 

id
e

n
ti
fi
e

d
 a

s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

M
T

F
S

 r
e

fr
e

s
h

.

A
n

d
y
 P

a
rs

o
n

s

39



M
E

D
IU

M
 T

E
R

M
 F

IN
A

N
C

IA
L

 S
T

R
A

T
E

G
Y

 2
0

1
3

-1
4

 I
M

P
L

E
M

E
N

T
A

T
IO

N
A

p
p

e
n

d
ix

 2

2
0

1
3

-1
4

2
0

1
3

-1
4

 

R
A

G
C

o
m

m
e

n
ts

O
ff

ic
e

r 
L

e
a

d

£
0

0
0

S
ta

tu
s

S
o

ft
 M

a
rk

e
t 
te

s
ti
n

g
 o

f 
s
ta

tu
to

ry
 a

n
im

a
l 
s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 

a
n

d
 r

e
v
ie

w
 o

f 
c
o

m
m

e
rc

ia
l 
a

n
im

a
l 
s
e

rv
ic

e
s

-6
0

R
N

o
t 
a

c
h

ie
v
e

d
.

F
in

la
y
 F

le
tt

R
e

v
ie

w
 o

p
e

ra
ti
o

n
s
 o

f 
th

e
 C

C
T

V
 c

o
n

tr
o

l 
ro

o
m

 

d
u

ri
n

g
 t
h

e
 n

ig
h

t
-3

0
R

N
o

t 
a

c
h

ie
v
e

d
. 
A

lt
e

rn
a

ti
v
e

 s
a

v
in

g
 t
o

 b
e

 i
d

e
n

ti
fi
e

d
 a

s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

th
e

 M
T

F
S

 r
e

fr
e

s
h

.

F
in

la
y
 F

le
tt

R
e

v
ie

w
 B

re
n

t-
H

a
rr

o
w

 T
ra

d
in

g
 S

ta
n

d
a

rd
s
 

c
o

n
s
o

rt
iu

m
 a

n
d

 /
 o

r 
p

ro
v
id

e
 T

ra
d

in
g

 S
ta

n
d

a
rd

s
 

o
n

 a
 r

e
d

u
c
e

d
 s

c
a

le
. 

-1
4

0
A

N
o

 a
c
tu

a
ls

 p
ro

c
e

s
s
e

d
, 
a

w
a

it
in

g
 f

o
r 

c
o

n
fi
rm

a
ti
o

n
 o

f 

a
g

re
e

m
e

n
t,
 c

u
rr

e
n

tl
y
 f

o
re

c
a

s
t 
to

 b
e

 o
n

 t
ra

c
k

F
in

la
y
 F

le
tt

R
e

v
ie

w
 T

ra
d

e
 W

a
s
te

-2
2

0
R

T
h

e
 o

p
ti
o

n
 t
o

 c
e

a
s
e

 t
ra

d
e

 w
a

s
te

 i
s
 n

o
t 
p

u
rs

u
e

d
, 
in

s
te

a
d

 

s
e

e
k
in

g
 t
o

 r
e

ta
in

 a
n

d
 d

e
v
e

lo
p

 t
h

e
 s

e
rv

ic
e

. 
 A

 d
e

ta
ile

d
 

b
u

s
in

e
s
s
 c

a
s
e

 i
s
 b

e
in

g
 d

e
v
e

lo
p

e
d

. 
 B

u
d

g
e

t 
re

in
s
ta

te
d

 i
n

 

1
3

/1
4

 t
o

 g
iv

e
 t
im

e
 t
o

 d
e

v
e

lo
p

 t
h

e
 s

e
rv

ic
e

, 
a

n
d

 d
e

liv
e

r 
a

 

p
h

a
s
e

d
 s

a
v
in

g
 i
n

 f
u

tu
re

 y
e

a
rs

.

A
la

n
 W

h
it
in

g

U
n

d
e

rt
a

k
e

 m
a

in
te

n
a

n
c
e

 a
n

d
 c

le
a

n
in

g
 o

f 

c
o

rp
o

ra
te

 p
re

m
is

e
s
 o

n
ly

 t
o

 t
h

e
 m

in
im

u
m

 

s
ta

n
d

a
rd

 n
e

c
e

s
s
a

ry
 f

o
r 

s
ta

tu
to

ry
 c

o
m

p
lia

n
c
e

. 
-1

0
0

R

T
h

e
 a

n
ti
c
ip

a
te

d
 s

a
v
in

g
 f

ro
m

 t
h

e
 r

e
-t

e
n

d
e

r 
o

f 
c
le

a
n

in
g

 

c
o

n
tr

a
c
t 
d

id
 n

o
t 
m

a
te

ri
a

lis
e

. 
T

o
 a

d
o

p
t 
a

 c
o

rp
o

ra
te

 l
a

n
d

lo
rd

 

a
p

p
ro

a
c
h

, 
e

ff
o

rt
 i
s
 b

e
in

g
 m

a
d

e
 o

n
 i
d

e
n

ti
fy

in
g

 a
lt
e

rn
a

ti
v
e

 

s
a

v
in

g
s
 f

ro
m

 b
u

ild
in

g
 m

a
in

te
n

a
n

c
e

 t
h

ro
u

g
h

 b
u

d
g

e
t 

a
g

g
re

g
a

ti
o

n
. 

A
n

d
y
 P

a
rs

o
n

s

T
O

T
A

L
 E

N
V

IR
O

N
M

E
N

T
 S

A
V

IN
G

S
-4

,9
5

0
0

E
N

T
E

R
P

R
IS

E
 S

A
V

IN
G

S
:

R
e

s
id

u
a

l 
fr

o
m

 M
a

jo
r 

P
ro

je
c
ts

 b
u

d
g

e
t

-2
5

G
D

e
liv

e
re

d
.

S
te

p
h

e
n

 K
e

lly

P
ro

c
u

re
m

e
n

t 
s
a

v
in

g
s
 o

n
 N

o
rt

h
g

a
te

 c
o

n
tr

a
c
t

-6
G

D
e

liv
e

re
d

.
S

te
p

h
e

n
 K

e
lly

E
n

te
rp

ri
s
e

  
P

o
s
t 
D

e
le

ti
o

n
s
  

-1
,0

8
3

G
D

e
liv

e
re

d
.

S
te

p
h

e
n

 

K
e

lly
/C

a
ro

lin
e

 

B
ru

c
e

E
n

te
rp

ri
s
e

 C
o

n
s
u

m
a

b
le

s
  

-9
3

G
D

e
liv

e
re

d
.

S
te

p
h

e
n

 

K
e

lly
/P

L
C

C

T
O

T
A

L
 E

N
T

E
R

P
R

IS
E

 S
A

V
IN

G
S

-1
,2

0
7

0
0

P
ro

c
u

re
m

e
n

t 
 S

a
v
in

g
s
 -

 o
th

e
rs

-1
4

0
R

P
ro

c
u

re
m

e
n

t 
y
e

t 
to

 i
d

e
n

ti
fy

 p
o

s
s
ib

le
 t
a

rg
e

ts

V
e

n
e

ti
a

 R
e

id
-

B
a

p
ti
s
te

40



M
E

D
IU

M
 T

E
R

M
 F

IN
A

N
C

IA
L

 S
T

R
A

T
E

G
Y

 2
0

1
3

-1
4

 I
M

P
L

E
M

E
N

T
A

T
IO

N
A

p
p

e
n

d
ix

 2

2
0

1
3

-1
4

2
0

1
3

-1
4

 

R
A

G
C

o
m

m
e

n
ts

O
ff

ic
e

r 
L

e
a

d

£
0

0
0

S
ta

tu
s

P
ro

c
u

re
m

e
n

t 
- 

T
ra

n
s
p

o
rt

 R
e

v
ie

w
-3

5
0

A

D
o

V
 w

it
h

 F
R

A
IK

IN
 n

o
w

 s
ig

n
e

d
. 
P

a
rt

 y
e

a
r 

s
a

v
in

g
 £

3
1

9
K

 

a
c
h

ie
v
e

d
 i
n

 1
3

/1
4

. 
£

2
6

3
K

 i
n

 E
&

E
 w

it
h

 t
h

e
 r

e
s
t 
re

a
lis

e
d

 i
n

 

C
h

ild
re

n
s
 S

e
rv

ic
e

s
.

P
h

ili
p

 H
a

m
b

e
rg

e
r

E
x

is
ti

n
g

 p
ro

c
u

re
m

e
n

t 
T

o
ta

l
-4

9
0

0

T
o

ta
l 
E

n
v
ir

o
n

m
e

n
t 

a
n

d
 E

n
te

rp
ri

s
e

 S
a

v
in

g
s

-7
,0

2
1

0

A
d

d
it

io
n

a
l 
T

a
rg

e
ts

 R
e

a
ll
o

c
a

te
d

 C
ro

s
s

 C
o

u
n

c
il

P
ro

c
u

re
m

e
n

t 
- 

C
a

te
g

o
ry

 M
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 
s
a

v
in

g
s

-7
6

R
S

o
u

rc
e

 o
f 

s
a

v
in

g
s
 t
o

 b
e

 i
d

e
n

ti
fi
e

d

P
ro

c
u

re
m

e
n

t 

(P
a

u
l 
S

m
it
h

)

A
g

e
n

c
y
 S

ta
ff

 -
 r

e
d

u
c
ti
o

n
 i
n

 u
s
a

g
e

-1
6

0
A

S
a

v
in

g
s
 A

llo
c
a

ti
o

n
 f

ro
m

 C
o

rp
o

ra
te

 b
a

s
e

d
 o

n
 h

is
to

ri
c
a

l 

a
c
tu

a
ls

 t
h

a
t 
w

e
re

 h
ig

h
e

r 
d

u
e

 t
o

 t
ra

n
s
it
io

n
 a

n
d

 

im
p

le
m

e
n

ta
ti
o

n
 o

f 
M

T
F

S
 a

n
d

 t
ra

n
s
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n
 p

ro
je

c
ts

 

s
a

v
in

g
s
. 
 D

o
u

b
le

 c
o

u
n

t 
w

it
h

 s
a

v
in

g
s
 a

b
o

v
e

. 

A
c
ti
o

n
 i
n

 t
ra

in
 t
o

 d
e

liv
e

r 
a

s
 m

u
c
h

 a
s
 p

o
s
s
ib

le
 i
n

 1
3

/1
4

. 
It
 i
s
 

a
n

ti
c
ip

a
te

d
 t
h

a
t 
s
a

v
in

g
 w

ill
 b

e
 d

e
liv

e
re

d
 i
n

 1
4

/1
5

. 

P
h

ili
p

 H
a

m
b

e
rg

e
r

S
ta

ff
in

g
 -

 V
a

c
a

n
c
y
 m

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t
-1

5
0

A

S
a

v
in

g
s
 A

llo
c
a

ti
o

n
 f

ro
m

 C
o

rp
o

ra
te

 b
a

s
e

d
 o

n
 h

is
to

ri
c
a

l 

a
c
tu

a
ls

 t
h

a
t 
w

e
re

 h
ig

h
e

r 
d

u
e

 t
o

 t
ra

n
s
it
io

n
 a

n
d

 

im
p

le
m

e
n

ta
ti
o

n
 o

f 
M

T
F

S
 a

n
d

 t
ra

n
s
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n
 p

ro
je

c
ts

 

s
a

v
in

g
s
. 
 D

o
u

b
le

 c
o

u
n

t 
w

it
h

 s
a

v
in

g
s
 a

b
o

v
e

. 

A
c
ti
o

n
 i
n

 t
ra

in
 t
o

 d
e

liv
e

r 
a

s
 m

u
c
h

 a
s
 p

o
s
s
ib

le
 i
n

 1
3

/1
4

. 
It
 i
s
 

a
n

ti
c
ip

a
te

d
 t
h

a
t 
s
a

v
in

g
 w

ill
 b

e
 d

e
liv

e
re

d
 i
n

 1
4

/1
5

. 

P
h

ili
p

 H
a

m
b

e
rg

e
r

R
e

c
h

a
rg

e
 u

ti
lit

y
 c

o
s
ts

 f
o

r 
c
o

m
p

u
te

r 
ro

o
m

 t
o

 

C
a

p
it
a

-8
3

G

N
e

w
 r

e
c
h

a
rg

e
 a

n
d

 w
ill

 b
e

 b
a

s
e

d
 o

n
 a

c
tu

a
l 
u

ti
lit

y
 c

o
s
t.
 A

 

m
e

te
r 

to
 b

e
 i
n

s
ta

lle
d

 t
o

 m
e

a
s
u

re
 t
h

e
 c

o
n

s
u

m
p

ti
o

n
 

s
e

p
a

ra
te

ly
. 
C

a
p

it
a

 w
ill

 b
e

 i
n

v
o

ic
e

d
 o

n
c
e

 a
 g

o
o

d
 s

a
m

p
le

 o
f 

d
a

ta
 i
s
 o

b
ta

in
e

d
 a

n
d

 a
g

re
e

d
 w

it
h

 C
a

p
it
a

.

A
n

d
y
 P

a
rs

o
n

s

-4
6

9
0

N
e

t 
E

n
v
ir

o
n

m
e

n
t 

a
n

d
 E

n
te

rp
ri

s
e

-4
,9

3
8

0

C
O

M
M

U
N

IT
Y

, 
H

E
A

L
T

H
 A

N
D

 W
E

L
L

B
E

IN
G

In
v
e

s
tm

e
n

t 
in

 S
e

rv
ic

e
s

41



M
E

D
IU

M
 T

E
R

M
 F

IN
A

N
C

IA
L

 S
T

R
A

T
E

G
Y

 2
0

1
3

-1
4

 I
M

P
L

E
M

E
N

T
A

T
IO

N
A

p
p

e
n

d
ix

 2

2
0

1
3

-1
4

2
0

1
3

-1
4

 

R
A

G
C

o
m

m
e

n
ts

O
ff

ic
e

r 
L

e
a

d

£
0

0
0

S
ta

tu
s

H
o

m
e

le
s
s
n

e
s
s
 [
1

0
0

 f
a

m
ili

e
s
 &

 a
n

ti
c
ip

a
te

d
 B

&
B

 

H
B

 c
h

a
n

g
e

s
]

-2
5

0
A

£
1

5
0

k
 f

la
g

g
e

d
 u

p
 a

s
 u

n
a

c
h

ie
v
a

b
le

 i
n

 2
0

1
3

/1
4

 a
n

d
 a

d
d

it
io

n
a

l 

s
a

v
in

g
s
 m

a
d

e
 e

ls
e

w
h

e
re

 a
s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

c
o

m
m

is
s
io

n
in

g
 p

a
n

e
l 

p
ro

p
o

s
a

ls
 t
o

 c
o

v
e

r 
th

is
 a

m
o

u
n

t.
 S

a
v
in

g
 t
h

e
n

 r
e

-i
n

s
ta

te
d

 b
y
 

m
e

m
b

e
rs

 d
u

e
 t
o

 d
e

la
y
 i
n

 i
m

p
le

m
e

n
ta

ti
o

n
 o

f 
u

n
iv

e
rs

a
l 
c
re

d
it
, 

b
u

t 
s
ti
ll 

n
o

t 
c
o

n
s
id

e
re

d
 t
o

 b
e

 a
c
h

ie
v
a

b
le

 o
n

 a
 p

e
rm

a
n

e
n

t 

b
a

s
is

 b
y
 o

ff
ic

e
rs

, 
a

lt
h

o
u

g
h

 i
t 
m

a
y
 b

e
 d

e
liv

e
ra

b
le

 i
n

 t
h

e
 s

h
o

rt
 

te
rm

. 
 I
n

 2
0

1
3

/1
4

 c
o

m
p

e
n

s
a

to
ry

 s
a

v
in

g
s
 l
ik

e
ly

 t
o

 a
v
o

id
 t
h

is
 

b
e

in
g

 o
v
e

rs
p

e
n

t.

J
o

n
 D

a
lt
o

n

H
o

m
e

le
s
s
n

e
s
s

1
,0

0
0

A
Im

p
a

c
t 
o

f 
w

e
lf
a

re
 r

e
fo

rm
 n

o
t 
y
e

t 
k
n

o
w

n
. 
W

e
 b

e
lie

v
e

 w
e

 c
a

n
 

m
e

e
t 
fr

o
m

 w
it
h

in
 t
h

e
s
e

 f
ig

u
re

s
, 
b

u
t 
d

e
la

y
 i
n

 i
m

p
le

m
e

n
ta

ti
o

n
 

m
a

y
 r

e
s
u

lt
 i
n

 m
o

v
e

m
e

n
t 
b

e
tw

e
e

n
 y

e
a

rs
.

J
o

n
 D

a
lt
o

n

In
v
e

s
t 
to

 S
a

v
e

 i
n

 P
S

L
2

8
9

A

D
u

e
 t
o

 t
h

e
 i
m

p
a

c
t 
o

f 
w

e
lf
a

re
 r

e
fo

rm
, 
it
 h

a
s
 p

ro
v
e

n
 m

o
re

 

d
if
fi
c
u

lt
 t
h

a
n

 a
n

ti
c
ip

a
te

d
 t
o

 s
o

u
rc

e
 n

e
w

 p
ri

v
a

te
-s

e
c
to

r 

p
ro

p
e

rt
ie

s
 t
o

 l
e

a
s
e

 a
s
 l
a

n
d

lo
rd

s
 a

re
 i
n

c
re

a
s
in

g
ly

 c
o

n
c
e

rn
e

d
 

a
b

o
u

t 
th

e
 p

o
te

n
ti
a

l 
fo

r 
lo

s
s
 o

f 
in

c
o

m
e

. 
T

h
is

 i
n

it
ia

ti
v
e

 i
s
 i
n

 t
h

e
 

p
ro

c
e

s
s
 o

f 
b

e
in

g
 r

e
v
ie

w
e

d
 t
o

 m
a

k
e

 i
t 
m

o
re

 a
tt
ra

c
ti
v
e

, 
b

u
t 
w

e
 

a
n

ti
c
ip

a
te

 t
h

a
t 
w

e
 w

ill
 u

s
e

 t
h

is
 b

u
d

g
e

t 
b

y
 t
h

e
 e

n
d

 o
f 

2
0

1
4

-1
5

. 
 J

o
n

 D
a

lt
o

n

H
o

u
s

in
g

 G
e

n
e

ra
l 
F

u
n

d
1

,0
3

9

D
e

m
o

g
ra

p
h

ic
 G

ro
w

th
2

,8
0

0

A

H
ig

h
 r

is
k
 d

e
m

a
n

d
-l

e
d

 b
u

d
g

e
t 
re

q
u

ir
in

g
 o

n
-g

o
in

g
 m

o
n

it
o

ri
n

g
; 

th
is

 e
x
c
lu

d
e

s
 p

o
te

n
ti
a

l 
C

o
n

ti
n

u
in

g
 C

a
re

 s
h

if
ts

 w
h

ic
h

 a
re

 

a
s
s
u

m
e

d
 t
o

 b
e

 c
o

v
e

re
d

 b
y
 t
h

e
 C

o
rp

o
ra

te
 C

o
n

ti
n

g
e

n
c
y
.

V
is

v
a

 S
a

th
a

s
iv

a
m

M
e

n
ta

l 
H

e
a

lt
h

 P
ro

p
e

rt
ie

s
5

0

G

V
is

v
a

 S
a

th
a

s
iv

a
m

W
e

s
t 
L

o
n

d
o

n
 A

lli
a

n
c
e

1
0

G
C

h
ri

s
 G

re
e

n
w

a
y

A
d

u
lt

s
2

,8
6

0

C
u

lt
u

ra
l 
S

tr
a

te
g

y
 R

e
v
ie

w
 g

ro
w

th
 a

n
d

 e
ff

ic
ie

n
c
ie

s
-1

5
0

G
G

ro
w

th
 i
n

 1
2

/1
3

 n
o

w
 r

e
v
e

rs
e

d
.

?

L
o

n
d

o
n

 Y
o

u
th

 G
a

m
e

s
8

G
C

o
n

tr
ib

u
ti
o

n
 a

g
re

e
d

 w
it
h

 L
o

n
d

o
n

 C
o

u
n

c
ils

.
?

U
n

d
e

r 
O

n
e

 S
k
y

2
5

G
P

la
n

s
 i
n

 p
la

c
e

 t
o

 f
u

lly
 u

ti
lis

e
 t
h

is
 f

u
n

d
in

g
.

?

S
u

p
p

o
rt

 f
o

r 
s
p

e
c
ia

lis
t 
w

e
lf
a

re
 a

d
v
ic

e
 s

e
rv

ic
e

s
9

0
G

P
la

n
s
 i
n

 p
la

c
e

 t
o

 f
u

lly
 u

ti
lis

e
 t
h

is
 f

u
n

d
in

g
.

?

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 &

 C
u

lt
u

re
-2

7

42



M
E

D
IU

M
 T

E
R

M
 F

IN
A

N
C

IA
L

 S
T

R
A

T
E

G
Y

 2
0

1
3

-1
4

 I
M

P
L

E
M

E
N

T
A

T
IO

N
A

p
p

e
n

d
ix

 2

2
0

1
3

-1
4

2
0

1
3

-1
4

 

R
A

G
C

o
m

m
e

n
ts

O
ff

ic
e

r 
L

e
a

d

£
0

0
0

S
ta

tu
s

T
o

ta
l 
In

v
e

s
tm

e
n

t 
in

 S
e

rv
ic

e
s

3
,8

7
2

S
a

v
in

g
s

H
o

u
s
in

g
 N

e
e

d
s
 -

 P
ri

v
a

te
 S

e
c
to

r 
L

e
a

s
in

g
 S

c
h

e
m

e
G

J
o

n
 D

a
lt
o

n

H
o

u
s
in

g
 S

e
rv

ic
e

 E
ff

ic
ie

n
c
y
 R

e
v
ie

w
G

P
a

rt
ia

l 
s
a

v
in

g
s
 (

c
.5

0
%

) 
id

e
n

ti
fi
e

d
, 
w

it
h

 t
h

e
 r

e
m

a
in

d
e

r 
s
ti
ll 

to
 

b
e

 f
o

u
n

d
. 
W

e
 b

e
lie

v
e

 i
t 
w

ill
 b

e
 p

o
s
s
ib

le
 t
o

 d
e

liv
e

r 
th

is
.

A
lis

o
n

 P
e

g
g

/J
a

n
e

 

F
e

rn
le

y
/J

o
n

 

D
a

lt
o

n

R
e

a
llo

c
a

ti
o

n
 o

f 
s
ta

ff
 t
im

e
 f

ro
m

 G
F

 t
o

 H
R

A
-2

1
5

G

A
lr

e
a

d
y
 i
m

p
le

m
e

n
te

d

A
lis

o
n

 P
e

g
g

/J
a

n
e

 

F
e

rn
le

y
/J

o
n

 

D
a

lt
o

n

D
e

le
ti
o

n
 o

f 
v
a

c
a

n
t 
E

n
a

b
lin

g
 P

ro
je

c
t 
O

ff
ic

e
r 

P
o

s
t

-3
6

G

P
o

s
t 
a

lr
e

a
d

y
 d

e
le

te
d

.

A
lis

o
n

 P
e

g
g

/J
a

n
e

 

F
e

rn
le

y

In
v
e

s
t 
to

 S
a

v
e

 -
 c

a
s
h

 i
n

c
e

n
ti
v
e

s
-4

8
G

C
a

s
h

 i
n

c
e

n
ti
v
e

 s
c
h

e
m

e
 n

o
w

 o
ff

ic
ia

lly
 l
a

u
n

c
h

e
d

 a
n

d
 h

ig
h

 

le
v
e

ls
 o

f 
in

te
re

s
t 
a

lr
e

a
d

y
 e

x
p

re
s
s
e

d
. 
W

e
 b

e
lie

v
e

 t
h

e
 t
o

ta
l 

s
a

v
in

g
s
 c

a
n

 b
e

 d
e

liv
e

re
d

 b
y
 t
h

e
 e

n
d

 o
f 

2
0

1
4

-1
5

.

J
o

n
 D

a
lt
o

n
/J

a
n

e
 

F
e

rn
le

y

A
ff

o
rd

a
b

le
 P

S
L

 a
c
c
o

m
m

o
d

a
ti
o

n
-2

4
0

A
D

u
e

 t
o

 t
h

e
 i
m

p
a

c
t 
o

f 
w

e
lf
a

re
 r

e
fo

rm
, 
it
 h

a
s
 p

ro
v
e

n
 m

o
re

 

d
if
fi
c
u

lt
 t
h

a
n

 a
n

ti
c
ip

a
te

d
 t
o

 s
o

u
rc

e
 n

e
w

 p
ri

v
a

te
-s

e
c
to

r 

p
ro

p
e

rt
ie

s
 t
o

 l
e

a
s
e

 a
s
 l
a

n
d

lo
rd

s
 a

re
 i
n

c
re

a
s
in

g
ly

 c
o

n
c
e

rn
e

d
 

a
b

o
u

t 
th

e
 p

o
te

n
ti
a

l 
fo

r 
lo

s
s
 o

f 
in

c
o

m
e

. 
T

h
is

 i
n

it
ia

ti
v
e

 i
s
 i
n

 t
h

e
 

p
ro

c
e

s
s
 o

f 
b

e
in

g
 r

e
v
ie

w
e

d
 t
o

 m
a

k
e

 i
t 
m

o
re

 a
tt
ra

c
ti
v
e

, 
b

u
t 
w

e
 

a
n

ti
c
ip

a
te

 t
h

a
t 
w

e
 w

ill
 g

e
n

e
ra

te
 t
h

e
 r

e
q

u
ir

e
d

 s
a

v
in

g
s
 b

y
 t
h

e
 

e
n

d
 o

f 
2

0
1

4
-1

5
. 
 

J
o

n
 D

a
lt
o

n

R
e

d
u

c
e

d
 c

o
s
ts

 a
t 
T

ra
v
e

lle
rs

 S
it
e

-1
0

G
T

o
n

i 
B

u
rk

e

L
a

te
 s

a
v
in

g
s
 -

 v
a

c
a

n
c
y
 m

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t
-1

6
R

U
n

lik
e

ly
 t
o

 b
e

 d
e

liv
e

re
d

 v
ia

 t
h

is
 r

o
u

te
 b

u
t 
e

x
p

e
c
te

d
 t
o

 b
e

 

d
e

liv
e

re
d

 t
h

ro
u

g
h

 m
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 
o

f 
c
o

m
p

e
n

s
a

to
ry

 s
a

v
in

g
s
 

a
c
ro

s
s
 t
h

e
 d

ir
e

c
to

ra
te

A
ll

L
a

te
 s

a
v
in

g
s
 -

 a
g

e
n

c
y
 c

o
s
ts

-1
7

R
U

n
lik

e
ly

 t
o

 b
e

 d
e

liv
e

re
d

 v
ia

 t
h

is
 r

o
u

te
 b

u
t 
e

x
p

e
c
te

d
 t
o

 b
e

 

d
e

liv
e

re
d

 t
h

ro
u

g
h

 m
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 
o

f 
c
o

m
p

e
n

s
a

to
ry

 s
a

v
in

g
s
 

a
c
ro

s
s
 t
h

e
 d

ir
e

c
to

ra
te

A
ll

L
a

te
 s

a
v
in

g
s
 -

 r
e

d
u

c
e

d
 i
n

fl
a

ti
o

n
 a

llo
c
a

ti
o

n
-6

G

P
ro

b
a

b
ly

 c
o

n
ta

in
a

b
le

 b
u

t 
n

o
t 
y
e

t 
a

llo
c
a

te
d

 t
o

 s
p

e
c
if
ic

 a
re

a
s
.

A
ll

43



M
E

D
IU

M
 T

E
R

M
 F

IN
A

N
C

IA
L

 S
T

R
A

T
E

G
Y

 2
0

1
3

-1
4

 I
M

P
L

E
M

E
N

T
A

T
IO

N
A

p
p

e
n

d
ix

 2

2
0

1
3

-1
4

2
0

1
3

-1
4

 

R
A

G
C

o
m

m
e

n
ts

O
ff

ic
e

r 
L

e
a

d

£
0

0
0

S
ta

tu
s

E
m

p
ty

 H
o

m
e

s
 I
n

it
ia

ti
v
e

G

B
a

s
e

d
 o

n
 p

re
v
io

u
s
 e

x
p

e
ri

e
n

c
e

, 
th

is
 s

h
o

u
ld

 b
e

 a
c
h

ie
v
a

b
le

.

A
lis

o
n

 P
e

g
g

H
o

u
s

in
g

 G
e

n
e

ra
l 
F

u
n

d
-5

8
7

C
o

n
tr

a
c
t 
M

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
- 

m
a

n
a

g
in

g
 i
n

fl
a

ti
o

n
-1

0
0

G
A

c
h

ie
v
e

d
C

h
ri

s
 G

re
e

n
w

a
y

C
o

n
tr

a
c
t 
M

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
- 

e
ff

ic
ie

n
c
ie

s
-1

5
0

G
A

c
h

ie
v
e

d
C

h
ri

s
 G

re
e

n
w

a
y

C
o

n
tr

a
c
t 
M

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
- 

H
o

m
e

 c
a

re
 p

ro
v
id

e
rs

-9
0

0

G

A
c
h

ie
v
e

d

V
is

v
a

 S
a

th
a

s
iv

a
m

 

/ 
C

h
ri

s
 G

re
e

n
w

a
y

W
L

A
 J

o
in

t 
P

ro
c
u

re
m

e
n

t:
 A

P
C

 R
e

s
id

e
n

ti
a

l 
C

a
re

-1
5

0

G

U
n

c
e

rt
a

in
 t
h

a
t 
c
o

n
ti
n

u
in

g
 t
o

 p
la

c
e

 a
t 
A

P
C

 r
a

te
s
 w

ill
 d

e
liv

e
r 

th
e

 r
e

q
u

ir
e

d
 l
e

v
e

l 
o

f 
s
a

v
in

g
. 
H

o
w

e
v
e

r,
 w

e
 b

e
lie

v
e

 i
t 
is

 l
ik

e
ly

 

g
iv

e
n

 t
h

e
 p

a
rt

-y
e

a
r 

e
ff

e
c
t 
o

f 
2

0
1

2
/1

3
 p

la
c
e

m
e

n
ts

. 
T

h
is

 

n
e

e
d

s
 t
o

 b
e

 m
o

n
it
o

re
d

 t
h

ro
u

g
h

o
u

t 
th

e
 y

e
a

r.

V
is

v
a

 S
a

th
a

s
iv

a
m

C
N

W
L

: 
M

e
n

ta
l 
H

e
a

lt
h

 E
ff

ic
ie

n
c
ie

s
-1

0
0

G
T

h
is

 s
a

v
in

g
 i
s
 d

e
p

e
n

d
e

n
t 
o

n
 C

N
W

L
 m

a
n

a
g

in
g

 w
it
h

in
 

e
x
is

ti
n

g
 b

u
d

g
e

t 
a

n
d

 c
o

n
ta

in
in

g
 a

n
y
 p

re
s
s
u

re
s
 t
h

a
t 
a

ri
s
e

 f
ro

m
 

p
la

c
e

m
e

n
ts

 i
n

 t
h

e
 y

e
a

r.
 I
n

 a
d

d
it
io

n
, 
th

e
re

 a
re

 h
is

to
ri

c
 i
s
s
u

e
s
 

re
g

a
rd

in
g

 C
N

W
L

's
 a

b
ili

ty
 t
o

 d
e

liv
e

r 
s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 w

it
h

in
 t
h

e
 

a
p

p
ro

v
e

d
 f

in
a

n
c
ia

l 
e

n
v
e

lo
p

e
.

V
is

v
a

 S
a

th
a

s
iv

a
m

R
e

s
id

e
n

ti
a

l 
C

a
re

 S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 R
e

v
ie

w
-1

,5
5

0
R

In
v
e

s
tm

e
n

t 
in

 C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 B

a
s
e

d
 S

e
rv

ic
e

s
7

7
5

R

D
a

y
 C

a
re

 S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 R
e

v
ie

w
-3

0
0

R
T

h
e

re
 a

re
 p

re
s
s
u

re
s
 i
n

 t
h

e
 d

e
liv

e
ry

 o
f 

th
is

 s
a

v
in

g
 a

s
 

c
o

n
s
u

lt
a

ti
o

n
 d

e
la

y
e

d
 d

u
e

 t
o

 f
e

e
d

b
a

c
k
; 
In

 a
d

d
it
io

n
 s

ta
ff

 

n
o

ti
c
e

 p
e

ri
o

d
s
 e

tc
 w

ill
 n

e
e

d
 t
o

 b
e

 f
a

c
to

re
d

 i
n

 t
o

 t
h

e
 

ti
m

e
s
c
a

le
s
 t
h

u
s
 d

e
la

y
in

g
 t
h

e
 i
m

p
le

m
e

n
ta

ti
o

n
 d

a
te

 a
n

d
 

th
e

re
fo

re
 t
h

e
 s

a
v
in

g
s
; 
S

o
m

e
 s

a
v
in

g
s
 t
o

 d
a

te
 h

o
w

e
v
e

r,
 h

a
v
e

 

b
e

e
n

 r
e

c
o

g
n

is
e

d
 w

it
h

in
 t
h

e
 e

x
is

ti
n

g
 s

e
rv

ic
e

s
 a

n
d

 f
u

rt
h

e
r 

s
a

v
in

g
s
 a

re
 d

e
p

e
n

d
e

n
t 
o

n
 t
h

e
 c

lo
s
u

re
 o

f 
B

e
n

tl
e

y
 D

a
y
 C

e
n

tr
e

 

b
y
 3

1
.1

2
.2

0
1

3

J
o

n
a

th
a

n
 P

ri
c
e

R
e

a
b

le
m

e
n

t
-9

0
0

G
P

la
n

s
 t
o

 a
c
h

ie
v
e

 t
h

is
 a

re
 i
n

 p
la

c
e

, 
b

u
t 
w

ill
 n

e
e

d
 o

n
g

o
in

g
 

m
o

n
it
o

ri
n

g
 a

lo
n

g
s
id

e
 o

th
e

r 
p

u
rc

h
a

s
in

g
 b

u
d

g
e

ts
 a

s
 t
h

e
s
e

 

c
a

n
 b

e
 v

e
ry

 v
o

la
ti
le

. 

J
o

n
a

th
a

n
 P

ri
c
e

C
e

s
s
a

ti
o

n
 o

f 
F

u
n

d
in

g
 f

o
r 

T
ra

n
s
p

o
rt

 C
lu

b
s

-7
5

G
F

u
n

d
in

g
 f

o
r 

tr
a

n
s
p

o
rt

 s
to

p
p

e
d

 N
o

v
e

m
b

e
r 

2
0

1
2

J
o

n
a

th
a

n
 P

ri
c
e

J
o

n
a

th
a

n
 P

ri
c
e

It
 i
s
 a

n
ti
c
ip

a
te

d
 t
h

a
t 
a

 n
e

w
 s

tr
u

c
tu

re
 w

ill
 b

e
 i
n

 p
la

c
e

 b
y
 1

 

J
a

n
u

a
ry

 2
0

1
4

 a
n

d
 3

/1
2

 m
th

s
 o

f 
s
a

v
in

g
s
 w

ill
 b

e
 a

c
h

ie
v
e

d
 o

f 

44



M
E

D
IU

M
 T

E
R

M
 F

IN
A

N
C

IA
L

 S
T

R
A

T
E

G
Y

 2
0

1
3

-1
4

 I
M

P
L

E
M

E
N

T
A

T
IO

N
A

p
p

e
n

d
ix

 2

2
0

1
3

-1
4

2
0

1
3

-1
4

 

R
A

G
C

o
m

m
e

n
ts

O
ff

ic
e

r 
L

e
a

d

£
0

0
0

S
ta

tu
s

S
e

c
u

re
 f

u
rt

h
e

r 
e

a
rm

a
rk

e
d

 i
n

v
e

s
tm

e
n

t 
fr

o
m

 C
C

G
 

in
 A

d
u

lt
 S

o
c
ia

l 
C

a
re

-5
0

0

A

D
e

p
e

n
d

e
n

t 
o

n
 f

u
rt

h
e

r 
d

is
c
u

s
s
io

n
s
 w

it
h

 t
h

e
 C

C
G

 t
o

 a
g

re
e

 

th
a

t 
th

e
 a

d
d

it
io

n
a

l 
g

ra
n

t 
fu

n
d

in
g

 c
a

n
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
 e

x
is

ti
n

g
 r

a
th

e
r 

th
a

n
 n

e
w

 s
e

rv
ic

e
 p

ro
v
is

io
n

. 
T

h
e

re
 i
s
 h

o
w

e
v
e

r 
a

 r
is

k
 a

ro
u

n
d

 

th
e

 o
n

g
o

in
g

 r
e

la
ti
o

n
s
h

ip
 w

it
h

 t
h

e
 C

C
G

.

C
a

ro
l 
Y

a
rd

e

D
e

c
o

m
m

is
s
io

n
 G

re
e

n
v
ie

w
 S

e
rv

ic
e

s
-2

3
0

G

A
c
ti
o

n
e

d
 i
n

 2
0

1
2

/1
3

V
is

v
a

 S
a

th
a

s
iv

a
m

O
c
c
u

p
a

ti
o

n
a

l 
T

h
e

ra
p

y
-2

3
0

A
C

a
p

it
a

lis
a

ti
o

n
 o

f 
s
ta

ff
 c

o
s
ts

 m
a

y
 b

e
 a

 r
is

k
 a

n
d

 t
h

is
 i
s
 

c
u

rr
e

n
tl
y
 b

e
in

g
 r

e
v
ie

w
e

d
 w

it
h

 T
e

c
h

n
ic

a
l 
F

in
a

n
c
e

 t
o

 a
v
o

id
 

fu
tu

re
 a

u
d

it
 c

h
a

lle
n

g
e

.

V
is

v
a

 S
a

th
a

s
iv

a
m

L
a

te
 s

a
v
in

g
s
 -

 v
a

c
a

n
c
y
 m

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t
-6

9

R
U

n
lik

e
ly

 t
o

 b
e

 d
e

liv
e

re
d

 v
ia

 t
h

is
 r

o
u

te
 b

u
t 
e

x
p

e
c
te

d
 t
o

 b
e

 

d
e

liv
e

re
d

 t
h

ro
u

g
h

 m
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 
o

f 
s
a

v
in

g
s
 a

c
ro

s
s
 t
h

e
 

d
ir

e
c
to

ra
te

 

A
ll

L
a

te
 s

a
v
in

g
s
 -

 a
g

e
n

c
y
 c

o
s
ts

-7
3

R
U

n
lik

e
ly

 t
o

 b
e

 d
e

liv
e

re
d

 v
ia

 t
h

is
 r

o
u

te
 b

u
t 
e

x
p

e
c
te

d
 t
o

 b
e

 

d
e

liv
e

re
d

 t
h

ro
u

g
h

 m
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 
o

f 
s
a

v
in

g
s
 a

c
ro

s
s
 t
h

e
 

d
ir

e
c
to

ra
te

 

A
ll

L
a

te
 s

a
v
in

g
s
 -

 r
e

d
u

c
e

d
 i
n

fl
a

ti
o

n
 a

llo
c
a

ti
o

n
-1

9
7

G
P

ro
b

a
b

ly
 c

o
n

ta
in

a
b

le
 b

u
t 
in

te
rl

in
k
e

d
 w

it
h

 p
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e

 o
n

 

o
v
e

ra
ll 

p
u

rc
h

a
s
in

g
 b

u
d

g
e

t.

A
ll

A
d

u
lt

s
-4

,7
4

9

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 D

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 
re

v
ie

w
 o

f 
s
tr

u
c
tu

re
 a

n
d

 

s
e

rv
ic

e
 r

e
p

ro
v
is

io
n

-4
8

G
T

h
e

 r
e

le
v
a

n
t 
s
a

la
ri

e
s
 b

u
d

g
e

ts
 h

a
v
e

 b
e

e
n

 r
e

d
u

c
e

d
 a

n
d

 t
h

is
 

s
a

v
in

g
 w

ill
 b

e
 a

c
h

ie
v
e

d
.

L
ib

ra
ri

e
s
 T

ra
n

s
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n
 2

-2
5

G
T

h
is

 w
ill

 r
e

d
u

c
e

 t
h

e
 b

u
d

g
e

t 
a

v
a

ila
b

le
 f

o
r 

o
u

ts
o

u
rc

in
g

 t
h

e
 

p
ro

je
c
t.

C
u

lt
u

ra
l 
S

tr
a

te
g

y
 R

e
v
ie

w
 e

ff
ic

ie
n

c
ie

s
 -

 s
a

v
in

g
s
 

s
u

b
je

c
t 
to

 t
e

n
d

e
r 

w
it
h

 E
a

lin
g

 &
 B

re
n

t
-2

0
0

A

It
 i
s
 a

n
ti
c
ip

a
te

d
 t
h

a
t 
th

e
 c

o
n

tr
a

c
ts

 w
ill

 c
o

m
m

e
n

c
e

 o
n

 1
/9

/1
3

. 
 

D
u

e
 t
o

 t
h

e
 l
a

te
n

e
s
s
 o

f 
im

p
le

m
e

n
ta

ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 s

ig
n

if
ic

a
n

t 

c
o

s
ts

 o
f 

e
x
te

n
d

in
g

 t
h

e
 L

e
is

u
re

 c
o

n
tr

a
c
t,
 n

o
 s

a
v
in

g
s
 w

ill
 b

e
 

m
a

d
e

 i
n

 1
3

-1
4

 a
n

d
 a

t 
P

e
ri

o
d

 3
, 
a

 f
o

re
c
a

s
t 
o

v
e

rs
p

e
n

d
 o

f 

£
2

2
9

k
 o

n
 L

ib
ra

ri
e

s
 a

n
d

 L
e

is
u

re
 i
s
 r

e
p

o
rt

e
d

. 
 A

d
d

it
io

n
a

lly
, 

s
o

m
e

 f
u

n
d

in
g

 w
ill

 b
e

 r
e

q
u

ir
e

d
 f

o
r 

m
o

b
ili

s
a

ti
o

n
 c

o
s
ts

, 

p
a

rt
ic

u
la

rl
y
 I
T

 c
o

s
ts

 i
.e

. 
u

n
c
o

u
p

lin
g

 t
h

e
 I
T

 f
ro

m
 t
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il.

 

A
p

p
ro

x
im

a
te

 c
o

s
t 
fo

r 
th

is
 i
s
 £

1
4

5
k
. 
T

h
is

 c
o

s
t 
h

a
s
 n

o
t 
b

e
e

n
 

in
c
lu

d
e

d
 i
n

 t
h

e
 r

e
v
e

n
u

e
 p

o
s
it
io

n
 a

t 
P

e
ri

o
d

 3
.

45



M
E

D
IU

M
 T

E
R

M
 F

IN
A

N
C

IA
L

 S
T

R
A

T
E

G
Y

 2
0

1
3

-1
4

 I
M

P
L

E
M

E
N

T
A

T
IO

N
A

p
p

e
n

d
ix

 2

2
0

1
3

-1
4

2
0

1
3

-1
4

 

R
A

G
C

o
m

m
e

n
ts

O
ff

ic
e

r 
L

e
a

d

£
0

0
0

S
ta

tu
s

R
e

d
u

c
e

 A
d

u
lt
 L

e
a

rn
in

g
 S

u
b

s
id

y
-7

3

G
K

e
n

to
n

 L
e

a
rn

in
g

 C
e

n
tr

e
 h

a
v
e

 a
g

re
e

d
 t
o

 f
u

n
d

 t
h

e
 r

u
n

n
in

g
 

c
o

s
ts

 £
2

4
k
.

P
la

n
s
 a

re
 i
n

 p
la

c
e

 f
o

r 
th

e
 S

e
rv

ic
e

 m
a

n
a

g
e

r 
to

 b
e

 f
u

n
d

e
d

 

fr
o

m
 t
h

e
 g

ra
n

t 
fr

o
m

 S
e

p
te

m
b

e
r 

2
0

1
3

.

R
e

d
u

c
e

 s
u

b
s
id

y
 t
o

 h
a

rr
o

w
 y

o
u

n
g

 m
u

s
ic

ia
n

s
-2

8

G
A

lt
e

rn
a

ti
v
e

 f
u

n
d

in
g

 i
s
 a

v
a

ila
b

le
 t
o

 H
a

rr
o

w
 Y

o
u

n
g

 M
u

s
ic

ia
n

s
; 

g
ra

n
t 
re

d
u

c
e

d
 b

y
 5

0
%

 i
n

 1
3

/1
4

.

S
h

a
re

 r
e

s
p

o
n

s
ib

ili
ty

 f
o

r 
C

o
m

m
u

n
it
y
 C

o
h

e
s
io

n
 

a
c
ro

s
s
 C

o
u

n
c
il

-6
3

R
T

h
e

 s
a

v
in

g
 a

s
s
u

m
e

s
 t
h

e
 d

e
le

ti
o

n
 o

f 
1

 F
T

E
 w

it
h

 e
ff

e
c
t 
fr

o
m

 

1
/4

/1
3

. 
 H

o
w

e
v
e

r,
 t
h

e
 c

o
n

s
u

lt
a

ti
o

n
 h

a
s
 o

n
ly

 c
o

m
m

e
n

c
e

d
 

a
n

d
 d

u
e

 t
o

 n
o

ti
c
e

 r
e

q
u

ir
e

m
e

n
ts

 o
n

ly
 p

a
rt

 y
e

a
r 

e
ff

e
c
t 
w

ill
 b

e
 

a
c
h

ie
v
e

d
 i
n

 1
3

/1
4

. 
 P

e
ri

o
d

 3
 a

s
s
u

m
e

s
 t
h

e
 p

o
s
t 
is

 d
e

le
te

d
 

3
0

/1
2

/1
3

. 
U

n
lik

e
ly

 t
o

 b
e

 a
c
h

ie
v
e

d
.

C
o

m
m

e
rc

ia
lis

a
ti
o

n
 H

a
tc

h
 E

n
d

 P
o

o
l,
 A

rt
s
 C

e
n

tr
e

, 

M
u

s
e

u
m

 &
 B

a
n

n
is

te
r 

s
ta

d
iu

m
-1

1
7

R

T
h

e
 i
n

c
o

m
e

 t
a

rg
e

ts
 a

g
re

e
d

 b
y
 M

e
m

b
e

rs
, 
a

h
e

a
d

 o
f 

th
e

 

d
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 
o

f 
th

e
 b

u
s
in

e
s
s
 c

a
s
e

 w
e

re
 e

x
tr

e
m

e
ly

 

c
h

a
lle

n
g

in
g

, 
a

n
d

 a
s
 a

 r
e

s
u

lt
 n

o
t 
c
o

n
s
id

e
re

d
 a

c
h

ie
v
a

b
le

 f
o

r 

e
it
h

e
r 

th
e

 M
u

s
e

u
m

 [
w

h
ic

h
 w

ill
 b

e
 c

lo
s
e

d
 u

n
ti
l 
p

o
te

n
ti
a

lly
 

N
o

v
e

m
b

e
r 

2
0

1
4

 d
u

e
 t
o

 T
it
h

e
 B

a
rn

 w
o

rk
s
] 
o

r 
th

e
 A

rt
s
 C

e
n

tr
e

. 

A
 C

o
m

m
e

rc
ia

lis
a

ti
o

n
 p

ro
je

c
t 
h

a
s
 b

e
e

n
 s

e
t 
u

p
 t
o

 d
e

v
e

lo
p

 

fu
rt

h
e

r 
a

n
d

 i
n

d
ic

a
te

 t
h

a
t 
th

is
 s

a
v
in

g
 m

a
y
 b

e
 d

e
liv

e
ra

b
le

 i
n

 a
 

lo
n

g
e

r 
ti
m

e
 f

ra
m

e
, 
re

q
u

ir
in

g
 c

o
m

p
e

n
s
a

to
ry

 s
a

v
in

g
s
 t
o

 b
e

 

id
e

n
ti
fi
e

d
 i
n

 t
h

e
 s

h
o

rt
e

r 
te

rm
.

R
e

v
ie

w
 m

a
in

 g
ra

n
ts

 b
u

d
g

e
t

-6
9

G
T

h
is

 r
e

d
u

c
e

s
 t
h

e
 S

L
A

 g
ra

n
t 
b

u
d

g
e

t 
b

y
 1

0
%

 t
o

 £
6

0
0

k
. 
 

G
ra

n
ts

 h
a

v
e

 b
e

e
n

 a
llo

c
a

te
d

 f
o

r 
1

3
/1

4
 i
n

 l
in

e
 w

it
h

 t
h

e
 f

u
n

d
in

g
 

a
v
a

ila
b

le
.

R
e

d
u

c
e

 o
ff

ic
e

r 
s
u

p
p

o
rt

 f
o

r 
g

ra
n

ts
-4

0

A

T
h

e
re

 a
re

 c
u

rr
e

n
tl
y
 2

 F
T

 s
ta

ff
 i
n

 1
.5

 P
T

 p
o

s
ts

. 
 O

n
e

 s
ta

ff
 

m
e

m
b

e
r 

m
a

y
 w

is
h

 t
o

 m
o

v
e

 t
o

 P
T

 w
o

rk
in

g
, 
h

o
w

e
v
e

r 
th

e
 

e
m

p
lo

y
e

e
 i
s
 c

u
rr

e
n

tl
y
 o

n
 l
o

n
g

 t
e

rm
 s

ic
k
 l
e

a
v
e

. 
 I
f 

th
is

 d
o

e
s
 

n
o

t 
h

a
p

p
e

n
, 
a

 m
in

i 
re

s
tr

u
c
tu

re
 i
s
 a

n
ti
c
ip

a
te

d
. 
 P

e
ri

o
d

 3
 

p
re

s
u

m
e

s
 o

n
e

 s
ta

ff
 m

e
m

b
e

r 
w

ill
 b

e
 P

T
 f

ro
m

 1
/9

/1
3

.

O
n

e
 o

ff
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
 f

o
r 

c
o

m
m

is
s
io

n
in

g
 f

o
r 

v
o

lu
n

ta
ry

 

s
e

c
to

r
-4

0

G

G
ro

w
th

 i
n

 1
2

/1
3

 n
o

w
 r

e
v
e

rs
e

d

L
ib

ra
ri

e
s
 T

ra
n

s
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n
 2

 -
re

v
e

rs
a

l 
o

f 
o

n
e

 o
ff

 

in
v
e

s
tm

e
n

t 
in

 2
0

1
2

-1
3

-1
5

0

G

G
ro

w
th

 i
n

 1
2

/1
3

 n
o

w
 r

e
v
e

rs
e

d

46



M
E

D
IU

M
 T

E
R

M
 F

IN
A

N
C

IA
L

 S
T

R
A

T
E

G
Y

 2
0

1
3

-1
4

 I
M

P
L

E
M

E
N

T
A

T
IO

N
A

p
p

e
n

d
ix

 2

2
0

1
3

-1
4

2
0

1
3

-1
4

 

R
A

G
C

o
m

m
e

n
ts

O
ff

ic
e

r 
L

e
a

d

£
0

0
0

S
ta

tu
s

C
o

m
b

in
e

 G
a

y
to

n
 &

 C
iv

ic
 C

e
n

tr
e

 L
ib

ra
ri

e
s

-7
5

A
D

e
la

y
 i
n

 H
is

to
ry

 L
ib

ra
ry

 t
o

 M
u

s
e

u
m

 a
n

d
 c

o
m

b
in

in
g

 G
a

y
to

n
 

a
n

d
 C

iv
ic

 C
e

n
tr

e
 L

ib
ra

ri
e

s
.

L
a

te
 s

a
v
in

g
s
 -

 v
a

c
a

n
c
y
 m

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t
-2

5

R
U

n
lik

e
ly

 t
o

 b
e

 d
e

liv
e

re
d

 v
ia

 t
h

is
 r

o
u

te
 g

iv
e

n
 l
o

w
 l
e

v
e

l 
o

f 

v
a

c
a

n
t 
p

o
s
ts

 b
u

t 
e

x
p

e
c
te

d
 t
o

 b
e

 d
e

liv
e

re
d

 t
h

ro
u

g
h

 

m
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 
o

f 
c
o

m
p

e
n

s
a

to
ry

 s
a

v
in

g
s
 a

c
ro

s
s
 t
h

e
 

d
ir

e
c
to

ra
te

L
a

te
 s

a
v
in

g
s
 -

 a
g

e
n

c
y
 c

o
s
ts

-2
7

R

U
n

lik
e

ly
 t
o

 b
e

 d
e

liv
e

re
d

 v
ia

 t
h

is
 r

o
u

te
 g

iv
e

n
 t
h

a
t 
th

e
 a

g
e

n
c
y
 

s
p

e
n

d
 i
n

 t
h

is
 a

re
a

 i
s
 l
o

w
e

r 
th

a
n

 t
h

e
 t
a

rg
e

t 
a

llo
c
a

te
d

. 
 

E
x
p

e
c
te

d
 t
o

 b
e

 d
e

liv
e

re
d

 t
h

ro
u

g
h

 m
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 
o

f 

c
o

m
p

e
n

s
a

to
ry

 s
a

v
in

g
s
 a

c
ro

s
s
 t
h

e
 d

ir
e

c
to

ra
te

.

L
a

te
 s

a
v
in

g
s
 -

 r
e

d
u

c
e

d
 i
n

fl
a

ti
o

n
 a

llo
c
a

ti
o

n
-1

1
G

A
c
h

ie
v
e

d

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 &

 C
u

lt
u

re
-9

9
1

-1
5

0
G

P
u

b
li
c

 H
e

a
lt

h
-1

5
0

P
ro

c
u

re
m

e
n

t 
S

a
v
in

g
s

-2
2

9
R

P
la

n
s
 s

ti
ll 

to
 b

e
 d

e
v
e

lo
p

e
d

T
o

ta
l 
S

a
v
in

g
s

-6
,8

5
7

N
e

t
-2

,9
8

5

C
H

IL
D

R
E

N
 &

 F
A

M
IL

IE
S

In
v
e

s
tm

e
n

t 
in

 S
e

rv
ic

e
s

In
c
re

a
s
e

 i
n

 C
L

A
 p

la
c
e

m
e

n
t 
b

u
d

g
e

ts
 r

e
fl
e

c
ti
n

g
 

g
ro

w
th

 i
n

 c
h

ild
 p

o
p

u
la

ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 c
h

a
n

g
in

g
 

d
e

m
o

g
ra

p
h

ic

1
7

8
G

M
C

In
c
re

a
s
e

 i
n

 C
W

D
 c

lie
n

t 
c
o

s
ts

 r
e

fl
e

c
ti
n

g
 g

ro
w

th
 i
n

 

c
h

ild
 p

o
p

u
la

ti
o

n
8

2
G

R
R

In
c
re

a
s
e

 i
n

 s
ta

ff
in

g
 c

o
s
ts

 r
e

fl
e

c
ti
n

g
 g

ro
w

th
 i
n

 

c
h

ild
 p

o
p

u
la

ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 c
h

a
n

g
in

g
 d

e
m

o
g

ra
p

h
ic

1
5

3
G

M
C

L
o

s
s
 o

f 
Y

o
u

th
 J

u
s
ti
c
e

 B
o

a
rd

 f
u

n
d

in
g

9
0

G
M

C

T
ra

n
s
fe

r
o

f
d

u
ti
e

s
in

re
s
p

e
c
t

o
f

n
e

w
d

u
ti
e

s
fo

r

y
o

u
n

g
 p

e
o

p
le

 o
n

 r
e

m
a

n
d

2
7

0
G

M
C

S
E

N
 p

o
s
t 
to

 u
n

d
e

rt
a

k
e

 n
e

w
 s

ta
tu

to
ry

 d
u

ti
e

s
5

0
G

R
R

Q
u

a
lif

ie
d

S
o

c
ia

l
W

o
rk

e
r

-
R

e
c
ru

it
m

e
n

t
&

R
e

te
n

ti
o

n
 M

a
rk

e
t 
S

u
p

p
le

m
e

n
t

1
5

0
G

M
C

47



M
E

D
IU

M
 T

E
R

M
 F

IN
A

N
C

IA
L

 S
T

R
A

T
E

G
Y

 2
0

1
3

-1
4

 I
M

P
L

E
M

E
N

T
A

T
IO

N
A

p
p

e
n

d
ix

 2

2
0

1
3

-1
4

2
0

1
3

-1
4

 

R
A

G
C

o
m

m
e

n
ts

O
ff

ic
e

r 
L

e
a

d

£
0

0
0

S
ta

tu
s

C
re

a
ti
o

n
 o

f 
A

d
v
a

n
c
e

d
 P

ra
c
ti
ti
o

n
e

r 
S

W
 p

o
s
ts

3
1

0
G

M
C

P
ri

n
c
ip

a
l 
S

o
c
ia

l 
W

o
rk

e
r 

ro
le

 -
 p

o
s
t-

M
u

n
ro

7
0

G
C

D

H
e

a
lt
h

 C
o

-o
rd

in
a

to
r 

p
o

s
t 
a

t 
N

W
P

5
0

G
M

C

Y
o

u
th

 S
c
ru

ti
n

y
 P

ro
p

o
s
a

ls
7

0
G

R
S

/W
B

P
ro

je
c
t

M
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t

C
o

s
ts

in
c
lu

d
in

g
S

N
T

,

C
h

ild
re

n
's

C
e

n
tr

e
re

m
o

d
e

lli
n

g
a

n
d

d
e

v
e

lo
p

in
g

n
e

w
 t
ra

n
s
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n
 p

ro
je

c
ts

9
7

G

R
R

S
h

o
rt

fa
ll

in
ta

rg
e

te
d

s
a

v
in

g
s

fr
o

m
b

u
s
in

e
s
s

s
u

p
p

o
rt

 m
o

d
e

l
1

8
5

G
C

D

C
o

rp
o

ra
te

 I
n

d
e

x
in

g
 S

c
a

n
n

in
g

 (
C

IS
) 

S
ta

ff
in

g
4

5
G

C
D

T
o

ta
l 
In

v
e

s
tm

e
n

t
1

,8
0

0

S
a

v
in

g
s

In
te

g
ra

te
d

 C
h

ild
re

n
's

 S
e

rv
ic

e
s
 -

 R
e

m
a

in
in

g
 

s
ta

ff
in

g
 s

a
v
in

g
s

-1
0

0
G

C
D

C
o

n
s
o

lid
a

ti
o

n
o

f
s
ta

ff
in

g
s
tr

u
c
tu

re
in

c
lu

d
in

g

p
ro

p
o

s
e

d
 d

e
le

ti
o

n
 o

f 
1

 D
iv

is
io

n
a

l 
D

ir
e

c
to

r 
p

o
s
t

-1
6

7
G

C
D

D
e

le
ti
o

n
 o

f 
H

e
a

d
 o

f 
E

S
S

O
-5

0
G

C
D

R
e

c
o

n
fi
g

u
ra

ti
o

n
o

f
E

a
rl

y
In

te
rv

e
n

ti
o

n
S

e
rv

ic
e

to

s
u

p
p

o
rt

 t
h

e
 F

a
m

ili
e

s
 F

ir
s
t 
P

ro
g

ra
m

m
e

-1
5

0
A

S
ta

ff
in

g
 n

o
t 
d

e
le

te
d

. 
S

a
v
in

g
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
e

d
 b

y
 T

ro
u

b
le

d
 F

a
m

ili
e

s
 

G
ra

n
t

R
S

/W
B

C
h

ild
re

n
's

 C
e

n
tr

e
s
 r

e
m

o
d

e
lli

n
g

-3
7

3
G

R
S

/W
B

S
p

e
c
ia

l
N

e
e

d
s

T
ra

n
s
p

o
rt

II
-

d
e

m
a

n
d

m
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t

in
c
lu

d
in

g
In

d
e

p
e

n
d

e
n

t
T

ra
v
e

l

T
ra

in
in

g

-5
6

G

R
R

S
p

e
c
ia

l
N

e
e

d
s

T
ra

n
s
p

o
rt

II
I

-
fu

ll
m

a
rk

e
t

e
n

g
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 

-4
0

G
R

R

In
tr

o
d

u
c
ti
o

n
o

f
C

h
a

rg
in

g
fo

r
n

o
n

S
ta

tu
to

ry

E
d

u
c
a

ti
o

n
a

l 
P

s
y
c
h

o
lo

g
y
 

-1
2

5
G

R
R

R
e

v
ie

w
 o

f 
s
e

m
i 
s
u

p
p

o
rt

e
d

 p
ro

v
is

io
n

 i
n

c
lu

d
in

g
 

p
o

te
n

ti
a

l 
c
lo

s
u

re
 o

f 
H

o
n

e
y
p

o
t 
L

a
n

e
0

G
F

a
c
ili

ty
 t
o

 c
lo

s
e

 3
1

/1
0

/1
3

. 
E

a
rl

y
 a

c
h

ie
v
e

m
e

n
t 
o

f 
S

a
v
in

g
.

M
C

-1
2

0
G

P
la

c
e

m
e

n
ts

 £
1

2
0

k
M

C

-1
5

5
G

A
llo

c
a

te
d

 t
o

 S
e

rv
ic

e
s
 £

1
5

5
k

-9
5

A
P

la
n

s
 i
n

 p
la

c
e

, 
n

o
t 
y
e

t 
a

llo
c
a

te
d

 £
9

5
k

C
D

-2
5

0
R

N
o

 p
la

n
s
 i
d

e
n

ti
fi
e

d
 £

2
5

0
k

C
D

P
ro

c
u

re
m

e
n

t 
S

a
v
in

g
s
 i
n

c
lu

d
in

g
 p

la
c
e

m
e

n
ts

48



M
E

D
IU

M
 T

E
R

M
 F

IN
A

N
C

IA
L

 S
T

R
A

T
E

G
Y

 2
0

1
3

-1
4

 I
M

P
L

E
M

E
N

T
A

T
IO

N
A

p
p

e
n

d
ix

 2

2
0

1
3

-1
4

2
0

1
3

-1
4

 

R
A

G
C

o
m

m
e

n
ts

O
ff

ic
e

r 
L

e
a

d

£
0

0
0

S
ta

tu
s

C
D

/R
S

/W
B

R
e

c
o

m
m

is
s
io

n
in

g
 o

f 
R

e
s
p

it
e

 C
a

re
 f

o
r 

C
W

D
 

0
G

R
R

C
o

n
s
o

lid
a

ti
o

n
 o

f 
E

a
rl

y
 Y

e
a

rs
 t
ra

in
in

g
 f

u
n

c
ti
o

n
s

-1
0

0
G

C
D

/R
S

/W
B

B
u

s
in

e
s
s
 S

u
p

p
o

rt
 S

a
v
in

g
s

-2
6

0
G

C
D

T
o

ta
l 
o

f 
C

h
il
d

re
n

 a
n

d
 F

a
m

il
ie

s
 S

a
v
in

g
s

-2
,8

7
6

£
1

.9
2

m
 A

D
D

IT
IO

N
A

L
 S

A
V

IN
G

S
 -

 C
h

il
d

re
n

's
 

A
ll
o

c
a

ti
o

n
 

P
ri

c
e

s
 

-1
0

5
A

B
u

ilt
 i
n

to
 b

u
d

g
e

ts
. 
T

o
ta

l 
B

u
d

g
e

t 
fo

re
c
a

s
ti
n

g
 a

n
 o

v
e

rs
p

e
n

d
.

C
D

V
a

c
a

n
c
y
 R

a
te

 0
.5

%
 

-6
2

A
B

u
ilt

 i
n

to
 b

u
d

g
e

ts
. 
T

o
ta

l 
B

u
d

g
e

t 
fo

re
c
a

s
ti
n

g
 a

n
 o

v
e

rs
p

e
n

d
.

C
D

A
g

e
n

c
y
 s

a
v
in

g
s

-6
6

A
B

u
ilt

 i
n

to
 b

u
d

g
e

ts
. 
T

o
ta

l 
B

u
d

g
e

t 
fo

re
c
a

s
ti
n

g
 a

n
 o

v
e

rs
p

e
n

d
.

C
D

P
ro

c
u

re
m

e
n

t 
-5

2
R

N
o

 p
la

n
s
 i
d

e
n

ti
fi
e

d
C

D

S
u

b
 t

o
ta

l
-2

8
5

N
e

t 
C

h
il
d

re
n

's
 S

e
rv

ic
e

s
-1

,3
6

1

T
O

T
A

L
 A

L
L

 D
IR

E
C

T
O

R
A

T
E

S
-1

2
,1

7
1

S
a

v
in

g
s
 f

ro
m

 c
o

m
m

is
s
io

n
in

g
 b

u
d

g
e

ts
 i
n

c
lu

d
in

g
 

c
o

n
n

e
x
io

n
s
, 
p

a
re

n
ti
n

g
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
, 
d

ru
g

s
 &

 a
lc

o
h

o
l 

a
n

d
 c

lin
ic

 i
n

 a
 b

o
x

-8
3

5
G

49



50

This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix 3: Debt Management 
Council Tax 
Currently, bad debt provisions (BDP) of £3.493m exist [£3.849m- £0.356k; w/offs done 
01/04/13-30/09/13] for Council Tax against a potential BDP of £3.433m for debts accrued to 31 
March 2013.  
 
COUNCIL TAX 
 

Arrears as at 
1

st
 of April 

Arrears as at 
Qtr 2 

BDP  BDP as at Qtr 2 

 £000 £000 % £000 

Pre 2010-2011  2,041 1,785 100 1,785 

2011-2012  1,128 872 75 654 

2012-2013 2,688 1,657 60 994 

Total 5,857 4,314  3,433 

 
National Non Domestic Rates (NNDR) 
Currently, bad debt provisions of £1.95m [£2.2m- £0.248k; w/offs done 01/04/13 to 30/09/13] 
exist for business rates (NNDR) against a potential BDP of £1.840m. Under Business Rates 
retention, the effect on the local authority is 30% of any surplus or deficit. 
 
 
NATIONAL NON DOMESTIC 
RATES (NNDR) 

Arrears as at 1
st
 

of April 
Arrears as at 

Qtr 2 
BDP  BDPas at Qtr 2 

 £000 £000 % £000 

Pre 2012-2013 750 610 100 610 

2012-2013 2,320 1,641 75 1,230 

Total 3,070 2,251  1,840 

 
Council Tax and Business Rates Court Cost 
Currently, bad debt provisions (BDP) of £710k (CT £620k+ NDR £90k) exists for Court Costs 
against a potential BDP of £1.0m.  From previous years trends, this amount of provision will 
be adequate and in line with our overall provisions policy. 
 
Court Cost Arrears as at 

1
st
 of April 

Arrears as at 
Qtr 2 

BDP  BDP as at Qtr 2 

 £000 £000 % £000 

Pre 2011-2012 605 511 100 511 

2012-2013 453 337 75 253 

2013-2014 0 507 50 254 

Total 1,058 1,355  1,018 

 

51



Appendix 3: Debt Management 
Housing Benefits 

Currently, bad debt provisions of £3.157m [£3.258m - £0.101k w/offs 1/4/13 to 30/09/13] 
exist for Housing Benefit overpayment debt against a potential BDP of £4.076m (£2,795 + 
£1,281 = £4.076m).  The under provision is anticipated to be funded from improved collection 
on overpayments although there is a potential risk that there may be a balance that will need 
to be met from revenue.  
  
Housing Benefit 
DEBTORS 

Outstand as at 
1

st
 of April 

Outstand as at 
Qtr 2 

BDP  BDP as at Qtr 2 

 £000 £000 % £000 

Pre 2011-2012 1,169 1,011 100 1,011 

2011-2012  822 787 100 787 

2012-2013 1,529 898 50 449 

2013-2014 0 1,370 40 548 

Totals 3,520 4,066  2,795 

     
 

 
Housing Benefit 
LIVE CASES 

Outstand as at 
1

st
 of April 

Outstand as at 
Qtr 2 

BDP  BDP as at Qtr 2 

 £000 £000 % £000 

Pre 2011-2012 241 162 100 162 

2011-2012  492 366 75 275 

2012-2013 1,451 858 50 429 

2013-2014 0 1,037 40 415 

Totals 2,184 2,423  1,281 

     

 
 
 
 
 

52



 

 

REPORT FOR: 

 

PERFORMANCE AND 

FINANCE SCRUTINY 

SUB-COMMITTEE 

 

Date of Meeting: 

 

21 January 2014 

Subject: 

 

Progress against the 
Recommendations of the Report on 
the Standing Scrutiny Review of the 
Housing Revenue Account Budget  
 

Responsible Officer: 

 

Lynne Pennington, Divisional Director 
of Housing 
 

Scrutiny Lead 

Member area: 

 

Barry MacLeod-Cullinane, Deputy 
Leader and portfolio holder for Adults 
and Housing 

Exempt: 

 

No 
 

Enclosures: 

 

Appendix 1 – Response to the 
recommendations contained within the 
Report on the Standing Scrutiny 
Review of the HRA Budget 

 

Section 1 – Summary and Recommendations 
 

 
This report sets out the progress made against each of the recommendations 
contained within the Report on the Standing Scrutiny review of the HRA 
Budget 
 

Recommendations:  
Members are recommended to note the progress made to date, and the 
proposals for further action set out within this report. 

 

Agenda Item 9
Pages 53 to 66

53



 

2 

 

Section 2 – Report 
 

Introduction 
 

1. The final report from the Scrutiny Review of Self Financing in the 
Housing Revenue Account (HRA) was reported to Cabinet on 13th 
December 2012. It was an important and welcome report investigating 
the Council’s approach to the Self Financing arrangements with a view 
to ensuring that the interests of both the Council and its residents have 
been safeguarded as a result of the decisions made. 
 

2. The Standing Review focused on three key areas in respect of the Self 
Financing HRA: 

 

• Implications of the HRA taking on 50-year debt 
 

• Capacity of the HRA to support long-term repayment, particularly 
in the context of increased sales under Right-to-Buy  

 

• Future rent strategy 
 

3. The review report welcomed the move to a self-financing HRA, but felt 
there were several areas where further work would be necessary. The 
report therefore set out a number of recommendations/observations as 
follows: 
  

a. The Standing Review welcomed the cross-organisational co-
operation described by officers intended to address increased 
housing need in Harrow, especially increased housing need for 
affordable housing options. The Standing Review also 
supported the continued provision of affordable homes in 
partnership with other organisations, especially housing 
associations, subject to our ability to secure nomination rights. 
 
The Standing review did, however, feel that the Council should 
be more vigorous and innovative in developing and 
implementing a Hidden Homes strategy for Harrow.  

 
b. The Standing Review was interested to learn about Harrow 

developing financial incentives – such as cash incentive deposit 
schemes – to assist tenants qualifying for Right-to-Buy to move 
on to home ownership but without the permanent reduction in 
the Council’s housing stock that their exercise of RTB would 
cause. 
 

c. The Standing Review urges that officers continue to monitor the 
impact of stock loss and deterioration with a view to periodically 
revisiting their analysis of the option to divest to ensure that the 
best investment and service decisions are taken for tenants and 
the borough. 

54



 

 3 

 
d. The Standing Review believes that the issue of shared services 

has not been sufficiently explored or clearly defined by the 
administration across the Council, potentially undermining 
Housing’s efforts to develop policy and service options. Given 
the size of the financial and service challenges the Council 
faces, this needs to be rectified swiftly, and should draw upon 
the experiences of other boroughs within London and elsewhere 
that are developing shared service options. 

 
e. The Standing Review was informed that the administration was 

exploring the possibility of revaluation of the Council’s housing 
stock, which could result in higher rents and therefore in more 
rent being collected and its complete retention locally by the 
Council. 

 
f. The Standing Review was keen to stress the need to monitor 

and understand the impact of the Government’s welfare reforms 
on rents and tenants’ indebtedness, with a concern that the 
Council take steps to address any problems or difficulties that 
arise. 

 
4. The progress that has been made in respect of each of these points is 

set out in Appendix 1. 
 

Financial Implications 
 

5. Many of the actions detailed in the responses have revenue costs, 
primarily through existing staff resources and budgets. Bids for new 
proposals where there is no existing budget either have already or will 
be made through the appropriate commissioning channels. 
 

6. Bids for capital to continue with existing initiatives or commence new 
ones will be made through the Capital Forum.   
 

7. It is acknowledged that the availability of new resources is very limited 
and therefore utilising external funding opportunities and partnership 
working with the private sector will be key to delivering our objectives, 
particularly in respect of the provision of new affordable housing. 

 

Performance Issues 
 

8. There are no specific performance issues arising directly from the 
proposed decision. 

 

Environmental Impact 
 

9. There are no specific environmental impact issues arising directly from 
the proposed decision. The potential impact of each of the initiatives 
will need to be considered as part of the approval process for that 
initiative. 

55



 

 4 

 

Risk Management Implications 
    

10. Risk assessment will be undertaken for specific projects as 
recommended by Scrutiny Committee and risk registers maintained for 
major projects. 
 

Equalities implications 
 

11. Outline Equalities impact assessments were produced for some of the 
initiatives outlined in the original response as part of Housing’s 
Commissioning Panel submissions. Further detailed assessments 
either have already been or will be produced for each of the proposals 
as they are developed. 

 

Priorities 
 

12. This report does not in itself contribute towards the administration’s 
priority to deliver a cleaner, safer and fairer Harrow, but the Cabinet 
reports for the individual proposals will have set out how each one 
would contribute towards delivering the priorities in place at the time of 
the report.  

 

Section 3 - Statutory Officer Clearance 
 

13. Not required in this case as the necessary clearances will have been 
sought in respect of the respective Cabinet reports. 

 

Section 4 - Contact Details and Background 

Papers 
 
 

Contact:   Dave Roberts 

Finance Business Partner – Housing Services 
0208 420 9678 
x5678 

 
 

Background Papers:  Standing Scrutiny Review of the Budget – Report 

on the Self Financing of the Housing Revenue Account, presented to Cabinet 
13 December 2012 

56



  Appendix 1 

 5 

Standing Scrutiny Review of the Budget – Self Financing Housing Revenue 

Account 

Following the Scrutiny review of the self-financing Housing Revenue Account, the 

report produced by the Committee contained a number of recommendations and/or 

comments in respect of the Housing Revenue Account. A response was produced 

which set out the actions Housing proposed to take, along with a list of the officers 

responsible for taking these actions forward, and this was reported in January 2013. 

The report now being considered is a follow-up report setting out the steps Housing 

has taken to deliver against the action plan. 

There were six key recommendations arising from the Scrutiny review, and these are 

set out below, along with the actions Housing has taken and outcomes where 

applicable: 

1. The Standing Review welcomed the cross-organisational co-operation 

described by officers intended to address increased housing need in Harrow, 

especially increased housing need for affordable housing options. The 

Standing Review also supported the continued provision of affordable homes 

in partnership with other organisations, especially housing associations, 

subject to our ability to secure nomination rights. 

The Standing review did, however, feel that the Council should be more 

vigorous and innovative in developing and implementing a Hidden Homes 

strategy for Harrow.  

Response: 

Significant progress has been made with regard to developing new affordable 

housing on existing Council land. A review of housing land assets was 

commissioned in December 2012 and completed in April 2013.  

The study, undertaken by Sector, considered the capacity for new 
development within the Council’s existing HRA estate and the different options 
for how an initial development programme could be resourced and internal 
capacity built to deliver future programmes. It identified an initial small scale 
development programme that could be taken forward relatively quickly. 
 
The Garage Strategy Steering Group (comprised of Members, officers and 
resident representatives) had already assessed the capacity for new 
development on existing garages sites, especially those currently vacant or 
with low levels of occupancy and requiring refurbishment. The Sector study 
identified a number of additional small infill development sites. In total the 
potential capacity is for around 170 units. The garage sites/infill opportunities 
were prioritised to establish a first phase 50 unit development programme. 
 
The potential for the Council to directly fund the infill developments through 
the HRA was modelled. This concluded that a development programme of up 

57



  Appendix 1 

 6 

to 150 new build homes over the next four years could be funded from HRA 
resources and the Affordable Housing Pot, although any development 
proposals would need to be the subject of detailed feasibility work and 
costings before numbers could be finalised. We also have obtained some 
funding from the Mayor’s Housing Covenant1 to support the building of 10 
shared ownership homes as part of this programme. Building the new homes 
and retaining them within the HRA improves the financial position of the HRA 
over time due to the impact of the additional net rental stream from the new 
units. This means that more resources would be available to put towards 
additional HRA development or other service initiatives in subsequent years.  
 
The Sector study also carried out a high-level assessment of the potential to 
provide additional housing through redevelopment/regeneration of existing 
housing estates by looking at current densities; potential density, Council 
ownership and consequent buy back costs, build costs and house prices. On 
approximately half of the estates, the Council’s ownership is less than 60% 
and therefore redevelopment is not viable taking into account the acquisition 
of freehold and leasehold interests. Many others have no potential for 
intensification because of existing densities. 

 
8 estates were shortlisted for further investigation. The high level 
assessments indicated that between 49 and 339 additional affordable homes 
may be delivered through estate regeneration and intensification. However, on 
some of the estates the majority of new homes developed would need to be 
for private sale to produce a viable business plan. In some cases additional 
public subsidy would need to be levered in to allow them to break even as 
was the case with the Rayners Lane and Mill Farm estate regeneration 
schemes.  These will require consideration of different delivery models to 
ascertain the optimum solution. 

 
The outcomes from the Sector study were reported to Cabinet in June 2013 

with recommendations approved to: 

• Take forward HRA funded direct delivery of new affordable homes on 

the identified garage/infill sites. As the Council has no recent 

experience of undertaking new build housing development, that 

delivery of the first phase programme should be supported by 

procurement of a development management service. An essential 

element of the service procured will be to develop internal capacity 

through training, coaching and mentoring so that further phases can be 

managed internally. 

• Take forward detailed feasibility studies on the identified estates to 

establish the potential for a realistic and deliverable regeneration 

                                            
1
 On 28 September 2012 the Mayor launched a new housing covenant to provide homes for working 

Londoners. This came in two parts with up to £100m of capital investment and a commitment to 
improve working Londoner’s intermediate housing options through deregulating the market and 
cutting red tape. 

58



  Appendix 1 

 7 

programme, subject to resident consultation following the best practice 

principles already established for the Mill Farm and Rayners Lane 

estate regeneration schemes.  

 
Garage sites/infill sites progress 
 
A procurement exercise to appoint a development management service 
through a selected tender list including a range of technical consultancy firms 
and housing associations completed in September 2013. Unfortunately only 
one tender was received for the service and this was not considered sufficient 
to make an appointment. Feedback from suppliers was that they did not have 
the capacity to provide such a service due to the high level of similar work in 
London working to GLA driven deadlines for grant take-up. 
 
In order to move the programme forward, a temporary Project Manager has 
been appointed and we are in the process of procuring technical consultants 
including architects with the intention to draw up plans and submit planning 
applications for the prioritised sites by April 2014. A PPA is being agreed with 
Planning Services to provide planning advice on these and the estate 
redevelopment/regeneration feasibility studies. 
 
Estate redevelopment/regeneration feasibility studies progress 
 
Grange Farm estate has now been added to the list of estates to be 
investigated further, making a total of 9 estates. 
 
A procurement exercise to appoint design and financial appraisal consultants 
was conducted in autumn 2013 and PRP, a leading architectural and multi-
disciplinary practice was appointed in December to take forward the detailed 
feasibility studies, which are due to complete in April 2014. Kicking off in 
January 2014, we will be visiting the estates and holding consultation events 
with residents to start the design option process. Residents will be involved 
throughout the study and have the opportunity to influence the outcomes.  
 
Strategic Delivery options 
 
The Sector report concluded that affordable housing development on a 
significant scale beyond the first phase development programme will require a 
different strategic approach. With regard to the HRA this will be necessary 
because its capacity is limited by the debt cap. Although the government has 
recently provided some more flexibility with regard to the debt cap, it will not 
be sufficient to assist Harrow finance a larger development programme.  
Various partnership approaches were identified to be explored further to 
consider how both HRA assets and corporate land assets can most effectively 
be used to increase the supply of housing. This included the Council taking a 
role in leading the development of new build private rented housing in the 
borough. Cross directorate discussions around the potential for these 
opportunities are ongoing. 
 

59



  Appendix 1 

 8 

 
2. The Standing Review was interested to learn about Harrow developing 

financial incentives – such as cash incentive deposit schemes – to assist 

tenants qualifying for Right-to-Buy to move on to home ownership but without 

the permanent reduction in the Council’s housing stock that their exercise of 

RTB would cause.  

Response: 

Grants to Move Scheme (financial incentives for council tenants):  

Scheme outline  

The Grants to Move scheme was approved at the Cabinet meeting on 20th 

June 2013 and the scheme itself was launched on 30th September 2013. Prior 

to the launch, publicity at events and via Homing In led to three tenants 

coming forward and being accepted as pilot cases. 

The scheme offers council tenants grants to vacate their council home and 

move in one of three ways: 

1) Downsizing to a smaller council or housing association property 

2) Moving to a private rented property 

3) Buying a home privately 

The scheme is entirely voluntary and officers offer support and advice to 

prospective movers, and carry out checks to ensure the proposed moves are 

sustainable in the longer term, and that they meet the objective of freeing up 

homes to be allocated to households in high priority need.  

Progress as at 12 December 2013 

To date 2 private rented moves have been completed. Both released two 

bedroom properties and the tenants have moved out of Harrow for family 

reasons. The total cost of the two grants and associated removal costs has 

been £10,000. These grants have allowed the council homes vacated to be 

allocated to families on the waiting list, and have resulted in two families 

leaving B & B accommodation. The average net cost to the council of a family 

in bed and breakfast is currently in excess of £8,000 per year. 

One home ownership grant, which would have released a 3 bedroom parlour 

house, was being actively pursued but has fallen through due to complications 

with the conveyancing process which became protracted and costly for the 

tenant, and led to him withdrawing his application. 

60



  Appendix 1 

 9 

Since the launch we have received over 40 enquiries via telephone, 

Grants2Move email and referrals from Housing Management Officers. 

Applications can now be made directly through the Harrow council website. 

There are currently 6 home ownership grants and 4 grants to moves to private 

rented accommodation in the pipeline and a further 7 grant cases have been 

closed for various reasons (not eligible/ withdrawn/ referred for fraud 

investigation). Officers continue to work with tenants wanting to downsize, 

although there have been no moves yet under the enhanced scheme offered 

as part of the Grants to Move launch. 

Next steps 

Officers propose to carry out further publicity for the Grants to Move scheme 

in January/ February 2014 both to tenants and internally to council officers, 

and we are recruiting another officer to help follow up on enquiries.  We will 

also review how the scheme is working after 6 months (end March 2014) to 

consider whether any adjustments are required to the way it works. 

More information is available at www.harrow.gov.uk/grants2move 

 

3. The Standing Review urges that officers continue to monitor the impact of 

stock loss and deterioration with a view to periodically revisiting their analysis 

of the option to divest to ensure that the best investment and service 

decisions are taken for tenants and the borough. 

Response: 

Impact of RTB sales on the HRA 

Cabinet received a report in June 2013 that set out the 30-year business plan 

for the HRA. The business plan was supported by a draft Asset Management 

Strategy and an Affordable Housing strategy, and set out a 30-year forecast 

of the income and expenditure anticipated to occur within the HRA, based on 

an agreed set of assumptions.  

The starting point for the business plan was the HRA budget and Medium 

Term Financial Strategy (MTFS) approved by Cabinet in February 2013, and 

the first four years of the plan mirrored the MTFS. Thereafter, a set of fairly 

prudent assumptions were used to project income and expenditure for the 

remainder of the 30-year period. The cash flows resulting from the projections 

indicated that the HRA was in a very sound position and was forecast to 

generate significant balances over the life of the business plan.  

The business plan was intended to form a framework within which future 

budgets would be set, so for the purposes of producing a draft budget and 

61



  Appendix 1 

 10 

MTFS the assumptions used were largely in line with the forecasts contained 

within the business plan approved in June. Some minor variations have 

resulted from additional Right-to-Buy sales above the levels previously 

assumed (resulting from significantly increased discounts), changes in 

inflation used to calculate rent increases, and from pressures within some of 

the budgets. This is to be expected, as the business plan should be a guide to 

future budgets, and must retain the ability to flex to meet changing 

requirements. 

The draft HRA Budget and MTFS presented to Cabinet in December 

continues to reflect the significantly improved position reported in last year’s 

budget as a result of HRA reform. Since that time, however, it has become 

apparent that RTB sales are likely to exceed the increased numbers we had 

previously assumed, and sales are now forecast to be in the region of 30 units 

in 2013-14, with the potential for the number of sales to increase still further in 

subsequent years. We are therefore currently re-forecasting the HRA outturn 

and budget to reflect these increases, and will need to present a revised set of 

budgets and MTFS estimates to Cabinet in February 2014.  

As has been indicated previously, RTB remains one of the more significant 

risk areas for the self-financing HRA, and whilst we do not envisage any 

short-term viability issues as a result of increased RTB sales, over the longer 

term we must ensure that cost levels remain in line with stock, and therefore 

income, levels. This will require both a focus on reviewing operating costs and 

a consideration of how best to use the receipts from sales to re-provide 

affordable housing for our residents and tenants. 

Active Asset Management: 

Now that the Asset Management team are operating effectively within 

housing, and customer satisfaction with both responsive repairs and the 

improvement programme is improving, we are in a position to move towards 

an active asset management approach. This approach is developing and will 

include: 

• Extending the planning process for the capital programme so that by 

March 2014 we will have a detailed and validated 4 year investment 

programme. As well as enabling us to plan delivery more effectively we 

will be in a better position to consult in a more timely way and have 

opportunities to achieve further procurement savings. 

• Moving towards an area based approach to delivery of the programme, 

so that we can map out where improvements are due throughout the 4 

years and where practical undertake a number of improvements 

together. This approach minimises disruption to tenants and offers 

further opportunities for both procurement savings and attracting more 

62



  Appendix 1 

 11 

local companies to tender (as individual contracts may be smaller area 

based refurbishments, rather than larger contracts for individual 

elements pepper potted across the borough)   

• Undertaking options appraisals on any homes where extensive repairs 

and refurbishments are needed, or do not meet the current demand for 

the stock to determine whether disposal of the property, and re-

investment of the receipt in alternative housing supply may be a better 

solution. To date 3 options appraisals have been completed ranging 

from a small block of flats where subsidence is an issue, to a 200 year 

old house converted to 3 flats that is in a poor state of repair. 

• In moving towards an options appraisal-based investment approach, it 

would seem sensible for there to be a corporate approach towards the 

potential disposal of property under the Council’s (corporate) disposal 

policy in the context of active asset management, e.g. it make be more 

beneficial overall for Housing to acquire non-housing land and/or 

properties than they be disposed of on the open market. 

In keeping with the Active Asset Management approach, Housing are 

currently undertaking regeneration option appraisals in respect of a number of 

our estates to determine the long-term viability of these estates and whether 

there would be potential to either build additional properties within the estates 

or to regenerate all or part of them to provide additional housing. One of the 

key factors will be the financial viability of any proposal, although it may be 

beneficial to consider a number of schemes together with a view to assessing 

viability at a higher level than just one estate. 

 

4. The Standing Review believes that the issue of shared services has not been 

sufficiently explored or clearly defined by the administration across the 

Council, potentially undermining Housing’s efforts to develop policy and 

service options. Given the size of the financial and service challenges the 

Council faces, this needs to be rectified swiftly, and should draw upon the 

experiences of other boroughs within London and elsewhere that are 

developing shared service options 

Response: 

It is fair to say that this is an area where not much success has been achieved 

to date, although Help2Let is a notable exception, with more authorities now 

becoming interested in this service.  

Efforts have been made in the past to investigate some shared service 

approaches, e.g. in respect of leasehold services at a West-London level, but 

63



  Appendix 1 

 12 

there has been a lack of appetite from potential partners to progress potential 

solutions. To an extent this has been low on the list of priorities for housing as 

a service over recent years, largely as a result of the need for the Housing 

Ambition Plan to be more internally-focused. This has been necessary both to 

deliver the necessary service improvements in response to the HQN review 

(HAP 1 & 2) and to structure the service to deliver the improvements possible 

as a result of HRA reform and meet the challenges of localism, changing 

legislation and welfare reform (HAP 3 & 4) 

Planning is now underway for HAP 5, and for this plan, the focus is much 

more external, with selling our services and commercialisation being key 

themes throughout the plan. Areas within the plan include: 

• Marketing services to Private Landlords - Private landlords buy 

increased range of services from Department and increase in those 

using Help2Rent 

• Marketing services to other Registered Providers – Housing 

department acts as managing agent for Housing Associations within 

Borough 

• Maximising income by: 

o Improve income collection from leaseholders  

o Effectively recharging repairs 

o Full-cost recovery of service charges where possible 

• Meeting housing need and long term viability of HRA with reducing 

stock levels from RTB by developing new housing stock both within 

and outside of the HRA, leading to savings in the General Fund 

 

5. The Standing Review was informed that the administration was exploring the 

possibility of revaluation of the Council’s housing stock, which could result in 

higher rents and therefore in more rent being collected and its complete 

retention locally by the Council. 

Response: 

At its meeting in February 2013, Cabinet approved an increase in the property 

values used for rent-setting purposes by 7.5% reflect the significant levels of 

investment in the stock since the time of the original valuations in 2001. This 

was a one-off increase in the valuation to effectively re-base the property 

element of the target rent calculation.  

64



  Appendix 1 

 13 

The property element of the target rent calculation equates to approximately 

30% of the calculated rent, with the remainder being based largely on local 

average earnings and the number of bedrooms. The impact of the 7.5% 

increase in property values was therefore an increase in average target rents 

of 2.85% (or approximately £3 per week). 

The new target rents were used to calculate 2013-14 rent increase and are 

assumed to be used to calculate the increase for 2014-15, in line with the 

current council rent-setting policy. In broad terms, this means that after the 

2014-15 increase the HRA should be collecting approximately £2 per property 

per week more as a result of the increased target rents than would have 

otherwise been the case had the property values not been increased. 

The Government is now consulting on proposals to change national rent 

policy from 2015-16 onwards, which means that we may not be able to 

complete the process of converging actual rents with target rents. This would 

mean that income within the HRA would be less than had previously been 

assumed for business planning purposes, although the HRA is still forecast to 

generate significant surpluses over the life of the business plan. We have 

responded to the consultation highlighting the potential for a fairly significant 

loss in income if national rent policy is changed in line with the Government’s 

proposals, and pointing out that the calculation of debt for self-financing 

purposes assumed completion of rent convergence. 

In response to the rent policy proposals, many other councils are only now 

considering increasing property values for target rent purposes as a possible 

means to recoup some of the income likely to be lost if the policy is 

implemented. The fact we have already done this, and will have had the 

benefit of two years of additional income by the time rent policy changes, 

means that we are in a much better place than we would otherwise have 

been, and in a much better place to cushion the impact of the changes than 

many other Councils. 

 

6. The Standing Review was keen to stress the need to monitor and understand 

the impact of the Government’s welfare reforms on rents and tenants’ 

indebtedness, with a concern that the Council take steps to address any 

problems or difficulties that arise. 

Response: 

The Welfare Reform Governance structure, which includes the multi-agency 

Community Reference Group, is monitoring the impact of the welfare reforms 

which includes the levels of debt across the Council. One of the key difficulties 

we are experiencing is establishing how much of any given debt can be said 

65



  Appendix 1 

 14 

to have arisen as a direct result of benefit changes due to welfare reform, and 

there is inevitably a degree of subjectivity in any calculation, particularly for 

those tenants already in rent arrears. 

Welfare Reform Awareness sessions have been carried out, both internally 

within the Council, and externally with the Voluntary Sector, Community 

Groups, GPs and Head teachers of local schools. The Council is hoping that, 

through some of this activity, it will be able to gain feedback on the impacts of 

the changes and the level of debt within the community.   

This information sharing will enable the Council and its partners to understand 

whether the mitigations that are being put in place are effective and whether 

any further mitigations need to be put in place.  Continuous partnership 

working will enable this activity to be taken forward effectively.   

The Housing Service is also represented on the West London Welfare Reform 

Group which is a forum specifically established to share lessons learnt, 

processes and procedures and good practice, and in addition has extended a 

project that funds the CAB to target households identified by the service as in 

need of priority advice and support. 

The draft Vulnerability Criteria was updated to reflect the views of Councillors 

at Overview and Scrutiny Committee on the 4th June 2013, and processes 

have been put in place to ensure that, where possible, vulnerability is 

identified at an early stage. Services such as Children’s (younger people 

leaving care and Families First), Concessionary Travel, Housing and Adult 

Social Care, are working with the Council Tax Recovery Service to share 

vulnerability information.  This has enabled services to put a flag (person 

alert) on their system prompting identification of vulnerability at key points in 

the collection process.   

All services have agreed that checkpoints will be put in place at key stages of 

their debt collection processes to enable the relevant officer to identify that the 

person may be vulnerable and then consider the case before action is taken.   

To enable the vulnerability information to be shared effectively across the 

Council it was necessary to develop a Data Sharing Agreement and put in 

place processes to share the information on a regular basis. 

 

66



 

 

REPORT FOR: 

 

PERFORMANCE AND 

FINANCE SCRUTINY 

SUB-COMMITTEE 

 

Date of Meeting: 

 

21 January 2014 

Subject: 

 

Update on Private Rented Sector 

Responsible Officer: 

 

Lynne Pennington, Divisional  
Director of Housing 

Scrutiny Lead 

Member area: 

 

Cllr Sue Anderson 

Chair of Performance and Finance 
Scrutiny Sub-Committee  

 

Exempt: 

 

No 
 

 

Enclosures: 

 

 
None 

 
 

Section 1 – Summary and Recommendations 
 
 

This short report sets out the current activity in procuring private 
rented accommodation. 
 
Recommendations:  To note the report.  
 

Agenda Item 10
Pages 67 to 72

67



C:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\3\0\4\AI00085403\$p3i0laea.doc 

 

Section 2 – Report 
 

Background 

The majority of potentially homeless households have always been assisted 
to avoid becoming statutorily homeless.  We achieve this by either resolving 
issues so they can stay in their current accommodation, or by assisting them 
to obtain alternative private rented accommodation 
 
Welfare reform has made homelessness prevention far more difficult.  We are 
still generally able to keep families in their home, often through paying rent top 
ups.  The main change is that households are increasingly unable to obtain 
alternative private rented accommodation before they become homeless. 
 

There have been a number of benefit changes through welfare reform that 
have affected Housing Benefit (HB). In 2011 HB was tied to the lowest 30th 
percentile rents instead of the median. In 2012 the link with rent rises was 
changed to a link with C.P.I and only adjusted annually, and now it is only 1% 
rise.  The overall household benefit cap of £500 started in 2013. 
 

Difficulties in procuring Private Rented accommodation 

The supply has been more difficult to obtain because the housing market in 
London is overheated.  Rents are rising faster than HB payments and a 
significant gap has opened up that means very few properties coming on the 
market are affordable at HB rates.  All councils are facing these pressures, 
some of whom have large budgets for paying incentives and there is 
considerable competition between councils for these few affordable 
properties.  Although there are protocols in place to limit competition, this has 
not stopped large incentive payments being paid by some councils. 
  
Landlords are also very concerned that benefit recipient tenants may soon not 
be able to afford the rent because of welfare reform, (and so end up in 
arrears).  Consequently they prefer working families not dependant on HB.  
As there is a squeeze on household incomes, there is no shortage of working 
households wanting lower cost property at the lower end of the private rented 
sector. 
 
Procurement of private rented accommodation dropped because of all of 
these reasons. 
 

Our response 
 
We didn’t want to increase incentives and inflate the market and so held the 
line for a long time.  Our procurement was still quite successful based on the 
service and support we give landlords, rather than cash payments.  However 
we weren’t procuring at a fast enough rate to meet demand and B&B was 
rising.  So we reluctantly decided to put more resources into procurement, 
both staff and incentive payments. Our incentives are now similar to payments 
that most London councils have to make 
 

68



C:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\3\0\4\AI00085403\$p3i0laea.doc 

This has been quite successful with our procurement increasing, and our 
Private Sector Leasing (PSL) schemes are particularly popular.  This is where 
the council takes over as landlord and the owner receives a guaranteed rental 
payment. There is quite a time lag on agreeing terms with a landlord and 
actually signing the lease (and moving a family in).  There was also a backlog 
in this administration and we have funded another post to tackle this.  The 
kinds of incentives and services we now offer are set out below.  

 
Range of incentives and services that can be offered to 
landlords. December 2013 
  
The actual offer made is tailored to the individual landlord. No landlord would 
be offered all of these. 
 
TENANT FINDING SERVICE  
- Arrears bond 
- Services of Account Manager 
- Housing Benefit paid direct to the landlord 
- Deposit and/or Rent in Advance and reasonable admin fees 
- Cash Incentive 
 
PRIVATE SECTOR LEASING  
Guaranteed rent paid quarterly by the council  in advance based on a 
percentage of January 2011 Local Housing Allowance (LHA) rate 
Incentives can be paid to keep the rent below the relevant LHA rate. 
Full management service with Harrow acting as landlord. 
 
 
BUY2LEASE – NEW HELP2LET LEASING SCHEME 
Available for landlords buying a new rental property in Harrow or Watford.      
Offer is to encourage growth of private rented sector in the locality. 
Only available for 2 bedroom or large 1 bedroom properties.     
Financial help with a proportion of legal fees / cost of buying 
• Includes full management service  - we are the landlord 
• Guaranteed lease payments quarterly in advance for 5 years 
• Regular inspections 
• 5 year lease   
 We inspect prior to a landlord buying a property.   
Rent paid to the landlord is a proportion of LHA rate for the area.     
 
REPAIR TO LEASE 
Grants are available to bring a property up  to standard prior to us leasing it. 
 

 
Financial Implications 
 
A lot of the demand for and difficulty in obtaining private rented properties 
arises from Welfare Reform; especially the Household Benefit Cap that 
started in Harrow in August/September.  So the extra costs are being covered 
by budget set aside for this.  Insufficient procurement causes a rise in the use 
of  Bed and Breakfast accommodation which is expensive. So the 

69



C:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\3\0\4\AI00085403\$p3i0laea.doc 

procurement initiatives are really an investment to save, and to do nothing 
would be far more expensive. 
 
 

Performance Issues 
Current Performance. 
 
We have a target of 350 units of private rented accommodation to be obtained 
in 13-14. 
 
This will not be achieved which has resulted in more use of Bed & Breakfast 
accommodation. 
 
Procurement in 13-14 to date is as follows (December’s figures are not 
currently available and are not representative of the trend because of the 
Christmas/New Year period.  It will be reported at the meeting): 
 
April 23 
May 23 
June 7 
July 14 
August 24 
September 27 
October 24 
November 31 
TOTAL to 
30th 
November 173 

 
For comparison, our procurement in 12-13 was as follows: 
           

April 20 

May  21 

June 22 

July 29 

August 26 

September 15 

October 20 

November 30 

December 25 

January 15 

February 9 

March 16 

TOTAL 248 

 
Procurement dropped markedly in the early part of the year.  We reacted by 
increasing incentives as outlined above and procurement has improved. We 
expect to reach 275+ this financial year.  This is higher than 12-13. 
(Polarity, higher equals better) 
 
Bed and Breakfast has now fallen below 100 in first week of January 2014. 
(Polarity, lower equals better).This is over 15% lower than the peak in 13-14. 

70



C:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\3\0\4\AI00085403\$p3i0laea.doc 

 
 
B&B at month end 13-14 
 
April 57 

May 61 

June 83 

July 82 

August 100 

September 107 

October 106 

November 107 

December 115  
 
 

Environmental Impact 
 

There is no environmental impact. 
 
 

Risk Management Implications 
 
The departmental risk register records the risk of not meeting our statutory 
homelessness duties within budget. 

 
 

Equalities implications 
 
No specific Equalities Impact Assessment was undertaken for procurement 
of Private Rented Sector accommodation.  EqIAs for the Private Sector 
Housing Strategy and Homelessness Strategy were undertaken prior to their 
approval by Cabinet in April 2013, which set out the strategy for use of 
private rented accommodation.   
 

Section 3 - Statutory Officer Clearance 
No statutory officer clearance needed for this information report. 
 

Section 4 - Contact Details and Background 

Papers 
 
 

Contact:  Jon Dalton 
Housing Needs Service Manager 
First floor West Civic Centre 
020 8416 8647 
Jon.dalton@harrow.gov.uk  
 
 

Background Papers:  None. 

71



72

This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

REPORT FOR: 

 

PERFORMANCE AND 

FINANCE SCRUTINY 

SUB-COMMITTEE 

 

Date of Meeting: 

 

21 January 2014 

Subject: 

 

Towards Excellence Update 

Responsible Officer: 

 

Philip Hamberger, Divisional Director, 
Business and Service Development 
 

Scrutiny Lead 

Member area: 

 

Councillor Phil O’Dell, Performance 
Lead Member and Yogesh Teli, Policy 
Lead Member 

Exempt: 

 

No 
 

 

Enclosures: 

 

 
None 

 
 

Section 1 – Summary and Recommendations 
 
 
This report provides an update for members on progress in delivering the 
Towards Excellence Programme, which incorporates the project previously 
known as PRISM (Public Realm Integrated Services Model).  

 
Recommendations:  
Members are asked to note the report. 

 

Agenda Item 11
Pages 73 to 78

73



C:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\5\1\3\AI00085315\$cvih3duo.doc 

 

Section 2 – Report 
 

Introductory paragraph 
 
In October 2012, following a decision at Cabinet in September 2012 which 
resulted in call-in, Cabinet approved the detailed business case for the PRISM 
(Public Realm Integrated Services Model) project.  This was a major 
transformation programme within the newly formed Environment & Enterprise 
directorate. 
 
In the summer of 2013, and in light of some concerns about the project, the 
Chief Executive took advantage of a natural break in the project timeline to 
take a pause for reflection and to review how the project was being delivered. 
 
The project was re-started later in the summer with a new name – Towards 
Excellence - and with the addition of two new projects (service review and 
operational improvement projects).  The original three projects: restructure, 
new ways of working and technology remained.  This report focuses mainly 
on the three original projects.    
 

What is the Towards Excellence Programme? 
 
The vision for the programme is simple: 

• Great leadership 

• Confident staff 

• Services we can be proud of 

The first four objectives listed are original PRISM objectives and objectives 5 
and 6 are new programme objectives. 
 
1. To deliver improved customer services by sharing more information with 

residents and businesses through the website and Access Harrow. e.g. 
potholes, tree works and progress on resident requests for service 

2. To bring together community engagement work for the directorate into one 
team to provide local communities greater opportunities to get involved in 
helping plan and deliver our environmental services  

3. To enable the development of multi-skilled teams that will be able to 
monitor, report and deliver a variety of street-based activities  

4. To enable Managers to make more informed decisions about delivering 
and improving services. 

5. To define delivery options for services within Environment and Enterprise 

from 2015 onwards based on a robust analysis of performance 

information, benchmarked comparisons, learning from the best, 

commercial nous, customer intelligence and market understanding. 

74



C:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\5\1\3\AI00085315\$cvih3duo.doc 

6. To deliver short to medium term service improvements through a focus on 

initiatives aimed at a step-change in performance and/or delivery of 

complex MTFS savings. 

 
Timescale 
 
Following the pause, the timeline for the three projects that were part of the 
original PRISM moved to full completion by 31 March 2014.  There were 
some benefits in this delay as it meant that the technology and new ways of 
working could be delivered together and at the same time as new teams were 
formed.       
 
The technology part of the programme was always likely to be a challenge 
and has proved to be the case.   
 
As an example, during the summer and early autumn 2013, service 
requirements were identified that were essential but which had not formed 
part of the originally agreed specification.  More work has been required to 
ensure that the new technology can fully meet the requirements of the 
service.   
 
There are also dependencies outside of the control of the programme which 
have impacted on delivery, for example a planned upgrade of the Council’s 
back-office systems which support our contact with customers. 
 
The timeline for go-live of the technology is programmed to commence in May 
2014 and finish in July 2014, and CAPITA have reaffirmed this date, but this 
remains open to robust challenge from Harrow’s Programme Director, 
Sponsor and senior management team.  
 
The other two projects (service review and operational improvement projects) 
are longer term projects and will take us past the election and will support the 
incoming Administration in delivering their priorities and financial strategy. 
 
 

Financials 
 
The £2.8m cost of delivering the full PRISM business case was approved by 
Cabinet in October 2012. 
 
There are additional costs both for the extended timescales and because the 
scope has been widened through the two new projects.  The latter will be 
covered within the Directorate using existing funds as part of on-going service 
improvement.   
 
As well as incurring additional cost, the revised timeline has also delayed the 
financial benefits.  There is a commercial, contractual arrangement with 
CAPITA, but the terms of the contract are focused on outputs rather than 
successful outcomes and there is no link between the payment mechanism 
and the timely delivery of benefits.  Robust commercial challenge is being 
brought to bear against the original deliverables, but there is limited scope in 
which to do this.  A change request for additional costs has been submitted by 

75



C:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\5\1\3\AI00085315\$cvih3duo.doc 

CAPITA and is close to resolution.  All financial risk related to the restructure 
falls to the Council. 
 
The original financial benefits, £1.5m in 2013/14 (with a full year effect of 
£1.85m in 14/15) were mostly related to staffing and these will be met from 
2014/15.  The Directorate is working hard to contain any overspend in 
2013/14 as a result, and this is being reported through the usual budget 
monitoring.  The challenge should not be underestimated, and managers are 
working hard to contain the pressure as far as possible. 
 
 

Position statement 
 
Staffing (restructure) 
 
The restructure element of Towards Excellence, being delivered by Harrow 
Council staff, is progressing well and is almost concluded. Initially, almost 
90% of staff were assimilated/job matched (332 out of 373), and the 
remainder ring-fenced to various posts. The ring-fenced staff were given a two 
week period to apply for allocated roles. Interviews for staff ring-fenced to 
existing posts were completed before the 31st December 2013, as planned. 
 
As a result, the total number of staff assimilated/matched/appointed to roles 
rose to 92% (342 out of 373). 
 
The project teams worked closely with joint trade unions during the role 
evaluations. Their successful collaboration was recognised with a nomination 
for a CREATE award, for which they received 2nd place. 
 
Where possible, staff will be redeployed to suitable alternative roles and given 
training to meet the requirements of these roles, in order to avoid redundancy. 
 
New Ways of Working 
 
The New Ways of Working project has a Harrow Council project manager and 
is supported by Capita.  The project is focused on enabling professional staff 
to concentrate on delivering their service and establishing robust technical 
support and community engagement teams. 
 
The project team is working closely with service managers.  A series of 
‘Service Definition Documents’ for each team are almost finalised.  These will 
provide the blueprint for the future operation of the service teams and their 
relationship with other teams and partners.  
 
Training for staff is being designed and tailored for each service area.  The 
transition process has begun; led by the new managers, and is aiming to ‘go 
live’ with the new structure and new ways of working in February 2014. 
 
 
Technology 
 
The technology project will reduce the number of IT systems used by the 
service and improve customer services by sharing more information with 

76



C:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\5\1\3\AI00085315\$cvih3duo.doc 

residents and businesses.  Whilst there is a Harrow Council project manager 
in place, the key supplier in this project is Capita.  The software suppliers are 
contracted to Capita. 
 
This project is the most challenging element of the Towards Excellence 
Programme.  New software is being developed specifically and staff and 
service managers have been involved in ensuring that this software will meet 
the needs of the service.   
 
Design documents are over 96% complete and development of the software 
is being monitored closely by Capita.  The implementation timetable has been 
rescheduled and is due to be completed by July 2014.  
 
Once the software is available to Harrow, significant testing will be undertaken 
to ensure that system is suitable and resilient before it is deployed. 
 
 
Service review and operational improvement 
 
These projects are being managed completely by Harrow Council staff from 

within existing resources.  A pilot review of Arboriculture Services is being 

carried out.  This review is focusing on the current strategy and resources 

(workforce, systems and finance) used to deliver the service and how aspects 

of these can be redesigned to mitigate current operational issues in a 

sustainable manner.  

Operational Improvements are being looked at across a number of services 

with developing the service offer for Trade Waste among the priority reviews. 

 

Financial Implications 
 
N/A 
 
The financial implications of this programme were set out in the report that 
was approved by Cabinet in October 2012 and are also covered in the main 
body of this report..   
 

Performance Issues 
 
N/A 
 
The performance implications of this programme were set out in the report 
that was approved by Cabinet in October 2012.   
 

Environmental Impact 
 

N/A 
 
The environmental implications of this programme were set out in the report 
that was approved by Cabinet in October 2012.   
 

77



C:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\5\1\3\AI00085315\$cvih3duo.doc 

Risk Management Implications 
    

Risk included on Directorate risk register?  Yes  
  
Separate risk register in place?  Yes  
  
 

Equalities implications 
 
Was an Equality Impact Assessment carried out?  Yes  
 

Corporate Priorities 
 
N/A 
 

Section 3 - Statutory Officer Clearance 
 
Not required 
 

Section 4 - Contact Details and Background 

Papers 
 
 

Contact:  Philip Hamberger, Divisional Director, Business and Service 

Development, (direct telephone number 0208 420 9298) 

 
Background Papers:  None 

 

78


	Agenda
	3 Minutes
	7 Chair's Report
	Notes PF Chair's briefing - 27th November 2013 - V1
	PF Chairs briefing watch list Q2 2013-14 updated post meeting

	8 Revenue and capital monitoring Q2
	Appendix2MTFSImplementation
	App3RevenueandCapitalMonitoringQtr2

	9 Progress Against the Recommendations of the Report on the Standing Scrutiny Review of the Housing Revenue Account Budget
	10 Update on Private Rented Sector
	11 Towards Excellence Update

